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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, \
Plaintiff, CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. : DEPT.NO. VII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, DATE: 04/16/18
‘Defendant, ! TIME:

8:00 AM

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORD AND
MOTION ASKING TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE
A DECISION IN THIS MATTER
COMES NOW, the Defendant, Alfred Harvey, by and through his
attorneys, JASMIN --SP:EL-L_S and -_Sf-‘{ARON G:. DICKINSON, Deputy Public
Defenders, and respectfully moves this Honorable court to direct this. motion be

heard by the trial judge, Judge Bixler, to reconstruct the record regarding the jury

note found in the District Court Evidence Vault. This Motion is made and based

Case Number: C-16-314260-1



upon all the papers &1’ ='oc - = file ~orein, the attached Declarations of

Counsel, and oral argument at the time set for h‘f_:a_ring:'thi.s Motion.

DATED this § day of April, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN |
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharon G. Dickinson

SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN
i pleadEA R COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells |
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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On November 18, 2016, the jury returned a guilty verdict against Alfred
Harvey for the crime of robbery. Exhibit A. The Judgment of Conviction was filed
on March 17, 2017, Exhibit B. Alfred filed a notice of -a_pp_e'al on April 10,2017.

During the appellate process, on November 15, 2017, Appellate Counsel
discovered a. jury note within the court exhibits that was not discussed on the
record. Exhibit F. The jury noein woid “Can we have elaboration on the definition
by means of force or violence or fear pf jnjugy. Michelle Moline.” Exhibit C. At
the top of the note, Wa's: a jﬁypejd_ "re'-spo'n_se: “The Court is not at liberty to
supplement the evidence.” Exhibit C.

Appellate Counsel contacted the trial attorneys and learned that neither had

any knowledge of the note. Exhibits D and E. While in the process of investigating

the note and the reasons why the trial attorneys never saw the jury note, another

L g

il . ETRY _
attorney substituted in on behalf of Alfred Harvey. Exhibit F.

On or-about February 21, 2018, the Public Defender’s Office was reassigned

to represent Alfred Harvey when his prior counsel withdrew. Exhibit F. The lead

trial attorney, Jasmine Spells was out of the office until March 26, 2018. Upon her
return to the office, this motion was put together for court’s consideration. Exhibit

E
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RECONSTRUCTION OR CLARIFICATION OF THE
RECORD.

District Courts s ™, sue = . e _rts of record. NRS 1.020; NRS

1.090. Based on this mandate, at a criminal trial, the court reporter or recorder

shall “take down” or record “...all.the.testimony, the objections made, the rulings

of the court, the exeeptions taken...” NRS 3.320, NRS 3.380. ABA standards note

that: “The trial judge has the duty to see that.the reporter makes a true, complete,

and accurate record of all the proceedings.” ABA Standards for Criminal Justice:

Special Functions of the Trial Judge, Standard 6-17 (3" Ed. 2000).

e n Nevada are pul. e oeo L .
The importance of making an accurate record ensures that justice is provided

for a defendant on appeal.

When something is missing from the record, the parties have an obligation to
reconstruct or clarify the record. If ‘an objection or argument or exhibit. is not.
recorded or not made part of the record or if the transcript is incomplete, the
Nevada Supreme Court al’lqw_s._ fqr reconstruction of the record. See Lopez v. State,

105 Nev. 68, 769 P.2d 1276 (1989) (reconstruction when a portion of the

testimony was missing). Reconstruction not only applies to what is said during the

trial but may also be used to describe what was viewed in the courtroom.
Accordingly, in Philips v. State, 105 Nev. 631, 782 P.2d 381 (1989), the court

suggested that appellate counsel could put together a statement regarding the race

fErL O e certd
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of the prospective jurors when there was an issue regarding a Batson claim but the
record did not include any reference to the race of the prospective jurors.
Additionally, in Quangbengboune v. State, 220 P.3d 1122 (Nev. 2009), the Couit
held that the trial record could be modiﬁ_edf or coirected when inaccuracies in the
interpreter’s translations of the defendant’s. testimony were verified during the
appellate process. The Quanbengboune Court held that the defendant could bring
a motioen in district court pursuant to NRAP 10 ¢) to cortect the record.
The basis for a motion for reconstruction as found within NRAP 10( <)

provides that:

if any diffe_rence m‘iSes as to whether the trial court.

record truly discloses what occurred in_the district

court, the-difference shall be subinitted to and settled. by

that court and the trial court record made to conform to
the truth. (Emphasis added)

In view of this, the district court has the authority to reconstruct off the. record
discussions or imissing objections and arguments and to clarify the rulings in order
to protect Mr. Harvey’s right to dve process on appeal and to ensure that he is
given the correct standard of review on appeal.

In- this case, the trial record'.._c.ontaiins no information on Court Exhibitl.
Alfred Harvey’s trial attorneys have no knowledge of the jury note or the process

undertaken to give a typed message to the jury. This informatien is important for

his direct appeal regarding the issue involving the jury note that he intends to raise.

5
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Here, although the jury requested clarification on a legal matter, the trial
court told them: “The Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence.” Exhibit
C. However, the content and the process of the court giving a written response are
not within the record. The ¢ontent and process used conflicts with NRS 175.451.

The Legislature enacted NRS 175.451 to allow the jury to receive additional
information on the law if contused. Accordingly, in Gonzales v. State, 366 P.3d
680, 682 (Nev. 2015), the Nevada Supreme Court held: [Wihere a jury’s question
during deliberations ‘suggests confusion or lack of understanding of a significant
element of the applicable law, the court has a duty to give additional instructions
on the law to.adequately clarify the jury’s doubt or confusien.” However, no error
occurs if the Defénse does not provide the court with proffered instructions to
clarify the jury’s doubt or confusmn Jeﬁ'zes v. State; 397 P.3d 21, 28 (Nev..
2017), reh’g denied (Sept 29 2017) |

Additionally, a bailiff’s improper ex parte contact with the jury after
receiving a jury noté may also be newly discovered evidence warranting a new
trial. Lamb v. State, 127 Nev. 26, 43-46 (2011). In Lamb, the trial judge left for
the day, leaving the bailiff and another yudge to handle the deliberating jury. When
the jury sent a note, the bailiff did not inform anyone, taking it upon himself to
respond by telling the jurors to read the jury instructions. The bailiff’s actions

were in direct violation of NRS 175.391 and NRS 175:451. Defense learned of the

1469
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bailiff’s actions during the penalty hearing of the case and moved for a new trial.
The trial court hield an evidentiary hearing and denied the motion, finding the ex
parte. communication to be innocuous and not likely to impact the jury
deliberations.

In Manning v. Srare__, 348 P.3d 1015 (Nev. 2015), the Nevada Supreme Court
found constitutional error violating due process when a trial court failed to notify
and seek input from the pavies wigt “sceiving a note from the jury that it was
deadlocked. The Manning Court held:

[W]e believe that due process gives a defendant the right to be present

when a judge communicates. to the jury (whether directly or via his or

her marshal or other staff). A defendant also has the right to have his

or her attorney present to provide input in crafting the court’s

response to a jury’s inquiry. Accordingly, we hold that the court

violates a defendant’s due process rights when it fails to notify and

confer with the parties after receiving a note from the jury... Id. at
1019,

i Bl b0
However, the Manning Court found the error harmless beyond a reasonable doubt

because the trial court did not give the jury any legal instructions and merely
excused them for the day, telling them to return the next day for further
deliberations. The Manring Court found the trial court did not abuse its discretion

in denying the motion for a pew trial,

1470




Bécause Alfred intends to argue that reversible error occurred by court
instructing the jury without oiving his attorney’s input, he seeks an evidentiary

hearing to reconstruct the trial record.
111, CONCLUSION

In view of the above, Alfred Harvey asks this court to grant his motion and
reconstruct the record of his trial 'so that he has a record as to what occurred with
the jury note.

DATED this 5 day of Apsil,2018.

PHILIP J.KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharon Q. Dickinson
SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILTE J, KOHN
‘CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff:

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Public Defender’s Office
will bring the above and forgei . Y TIO™ on for hearing before the Court on
the16th of April, 2018 , at 8:00 AM

DATED this 5th day of April, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN |
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: 5/ S-ha_mn G.  Dickinson
__SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN
e LESEQIGARIC COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells
TASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defenider

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE
I hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was

served via electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at

motions@clarkcountyda.com on this § day of April, 2018.
By: _/s/Carrie M. Connolly
An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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FILED IN OPEN COURT

i STEVEN D. GRIERSON
VER ORIGINAL CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE QF NEVADA,
Plaintift; Case No: C-16-314260-1

. o Dept No: Vil
ALFRED C. HARVEY,

Defendant,

VERDICT

We, the jury in the above enti,tled"- case, find the Defendant ALFRED C. .I-_IA’R-V'EY_, as

follows:. |
(please check the appm’prfare box, select only one)

[ NotGuilty
E_/ Guilty of Robbery
[T Guilty.of Robbery with use of a Dezddly Weapon

AYN

DATED thts_| 8 day of November, 2016

FOREPERSON *

£~ 18=3142600 ~1
VER

Vardisl.
4800417

|

AR,



EXHIBIT B

1475




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
14
20
21
22
23

24

25

26

27

28

{la0c

THE STATE:OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-VS_

ALFRED C. HARVEY
#7013098

Defendant.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

i appearing;

The Defendant previously entered a piea of not guilty to the crime of ROBBERY
WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in viclation of NRS 200,380,
193.165: and the matter having been tried before a jury and the Defendant having been |
found guilty of the ¢crime of ROBBERY (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.380;
thereafter; on the 8" day of March, 2017, the Defendant was present in court for

sentencing with counsel JASMIN SPELLS, Deputy Public Defender, and good cause

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(JURY TRIAL)

“Baayiry thion-dvg Tein -
y g 1iE)

CASE NO. C314260-1

DEPT. NO. Vil

Electronicaily Filed
03/17/2017 09:38:19 AM

CL.LERK OF THE COURT
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| SENTENCED as follows: a MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR (144)

report indicates on page 3 that the Deft. is a confirmed active member of the “Blood,

1| membership; colloquy. COURT ORDERED that the following shall be added to the

the Defendant, at this point, disavows any gang affiliation.

THE DEFENDANT 1S HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said crime as set forth in
the jury's verdict and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, $250.00
Indigent Defense Civil Assessment Fee and $150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including

testing to determinie genetic markers plus.$3.00 DNA Collection Fee, the Defendant is

MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of TRIRTY-SIX (36) MONTHS in-the
Nevada Department of Corrections (ND'C), with THREE HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR
(344) DAYS credit for time served.

Ms. Spelis advised that the November 30, 2018, Presentence Investigation (PSI)
456 Pomona Island Piru” street gang; however, Defendant has denied any gang

Judgment of Conviction and noted for the PSH
CORRECTIONS TO THE PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION {PS]) REPORT:

DATEDthis /7 day of March, 2017

M,,

DOUGY SE SMITH
DISTRIC URT JUDGE_ M-

“'«\

2 S:\Forms\WJOC-Jury 1 CH3/16/2017
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AFFIDAVIT
KELLEY JONES makes the following declaration:
1. 1 am an aitorney duly licensed to praclice law in thc St’ate of Nevada; I am a
Deputy Public Defender who assisted in representing-the Defendant in the instant matter,
2. The criminal prosecution of Srate of Nevada v. Alfred C. Harvey, case #C-
- 16-314260-1, was in the Eighth Judicial District Courl, Clark County, Nevada, which is a court of

record in this State, The Defendant, Alfred C.. Harvey, was aceused and charged with the offense

of robbery with a deadly weapon,

3. 1 wasinformed a jury question was located.in the post-conviction file, The
Juror’s-question asked for elaboration of “by means-of force or fear of injury.”

4. To my knowledge, this question was never presented to the defense.

I declare under penalty of petjury that the foregoing is true and correct, (NRS

53.045).

s \\5 NN
WG AR

SUBSLRIBI D and. SWOR\I to befow me

\m\wh M) \‘<~\ DN P Jacggﬂgaimﬂgggﬁwm
= 3 NOTARY P
\!Cﬂ ARY PUBLIC | O T oF QIR
APPT No. 1154221
Y APPT. E}(PIHESJUNEW 019, |

1481




EXHIBIT :

Ll

1482




10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

AFFIDAVIT
JASMIiv D. 3PELLS makes the fo__ll‘OWi'rig"deciaration:-
1. Tam.an attorney duly licensed 1o practice law in the State’of Nevada; 1 am.a

Chief Deputy Public. Defender a__s’siigne&.“to henidle:the case -o'f'St_ate--af Nevada:v. Alfred C. Harvey,

T was thelead attorney for Mr. Harvey’s tral.

2. The criminal prosecution of State of Nevadu v. Alfred C. Harvey, case #C-
16-314260-1, was in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clatk. County, Nevada, which is a court of

record i this State. The Defendant, Alfred C. Harvey, was-accused and charged with the offense

-of robbery with a déadly weapoz, The i+ found Me. Harvey guilty of robbery,

3. After filing & notice of appeal, Appellate counsel informed me that-the jury
foreman. submitted a quéstion dting deliberations, asking for an elaboration on the definition of
“by means of force or violence or fear of injury” dufing juty deliberations. ExhibitC.

4, I was not informed” of this question during the ‘trial. Appellate counsel
notified me of the-question after verdict and sentencing.

5. Upon information and belief, Appellate counsel discovered the jury question

inthe district court éviderice vault, Iabelled as & court .exhi'bi“r.-.__

6. Counsel believes wat this guestion is very significant becanse the question
goes to the very cruxaf the defense: jrl};ap tfi*q‘ _g%e‘f’én‘dani did not have a-weapon and that the State
did not prove robbery beyond @ réasonable doubt because thete was o force, violence or fear of
trjury..

7. Had | ‘been aware. of this question diring jury deliberations; I would have

dohe a number of thihgs-._ T-would have objected to the court responding that the evidence could not.

‘be-supplemented-See 3%@_;;}5&&145&1116 jury question did not-ask for a playback/readback or

for additional evidence, The jury question asked for clarification on a.point of law.
8. Specifically, 1 would have requested that the Court, direct the jury to jury
instructions 6, 11 and 12. Exhibit H, Jury instructions 6 and 11 instruct the jury thet force or fear

“rust be used to either: (1) obtain -qr‘rétdin‘pos‘sﬂ_ss'ion-of-'-_takeu property, (2) prevent or overcoms

resistancé to the taking of property; or (3) to facilitate escape with the property.” Jury instruction

12 further instructs the jury that in order for there to be a robbery, “the taking: must bé




o

-_accomplished' by force or intimidation.” These instructions are important becaiise they direct the

jury to focus on examples of force and fear and how/when force or fear was used if at all.

9. Trem o ruenl 123, ExhibitH. Talso-would have also requestied

|i the Court supplement the jury instruction packet with the:jury instructions contained on pages 7

and 10 of the Proposed Jury Instructions Not Used ar Trial, Exhibit I, The instruction on page 7
remifids the jury that the State has the burden of proof and again details the thiee ways in which’
force or fear must be used_ for . rebbery to be committed. The- insfructict on page 10 is 8 lesser
instruction’ which informs the Jury that-if they are not convinced Beyond a reasonable doubt that
iobbery occurred, then they may find the defendant guilty of the lesser included offense of petit
[arceny.

10, 1 would have also reguest that the court give the jury the: Crame. jury
instruction Exhibit J,whighninstiniots Hha: juijpliow to procesd when there are two reasonable
interpretations, one pointing to guilt and not. Crane v. State 88 Nev. 634, 504.P.2d 12 (1972).
Given the jury’s question, its arguable the jury found two reasonable irterpretations of the facts of
the case..

11.  Additionally, T would have requested that the Court give the legal
definitions of force, fear and vielence as defined in Black’s Law Dictionary, as these: terms ate
legal terms, which are to. counsel’s’ kitowledge are.not defined by Nevada statutes. Specifically
these-definitions ate:

Aciual forees forge Gonsisting in physical aet, esp. a Violent.act directed against 4
victiim.

Fear- the sttong, negative feelihg that -a person expériences when anticipatifig
danger or harm.

Violence- the use. of physical force, usu. Accompanied by fiiry, vehemence, or
outrage; especially physical force unlawfully exercised with the intent’to harm.

Black’s Law Dictionary (16" ¢d. 2014). These definitions directly answet the jury’s question. Jury
instruction 23, which the court:gave informed the. jury that should they have & question, the

information sought would be given.
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Counsel was out of the office from early Decémber 2017 to the end of March 2018. 1 reviewed the

(NRS 53.045).

County.of Clark

State of Nevada

'SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me KONIE JO BALDWIN
B this bﬁ day of Aprii, 2018. NOTARY PUBLIC

e l!S'FJBKTE Om}lﬂ,&
: Commission 011
| ﬂ\i P {( ( Certfiate NG; oassamm

.!lb\_m /M}Lu

12. 1 was informed of the jury question on or about late November, 2018.

instant case and prepared this affidavit upon my return,

13. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED' this 3™ day of April, 2018:

NCGTARY PUBLIC
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DECLARATION OF SHARON G, DICKINSON

1. Tam an altorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; 1
am & deputy public defender assigned to handle the appeal of this ‘matter; [.am
familiar with the procedural history of this case.

2. Ouwr office filed the Notice of Appeal in this matter on April 10,
2017.

3. On November 15, 2017, while working on Alfred Harvey’s
appeal of this case, I found Court Exhibit 1 which is a note from the jury asking
clarification of the definition of “by means of force or violence or-fear of injury.”
Exhibit C. 1did not find this document discussed in the trial transcripts.

4. On November 15, 2017, T contacted the trial attorney, Ms. Spells,
and she told me she did not know about the jury nole. Subsequently, her co-
counsel, Ms. Jones agreed that she had never seen the jury note.

5. On November 15, 2017, -another attorney filed 4 substitution of
attorney motion with the Nevada Supreme Court; and, our office- was removed
from Alfred Harvey’s appeal oi December 4, 2017. On January 2, 2018, the new
attorney filed a motion to withdraw. The Nevada Supreme Court granted his
motien on January 25, 2018, and remanded the case to district court for
appointment of counsel.

6. On or about February 14, 2018, the Clark County Public

Defender’s Office was reappointed. On March 5, 2018, I was reassigned to handle

Albert Harvey’s appeal.
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7. Because Ms. Spells was out of the office until March 26, 2018, 1
was unable to meet with her before that date. Ms. Speils met with me -on March
30, 2018, and subsequently prepared an affidavit for this motion.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is frue and
correct.

EXECUTED on the 2™ April, 2018,

By: __/s/ Sharon G, Dickinsoii
SHARON G. DICKINSON
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that time period we just want to remind you that what you decide is the fact -- are the

facts in evidence in the case, that's your decisions:

perceive something is going to be the way that you tell the story and that is going to

perception and what you see, what occurs, is going to be based on the person that

you are and then when you get to tell your side of the story what you saw, what you

deliberate, we ordered you guys some lunch about an hour ago. So you ¢an have

CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE DEFENSE
MS. SPELLS: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen of the jury. | wantto
tha_n_k you for being attentive throughout this time, for bearing with us, and just
listening to all of the evidence. Now, is the time for our closing argument, after |

make argument, the State will have another opportunity to speak with you. During

So perception is not reality, everybody has. different perception and our
perception is our point of view. Everyone has a point of view based on what their
story is, the way-it happened according fo you. Sometimes that is based on just

who you are as a person. Perception and memory go hand in hand. The way you

also come into play with your memory. | want you guys to remember when you are
thinking about all of the different witnesses and what they have said to you and all of
the different evidence that came from the stand, that memory is not a tape recorder,
you don't get to press pause, come back and resume like a movie. It's just not the
way it works. But our memory is definitely influenced by -percefptio'_n_._

Fdon't know if you guys recall this or if you saw it.or if you are a big avid
Facebook users or what have you, but this is a just an illustration as perception.
This is a picture of the exact same dress. Some people saw this dress as being

gold and white, other people saw this dress as being blue and black. Again,

-36-

1490



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

heard, that's going to be based upon your perception.

Let's talk about some of the things that affect your memory. Obviously,
we know this, this is just common experience, some of the things that would affect
your memory are stress, adrenaline, your emotions. Those are some of the things
that we have in this case, with the interactions of the different individuals. Now, you
heard from Julian Munoz, who got on the stand, and he told you that he's. been
employed in loss prevention for approximately 'f'.i'v_e\ years. But that each time he has
interaction with someone he still feels nervous. He still has some of that stress. .So
that's going to be one. of the factors that affect his memory, affect his perception of
what's going on.

Now, in my opinion this is a ¢classic movie, it may not be a classic movie

for everyone, but | want to use this just as an illustratiori as perception and memory

and how things come and tie together. So you're looking at the case of Forrest

Gumip, you have a lot of different players, and it's very important to note where does

the story start, who are the players, and what their story is. So, for instance, for

Forrest's mother, the story to Her may be about Forrest breaking out of his braces’

and learning how to run.and that's a very significant story. It talks-about tenacity and

things that are going on there.. For Jenny, however, the story is completely different.

For her, her story, her perception, her memory is going to be about a childhood

relationship, being in love with someone and that Jove growing into adulthood. Now,

if you take Lieutenant Dan, his story is about friendship, about actions that

happened in the war. And.if these individuals were to come into court arnid to _tes_tify
about things that happened, they're. going to recount their story in a different way.
Some of them may be able to tell the story in a very lihear fashion. Forrest's mom

being able to-talk about tenacity and she can tell you the beginning to the end.

37-
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Other people may be coming in at the middle, they don't necessarily see the entire
incident so they can't tell you a very linear story, their story starts at a different time,
ends at a different time. Jenny may he able to give you her highlights. Her favorite
experiences. She may not tell you the full story. And Lieutenant Dan, well, if he
was telling & story, maybe he would use flashback, maybe he would tell you what
was the most important thing in flashback to otherthings that he found important.

Each witness in this case their story starts at a different time period,
they have their own point of view, their memory is going to be different as well.
We've talked about this, factors that are at play in our case, the adrenaline, common
sense, stress, and also training because we had a number of individuals who came
and talked to you about some training that they had, how they write reports, how
they are quote/unquote experts ina certain area, they at least have a lot of
experience, they have accustom of doing things and they're been taught-and trained
that that's the best way to do it, and they -- there are reasons that they conduct
certain actions.

So let's talk about Julian Munoz. He-is kind of the lead of this story. He
gives you a story about his employment with T.J. Maxx and he came and he fold
you that he would consider T.J. Maxx a clothing store. He was an individual who in
telling you his story he wasn't very detail oriented. He said maybe two wallets,
maybe three wallets, at one point, during questioning on the stand, he indicated that
possibly there were up to four wallets that Mr. Harvey either concealed or stolen or
took. But wheh we talked about that he brought up his report and kind of went back
and forth..

He does not speak to Mr. Bramble, this is his co-worker, and he says

that he left outside of the store and Mr. Bramble was doing video surveillance and

-38-
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additional items concealed, possibly taken. But before he goes to write his report,

indicated, that, you know, he retreated. He didn't continue to follow him. But we

required some further advancement,

mentioned some, like through a telephone call or what have you, that there were

which he indicated that he would look at, it would go to his upper management in the
store, it could possibly be used at a trial in a case, other people would be looking at
it. He didn't take the time to go speak to Mr. Branible about other things that had
occurred, to finish documenting, and {o be as detailed oriented as possible in his
reporting.

He talks to you about his boundaries and that's important becausée
that's his company policy-and that ties into a person's motives and a person's
recollection of what they did, what they said, how they reacted.

Now, let's talk about the knife. And for Mr. Munoz it's unclear whether
we get the entire story for him. | would submit that to you. He came and he testified

and he said that he stopped short and the State, just in their closing argument,

heard _ffom__ Mr. Appel that there were -- there was more than one person taking
pictures. You also heard from Mr. Munoz that he told the 9-1-1 operator, and you
guys heard the 9-1-1 phone call for yourself, information about the individual and
about the vehicle.

And | submit to you that you're not going io be able to see the vehicle
parked and the license plate of the vehicle parked in front.of a Dollar Tree store, if
you're retreating back to the T.J. Maxx. And we showed you the' map on a number

of different occasions and just the difference bet’ween'-t'hose two stores would have

in Iookihg at and weighing his testimony, I'd ask you to consider his

perception and his memory, the fact that he was anxious, he told you that on the

.309.
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stand that he was nervous, whether or not he was compliant with his company
policy when he indicated that he was not supposed to pursue someone outside of
those boundaries, the width of T.J. Maxx and to the sidewalk, and his comments
about time and waiting. He doesn't necessarily like to wait for the police. It takes a
couple of hours unless it's something significant, something significant here like the
report of a knife being present.

Now, when corisidering the testimony of Mr. Bramble we get his story
and it's important to note that he didn't see anything. | mean, we've talked a lot
about his actions:and some of the other people's actions, but what it boils down to
what you are all here to decide is whether or not Mr. Alfred Harvey-is guilty of
robbery with use of a deadly weapon., Mr. Bramble didn't see anything. With regard
to that interaction he wasn't able to tell you that he saw a weapon. In fact, he didn't
see a'weapon. He indicated that his role was very limited. He didn't share his
knowledge or the fact that he was taking photographs with officers. He didn't show
those photographs to Mr. Munoz.

He said Julian looked shocked. He didn't tell you that Julian looked
scared or frightful or in fear for his life. He said Julian looked shocked, like maybe
something had occurred that wasn't part of the ordinary. Now, | would submit to you
that there are a number of different reasons that a person looks shacked and we
talked about this. We talked about this when we were discussing circumstantial
evidence during our jury selection where the State submitted to you that if you were
inyour home late at night, you'd gone to the bed, and before you went to bed there
was no water on the ground, you come outside and you see water on the ground,
would you conclude that it has been raining? And we talked about, okay, that may

be one conclusion, but there are a number of different conclusions that you could

-40-
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come to. In fact, one of you indicated that maybe there was a movie set there and
they were filming a portion of the movie with rain and so they had water there to
make it appear that it was raining but it had not actually rained.

So here there area number of different things. What we do know is
that Mr. Munoz asked Mr. Harvey to come back into the store with him and he
refused, okay, that's something that's a little different than the ordinary when he told
you normalily, just come back, | fill out some paperwork, that's it.

With regard to Mr. Bramble's perception, his memery, and we've
discussed that he wasn't there. He didn't have much investment in this interaction,
inthis case, because he works for organized retail crime. So this wasn't something

that was really something he-did on his day-to-day job. He was trying to assist

Mr. Munoz to a certain degree but didn't have much investment. He fold you that it's

not part of his job-or company policy, his job.description to apprehend someone, S0

it's not something that he was going to be doing here. His actions weren't going to-

be with regard to-that. And that's important to note as well because you have the

interaction between Mr: Munoz and Mr. Bramble and Mr. Bramble coming out to

help Mr. Munoz and what are Mr. Munoz' thoughts.and perception_s-.;abo_u't;'hi_s '

actions and how Mr. Bramble may view those actions.

We heard from Mr. Appel. Now, 1 would agree with the State that

Mr. Appel indicated that he was happy to be a part.of it. He wasthe Good

Samaritan. He wanted to be helpful. He was comiing to the aid and to the rescue
and he foliows the van. Now, when we're thinking about his perception and his.
memary, | submit to you, listen to the 9-1-1 phone call, what we get from Mr. Appel
is that although he's trying to be helpful, he gives a iot of information that he really

has no ability to give. He says, oh, someone just pulled a knife out on these people.

~41-
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only of Mr. Harvey, of his person, but also of this vehicle, they didn't find any knife.

He wasn't there. He didn't see it. He's in the parking lot in his vehicle. We don't
know where the knife is, Well, that's true he doesn't know where the knife is. But
the reality of the situation is that his story starts at the end of the story, that's
important as to whether or not a robbery with use of a deadly weapon occurred
because he's coming in after that. He didn't see any of the interactions with

Mr. Munoz and Mr. Harvey.

And there's a very significant difference of hearing something versus
seeing something. You hear something from a person, you tell another person, they
hear it, and by the time they retell the story there's going to be some things that may
be a little bit different, may sound a little bit different, somethings may be
emphasized, somethings may be de-emphasized. There is a huge difference when
you are viewing something firsthand or where you're hearing something from
another individual. And the perception of Mr. Appel is that he knew everything abouf
the case, he was able to give all the information that he was asked of.

We heard from Officer Nelson and Officer Humpherys, their story is that
they're trained officers, they've been working for the Metropolitan Police Department
for quite some time, they did a thorough investigation here, they told you that there.
was also air traffic patrol involved, and they told you that, you know, you didn't hear
any stories of any issties. They conducted searches. Officers came and tell you
that Mr. Harvey consented to them going into his pockets, to doing the search, and

all of that. He was cooperative with that search. And upon finishing the search, not
What they did find was T.J. Maxx property. Their perception and their memory, they

indicated that they were concerned about officer safety, safety of others because

there had been a phone call out that maybe a knife was involved. So they wanted to
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1496




10

11
12

13

14,

15

18

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

make sure that other people weren't going to be harmed.

Now, we heard from Officer Humpherys and he told you clear as day,
without any type of hesitation, that sometimes witnesses are mistaken in what they
speak, they don't always get it right. He told you that. He said here there was not a
knife found.

So we briefly heard from Mrs. Harvey. In considering her testimony,
you can consider the fact that'she is married to Alfred Harvey. She was the

passenger in this vehicle and she told you that she was nervous. She was nervous

then, on that date, it was an unfamiliar situation for her, and she was nervous

coming here to testify to'you guys. She indicates that she was the passengerin the
car, that there were two individuals taking photos. She saw two of them walk right
up to that vehicle and take photos with their cell phones, and that's not the same
story that we got from Mr. Munoz because he says he never took any photographs.
He didn't go up to that U-Haul vehicle.

She told you that Mr. Harvey is right-handed. We're going to discuss

that a little bit. She told you there was never a knife .and that Mr. Harvey doesn't

generally carfry a knife. Again, there was no knife found. She told you also that

when they were going to that school her daughter needed to use the restroom.
They were stopping at the school, this is not the situation where the cops are pulling
the individual over and stopped.them-at that school. They stopped at that school
and the cops then met them there.

Now, 1 submit to you, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, Mr. Harvey is

not guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon. The State -- it's kind of like

spaghetti, they're trying to throw a whole bunch of stuff at you guys to make some

things stick. We had a lot of different information that came back that really is just a

_'43'_
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distraction as to what this case is-about. There was a lot of different indications
about kids being present, where they were, what they were doing, different
merchandise. in the car, driving, how an individual was driving, how Mr. Harvey was
driving, they questioned both Mr. Appel as well as Mrs. Harvey with about that, and
we spent a lot of time about the path taken to get to this school, what happened at
the school, what side people were at the school, nothing but distractions. What
does that have to do with the robbery.-with use of a deadly weapon?:

So, let's look at the Information, you guys have that in your packet,
that's instruction number three, and it teils that you that an Information is but a
formal method of @ccusing a person of a crime. So this is what the State has
charged Mr. Harvéy with and they lay it out for you. Andthey say that -- we're not
going to read it through its entirety, we're going to skip down to line 13, it says,
Alfred C. Harvey did wilifully, unlawfully, and feloniously take personal property,
to-wit: miscellaneous clothing items, from the person of Julian Munoz, or in his.
presence, by means of force or violence, of fear of injury to, and without the consent
and against the will of Julian Munoz; with the use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a
knifé. They go on to say, Defendant using force or fearto obtain or retairi
possession of the property, to prevent or overcome resistance to the taking of the
property, and/or to facilitate escape. That's what they've charged Mr. Harvey with,
that's what's important in this case.

So, we know that there's absolutely no miscellaneous clothing items.. It
can characterize T.J. Maxx as being a clothing store all they want to, the items in
this case have nothing to do with clothing.

We know that there's no knife, there's ng weapon ever found. | submit

to you there was no fear, there's no violence. What really occurred here is that
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Alfred Harvey stole some items but theft is not robbery.

Mr. Munoz on the stand said T.J. Maxx.is a clothing store. When [ went
back and said, well, don't they sell water and food and accessories and all these
other itefs. He said, oh, yes, it's a department store. | agree with you.

The one piece of clothing item that was kind of thrown out there was
this blue shirt. So we see Mr. Harvey in the store, he's wearing, what | submit to
you is two different blue shirts, one light, one dark blue, very similar to the blue shirt
that was shown to you guys later as a piece of evidence. These are not ¢lothing
items, these are the items that were taken, wallets, some type of hand or face
cream, and perfume.

So let's go-on to this knife. Absolutely no witness, outside. of
Mr. Munoz, testifies that there was a knife here involved. Now, let's think about this,
Mr. Munoz came on the stand and he told you that he was standing on Mr. Harvey's
right-hand side. He told you that Mr. Harvey reached into his left pocket with his
left-hand and pulled out the knife-and held it above his head with the left-hand. We
know from the video surveillance, as well as Mr. Munoz' testimony, that what was in
the left pocket was the face cream or the hand cream, the cream that had been
taken from the store. We also know that there are wallets tucked into this left-hand
side. This is the surveillance video and the photographs that you were shown
yesterday with regard when the State was stating that the items were concealed, the
wallets were concealed in the jacket. And unfortunately we didn't getio see that
jacket, that biue shirt thing. We don't know necessarily what does it look like? Are
we dealing with inside pockets here? Are we dealing with him concealing things
under the arm like this, into the arm of the shirt, just underneath here? What are we

dealing with? We don't know. But it is significant because the items are going into
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the left-hand side.

| want te talk to you guys about a timeline here, and you guys have the
9-1-1 phone call, you can listen to the call again, it gives you the date and the time
at the beginning of the phone call. First call comes in at 16:34, that would be 4:34
p.m., that call is.by Mr. Julian Munoz. At 16:38 we have Mr. Appel calling and he is’
informing the 9-1-1 operators he's-following the guys, already in motion, following
these individuals. And then just before three minutes into that phone call, you guys
heard it, you listened to it, you can check my timeline if you like, he says, Appel
says, the suspects are in custody. So-we're talking about a total of approximately
seven to eight minutes.

From all the testimony that we've heard we know that Mr; Munoz goes’
outside, he's talking to Mr. Harvey. Mr. Bramble told you that within approximately
30 seconds he's outside. He said he had to get through some people, he arrived
outside approximately 30 seconds later, and saw both Mr. Harvey and Mr. Munoz
but he doesn't see a knife.

We know that at that point Mr. Bramble and Mr. Munoz are going
towards the vehicles. We know that because Mr. Munoz is calling in the 9-1-1
phone call.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Your Honor, | hate to interrupt. Could we please
approach?
THE COURT: Sure.
[Bench conference begins]
MR. SCHWARTZ: Sorry, | didn't want to interrupt. | just have a concern that.
with the redacted version of the 9-1-1 call it might have a différence because the

CAD doesn't seem to indicate the three minutes from when Errol calls the
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Defendant's in custody. So if I could just make that clear in my closing, 1 mean,
rebuttal. | don't know how much more we're going into.it.

THE COURT: | don't see any probiem with that. Okay. [f you want me to, |
can say there might be a slight discrepancy because | reviewed -- the Court had
redacted irrelevant material. So if there's a discrepancy, it's understandable. Do
you think that's going to be a big issue point?

MR. SCHWARTZ: If you can just move on at this point from this argument,
we could. it's not a big deal.

THE COURT: Weli, because if there is going to be a discrepancy because of
the timeline because of the redaction then don't emphasize the discrepancy.

MS. SPELLS: I'l just move on, | guess.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SPELLS: At least it would be appropriate for us to notate the redaction.
And looking at the CAD what is the difference, a minute?

THE COURT: Then avoid the issue but just don't -~

MS. SPELLS: 1l move on.

THE COURT: -- don'’t bring up there's a discrepancy.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. Thank you.

MS. SPELLS: All right. Thank you.

[Bench conference concludes]

MS. SPELLS: So let's talk about what we know, okay. We know that
Mr. Brambie tells you he's outside within approximately 30 seconds, from there
Mr. Munoz.is calling 9-1-1, he is approaching this vehicle, getting the license plate
information. We know that Mr. Appel is on scene before this U-Haul takes off, he

tries to block the U-Haul. We know that air unit traffic control is somewhere in here.
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We didn't get to hear from them but we know that they were out there; right? We
know that the cops are trained, they're trained to search for things, they're trained to.
look for things; not only did they search the car, they searched Mr. Harvey.

Now, we had an indication yesterday about well maybe the knife was
dumped. So we talked about what exactly was communicated and the specific line:
that '.Officer'H.umphe_ryS'-'testified to, subject possibly just dumped property, and that's
coming at the school. Well, we know that these trained officers searched these
locations, no knife ever found. Officer Humpherys testified to you all that sometimes
witnesses do misunderstand, they don't see what they thought they saw.

So let's talk about a.few of Mr. Munoz' [indiscernible]. And, again,
understand that he's nervous. He indicates with every stop he's nervous. So we
need to talk about his perception and his memory. But he testifies that there were
two wallets, there were three wallets, there were four wallets, now there were three.
And then when | questioned him abeut his report, what did you write in your resort?
He ¢comes back, yeah, there were two wallets written in the report.

The license plate number, and the State went over this with you just
briefly, that he came back, had to clarify with regard to what the.actual license plate
number was. There was some mis’un'de'rstandi'ng'-ab_ou't'the streets, which directions
they went, where this car was traveling. There's no follow-up with his co-worker to
conduct his report. He says that he never took any photographs, but, again, we
have Mr: Appel and Mrs. Harvey testifying there were two people out there taking
photographs: Who else is out there? We know it's only Munoz and Mr. Bramble.
Mr. Bramble told you he took photos.

‘When the State carries the burden of proving to you beyond a

reascnable doubtthai this knife was used in the commission of the crime that being
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robbery with use of a deadly weapon.

| wanted to talk to you ali about credibility, and that's your instruction
number ten, and I'm not going to belabor the point and read it'all to you because the
State did a lot about credibility. So | think everyone clearly understands what
credibility is. | want to submit to you, however, that consistency: is not necessarily
indicative of credibility especially in cases where people have written reports
because you're going to testify consistently with your reports, you're going to review
them before you come and testify, Additionally, when you make up a story about
something, you tell the story, you're going to be consistent in that. So.consistency
by itself is not necessarily indicative of honesty or credibility.

When you consider all of the factors and all of the things here what you
have is the fact that Mr. Harvey's vehicle never out of sight. Mr. Appel immediately
blocks it in, he's following the vehicle the entire time period, tells you he wanted to
know where it goes. We have the air traffic unit control there and then we have the
police immediately arriving, okay. As Mr. Harvey is walking to this vehicle we have
Mr. Bramble and Mr. Munoz going towards the vehicle, getting the information. We
heard yesterday that in Mr. Appel's statement he said three people were running
towards this car taking photographs. Where was the opportunity for Mr. Harvey to
ditch this alleged knife? Ifit's ditched on the way to the vehicle, then we have
Mr. Munoz and Mr. Bramble following him to the vehicle, they would have seen it on
the ground.. If it's ditched on the way to the school; we have the air traffic control.
We have Mr, Appel following this car the entire time period and he warited to be
heipful. He was giving up all types of information that he did not even have the
answer to. If he would have seen anything, if this knife would have been ditched

somewhere, we would have heard some indication of that but we didn't hear
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anything because there was not a knife.

There was also no fear, no force, or nor vislence. Kind of rewind, go

11 back to the interaction between Mr. Munoz and Mr. Harvey, and we hear that

Mr. Munoz asked Mr. Harvey for the wallets. He freely gave them back. He's not

screaming at him. He's not pushing him. He's not throwing those wallets at him.
He just gave him the wallets back. Mr. Munoz testified there's no yelling, there's no
body contact, there's no force or fear of violence in that interaction. He says af that
point Mr. Harvey tefuses to turn back to the store.

-So | submit to you there's absolutely no knife, there's no knife found,

there's no indication that Mr. Munoz actually saw a knife. We have the officer saying

that people-are mistaken a lot of times in what they see, what is actually occurring.

Soat that point we have a hand-up, possibly some hand ¢ream in this hand, coming

out of the left pocket. Is that force or violence? Does that put you in fear? Again,
perception is notreality.
Let's talk about the actions of Mr. Alfred Harvey. He stole merchandise

from T.J. Maxx. Mr. Munoz told you that it was less than $500. He didn't have a

weapon. He's hot being forceful in giving back those wallets. He's not being

threatening. At the end of the day, he's thief, not a violent robber. I'm not saying he
didn't do anything: yes, he absolutely went into that T.J. Maxx store, concealed
items, left the store with items that did not belong 1o him. He stole items from T.J.
Maxx.. There's no-option for that in your verdict form.

The State is the person who charged him, you saw that in the
Information, and they have the burden of proving to you beyond a reasonable doubt
the charge that they've submitted to you, robbery with use of a deadly weapon.

[.submit.to you that snapshots, highlights don't work, and we see that
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| with the story and the illustration with Forrest Gump, because if you just get one

person’s snapshot or one person’s highlight you don't know the full story.

Perception drives memary but your perception is not reality. What color
is that dress? We don't know. What are some of the things that influences memory,
again, adrenaling, bias, emotions..

So you're the trier of facts and you have to put this story together using
credibility, common sense, analyzing the evidence with regard to perception and
memory. |

So as | said, the State will get to speak to you again because they do
have the burden of proof here. So there were just a few final things | wanted to go
over with you all.

Court's indulgence.

The State spoke to you a little bit at length abeut this knife and the fact
that they don't have to show you that it was recovered. | submit to you that's the
law, they don't have to actually have the knife here for you today for you to find that
a knife was utilized. | submit to you there was absolutely no knife. When we're
talking about memory and perception; it is important to consider the: fact that you
guys don't have the knife because there’s no one else to tell you that they saw a
knife. There's the brief testimony that it's four inches. We don't know any of that.
The facts instead show that there was not a weapon, that Mr: Munoz was just
mistaken.

And_, lastly, I want to draw your atterition to your jury instruction number
six. It says, if you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant
used a deadly weapon in‘the commission of an unlawful taking of personal property

from the person of another’-- again, here the State has charged miscellaneous.
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clothing items - or in his presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury,
immediate or future, to his person or property and that such force was used to
obtain orretain possession of the property, prevent or overcome resistance to the
taking of the property, or to facilitate escape with the prope'rty_' you must find the.
Defendant not guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon. And | submit te you
that here Mr. Harvey is not guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon but he's
also not guilty of robbery because he didn't use force or violence here. He stole
items and refused t0 come back into the store. Mr. Harvey is also not guilty of
robbery. ‘We'd ask that the appropriate verdict here and we're confident that once
you've analyzed all of the evidence you will find Mr. Harvey not guilty.
Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you, counsel.
How long do you think your last portion is going to take?
MR. SCHWARTZ: Ten, fiteen minutes.
THE COURT: You guys want to stay or you want to take a little break?
UNKNOWN JUROR: Stay.
THE COURT: You want to get it over with?:
UNKNOWN JUROR: Yes.
MR. SCHWARTZ: If you could switch over back to our computer; please.
Is it okay if | move this, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Sure,
MR. SCHWARTZ: May | proceed, Your Horor?
THE COURT: Yes, please.
[REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE STATE]
MR. SCHWARTZ: The State's whole case is a distraction; right? That's what
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
-V§-

ALFRED C. HARVEY,
Defendant.

ORIGINAL

o CA
~ DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASENO: C-16-314260-1
DEPT NO: VIIL

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. 1)
MEMBERS OF THE JURY:

It is now my duty as judge te instruct you in the law that applies to this:case. It s

your duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of law to the facts as

you find them from the evidence.

You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these

instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought to be, it

would be a violation of your cath 1o base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that

given in the instructions of the Court,

£-16-314260-1
INST
Instructions to Lbs Jury
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INSTRUCTION N_O-.i*__* |

If, in these instructions, any rule, -direction or idea is repeated or stated in. different |

ways, no emphasis theccon is intended by me and noné may be inferred by you. For that

reason, you are not to single out any cefain sentence ot any individual point or instruction

and ignore the others, but you are (o consider all.the instructions as a whole and regard each.
in the light of all the-others,

The order in which the instructions are given has no significance as lo their relative

importance.
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INSTRUCTIONNO._ ¥

An Information is but a formal method of accusing a person of a crime and is not of

itself any evidence of his guilt.

In this case, it is charged in an Information that-on or about the 30th day of March,
2016, the Defendant committed the offense of ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165 - NOC 50138).

[t is the duty of the jury to apply the rules of law contained in these instructions to the
facts of the case and determine whether or not the Defendant is guilty of the oflense charged.

COUNT 1. - ROBBERY WITH -USE-OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony
-'NRS 200,380, 193.165 - NOC 50138), on or about the 30th day of March, 2016, within the

County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such

‘cases made and providéd_, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

ALFRED C. HARVEY did willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take personal property, to-
wit: miscellancous clothing items, from the person of JULIAN MUNOZ, or in his presence,
by means of force or violence, or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the
will of JULIAN MUNOZ, with use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a knife, defendant using
force or fear to obigin. or retain possession.of the property, to prevent or overcome resi_stancé

to-the taking of the property, and/or to lacilitate escape.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 7£

To constitute the crime charged, there must exist a union or joint operation 0.‘1‘""an_:a_c_1_
forbidden by law and an inient to do the act.

The intent with which an act is done is shown by the facts ahd circumstances
surrounding the case.

Do not confuse intent with motive, Motive is what prompts a person to act, Intent
refers onl_'_y to. the state of mind with which the act'is done.

Motive is not an element of the crime charged and the State is not requifed to prove a

motive on the part of the Defendant in order to convict. However, you may consider

“evidence of motive-or lack of motive as a circumstance in the case,

R




JNSTRUCTHNQNQ;~§#

The Defendant is presumed innocent until the contrary is proved. This presumption
plates upon the State the burden of proving beyond a reasenable doubt every element of the
crimic charged and that the Defendant is the person who committed the offense.

A redsohable doubt is one based on rcason. Itis not mere possible doubt but is such a
doubt as would govem or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds.of"
the jurors, after the entire cemparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a
coridition that they can say they. feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is

not a reasonable doubl. Doubt to be reasonable -must be actual'_,_ not mere possibility or

eV T R I N Y N U R N

speculation.
11 [f you have a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the Defendant, he is entitled 10 .a

12 || verdictof not guilty.
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another, ‘or in his presence, against his will, by means of force or violence -or fear of injury,

immediate or future, 1o his person or property and that such [orce was used to:
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~ you must:find the defendant not guilty of Robbery with use of a Deadly Weapon.

INSTRUCTION NQ. é _
If_y'ou ‘aré not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant used a deadly

weapon in the commission of an unlawful taking of personal property from the person of

(1) Obtain orretain possession of the property,
(2) To prevent orovercome résistance to the-taking of the property, or

(3) To facilitate escape with the property,
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INSTRUCTIONNO, 7

You are here to determine whether the defendant is not guilty or guilty from the evidence

in the case. You are not ¢alled upon t6 return a verdict as 10 the guilt of any other person. ‘So, if
the evidénce in the case convinces you beyond a reasonable doubt of the guilt of the Deféndant,

you should so find, even though you may believe one or more persons are-also guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. g

The evidence which you are to consider in this case consists of the testimony of the

witnesses, the exhibits, and any facts admitted or agreed to by ¢ounsel.

There are two types ‘'of evidence; direct and circumstantial, Direct evidence is the
teslimony of a person who claims to have personal knowledge of the commission of the
crime which has been charged, such as-an eyewitniess. Circumstantial evidence is:the proaf

of a chain of facts and circumstances which tend to show whether the Defendant is guilty or

not guiity. The iaw makes no distinction between the weight to be given either direct or

circumstantial evidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the case, inc'_l'ud_:ing the
¢ircumstantial evidence, should be consideréd by you in arriving at your verdict,

Statements, arguments and opinions of counsel are not evidence in the case.

- However, if the attorneys stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must accept the stipulation

~ as evidence and regard that fact as proved.

You must not speculate to be true any insinuations suggested by a question asked a

witnéss. A questien is not evidence and may be considered only as it supplies meaning to

the answer.

You musi disregard any evidence 1o which an objection was sustained by the court
and any evidence ordered stricken by the court,

Anything you may have seen or heard outside the courtreom is not evidence and must

also be disregarded.,
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INSTRUCTION NO. 9 |

Before you may fely on circumstantial evidence to-conclude that fact necessary to find

the defendant guilty has been proved, you must be convinced that the State has proved each faet
essential to that conclusion beyond a reasonable doubt.

Also. before you may rely on eircumstantial evidence to find the defendant guilty, you

must be convinced that the only reasonable conclusion supported by the circumistantial evidence

is that the defendant is guilty, If you can draw two or mote reasonable conclusions from the

circumstantial evidence and one of those reasonable conclusions points to innocence and anather

1o guilt, you must accepl the one that points to innocence. However, when considering

¢ircumstantial evidence, you must accept only reasonable conélusions and reject any that are-

unrcasonable.
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INSTRUCTION NO,_/©
The credibility or believability of a witness should be determined by his or her
manrer upon the stand, his or her relationship to- the parties, his or her fears, motlives,
interests or feelings, his or her opportunity to have observed the matter to which he or she
testified, the reasonableness of his or her statements and the strength or weakness of his or
her recollections.
If you belicve that a witness has lied about any material fact in the case, you may
disregard the entire testimony of that witness or any portion of his or her testimony which is

not proved by other evidence.
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INSTRUCTIONNO._ /7 |

Robbery is the unlawful taking of petsonal property from the person of another, or in
his presence, against his will, by means of force or violence or fear of injury, immediate or
future, to his person or property. Such force or fear must be used to:

(1)  Obtain or retain possession of the property,

(2)  To prevent or overcome resistance to the taking of the property, or

(3)  To facilitate escape with t-hc.-pro_pe_rty;

In any case the degree of force is immaterial if used to compel acquiescence to the
taking of or escaping with the property.

The value of property or money taken is not an elemeént of the crime of robbery, and it

is only necessary that the State prove the taking of some property or money.

1518




“a Oy v B LE RS

INSTRUCTIONNO. __/ 2~

It is unnecessary 1o prove both violence and intimidation. If the fact be attendéd with

circumnstaiices of terrar, such threalening word or gesture as in common experience is likely to

create an apprehension of danger and induce a man to part with his property for the safety of his

person, it is robbery. It is not necessary to prove actual fear, ds the law will presume. it in such

" case,

in order to constilute robbery, the taking must be accomplished either by force. or
intimidation, this element being the gist and distinguishing chatacteristic of the offense; but there

need not be force and intimidation, citheér being sufficient without the othér.
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1 INSTRUCTION NO._/-3
5 You are instructed that if you find a defendant guilty of Robbery, you must also
3 | determine whether ornot a-deadly weapon was used in the:commission of this crime.
4 If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that a defendant committed Robbery. with the
5 || use of a deadty weapon, then you are instructed that the verdict of Robbery With the Use of a
6 || Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict,
7 If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of the
8 || Robbery, but you do find beyond a reasonable doubt-that the Robbery was committed, then
g | you are instructed that the verdict of Robbery is the appropriate verdict.

10 You are instructed that you cannot return a verdict of both Robbery With the Use of a
11 || Deadly Weapon and Robbery;
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INSTRUCTION NO. / 2
As used in these instructions, a “deadly weapon” means:
(1) Any instrument wh"i'gh,. if used in the ordinary manner contemplated by it design
and coristriction, wilt or is li'_k.ely- to cause substantial bodily harm oOr death;
OR
(2) Any weapon, device, instrument, material or substance which, under the
circumstances in which it is used, attlempted to be used or threatened to be used, is

readily capable of causing substantial bodily harm or death.
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INSTRUCTION NO,_//
As used in these iristructions, "substantial bodily harm"” means:
I. Bodily injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes serious,
permanent disfigurement or protracted loss orimpairment of the function of any bodily
member or organ; or

2. Protonged physical pain,
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INSTRUCTION NO.

The Staté is not required to have recovered the deadly wedpon used in an alleged

crime, -or to produce the deadly weapon in court at trial, 1o cstablish that a deadly weapon
was used in the commission of the crime.

However, you must still find beyond a reasonable doubt that a deadly weapon was

used in the commission of the robbery.,
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INSTRUCTIONNO. ¢ 7

In order to "use” a deadly weapon, there need not be conduct which actually praduces

harm but only conduct which produces. a fear of harm or force by means or display of the

deadly weapon in aiding the commission of the crime.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. /6

The flight of a person after the commission of a c¢rime is not sufficient in itseif lo

establish guilt; however, if flight is proved, it is circumstantial evidence in determining guilt
or innocence.

The essence of Right embodies the idea of deliberately going away with |

consciousness of guilt and for the purpose of avoiding apprehension or prosecution. The

weight to which such circumstance is entitled is a matter for the jury to determine:
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INSTRUCTION NO. / Q |

Although. you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you
must bring to the consideration of the evidence your everyday common sense and judgment
as'-.rcasonabllefmen and women. Thus, you ar¢ not limited selely to what you sé¢ and hear as
the witnésses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel
are justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferénces should
not be based on speculation or guess.

A verdict miay never be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your
decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with

these ruies of law.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. £ ©.
In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of punishment, as |
“that {s a matter which lies solely with the court. Your duly is confined to the determination

of whether the Defendant is guilty or not-guilty,
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{2) read, watch, or listen lo any news or media accounts or commentary about the

(4) make any investigation, t1est a théory ‘of the case, re-create any aspect. of the case,
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INSTRUCTION NO,_ </
During the course of this trial, and your deliberations, you are not to:
(1) communicate with anyone in any way regarding this case or its miériis-gither by

phone, text, Internet, or other means;
case;
(3)do any research, such as consulting dictionaries, using the Intcrnet, or using

reference materials;

or in any other way. investigate or learri about the case on your own.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _ 2~
It is a constitutional right of a defendant in a criminal trial thﬁl; he may not be compelied
to testify. Thus, the decision as to whether he should testify: s left to the defendant on the advice
and counsel of his atlorney. You must not.draw any inference of guilt from the fact that he does

not testify, nor should {his fact be discussed by you.or enter into your deliberations in any way.
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INSTRUCTION NO._ % =

I, during your deliberation, you should desire to be further informed on any point of
law or hear again portions of the testimony, you must reéduce your request to writing signed
by the foreperson. The officer will then return you to court where the information sought
will be given you in the presence of, and afier notice to; the district dttorney and the
Defendant and his counsel.

Playbacks of testimony are time-consuming and are not encouraged unless you deem
it-a necessity. Should you require a playback, you must carefully describethe. testimony to
be played back so that the court recorder can arrange her notes. Remember, the court is not

at liberty 1o supplement the evidence:
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2§
When you relire to consider your verdict, you must select ‘'one of your member to act
as foreperson who will preside over your deliberation and will be your spokespérson here in

court.

During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into

evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict ‘which have been prepared for your
convenience,
Your verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have agréed upon a verdict, have it

signed and dated by your foreperson and then retuin with it to'this room.
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INSTRUCTION NO, 2~

Now you will listen-to the argumerits of counsel who will endeaver 1o aid you to reach
a proper verdict by refreshing in your minds the evidence and by showing the application
thereof to the law; but, whatever counsel may say, you will bear in mind that it is your duty
to be governed in your deliberation by the evidence as you understand it.and remember it to
be and by the law. as. given to you in these instructions, with the sole, fixed and steadfast

purpose of doing equal and exact justice between the Defendant and the State of Nevada,

STRICTJUDGE ¢

ﬂW(Z 2014 CIVEN: ﬂQ—‘/ 7% %7;& |
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ORIGINAL

FILED IN OPEN coup:
==Y IN OPEN counpT
| gg EVEND, GRIERso%RT
LERK OF THE COURT

NOV 17 20
DISTRICT COURT o --
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA  “ARCLDONARGG, 5Enpes
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, CASENO. 314260
Ve DEPT. NO. VI

ALFRED C. HARVEY,

Defendant.

PROPOSED JURY INSTRUCTIONS NOT USED AT TRIAL
Attached hereto are the Defendant's Proposed Jury Instructions which were
offered to the Court, but not submitted to the Jury in the above entitied action.

DATED: This 17" day of November 2018.

Steven. D. Grierson, Cierk of the Couft

Carol Donahoo, Deputy Clerk

" C-16-314260-1
PN
Propaded Jury fistztions ot Used Al Trl:

o

§:AMy Documents\Proposed-Jury Inst Not Used.doct1/22/2018
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INSTRUCTION NO.

In deciding the facts of this case you may have to decide which witnesses to believe and
which witnesses not 1o believe. Youmay believe eveiything a witness says, only part of it or
none of it.

Ih considering the weight or value of the testimony. of any witness you may consider the
appearance, attifude and behavior of the witness when test i-fying_ and a number of other things
including:

1. The witnesses ability to sce or hiear or know of the things the witness testifies;

2. The quality of the witness’s memory;

3. The inclination of the witness ta speak truthfully;

4, Whether or not the wilness has any interest in the outcome of the case or any motive,

bias or prejudice;

5. Whether the witness is contradicted by anything the witness said or wrote before trial;

and.

6, How.reasonable is the wiiness’s testimony When considered with other-evidence

which you believe.

In deciding whether or ot to believe a w’in"icss, keep in mind people sometimes forget
things. You need to consider whether a contradiction is an innocent lapse of memeory or an

intentional falsechood, and that may depend on whether it has to do with an important fact or with

only a small detail.

The weight or value of evidence does not necessarily depend-on the number of witnesses
testifying for one side. You must consider all 1he-evidence and you may decide the testimony of
a smaller number of witnesses on one side' has mote weight or value than that presented by the

targer number of witnessés on the other side.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

Every person charged with the commission of a crime shail be présumed innocent tinless
the contrary is proved by competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt.

The burden is on the State to prove beyend 'a reasonable doubt that the defendant
committed an unlawful taking of personal property to wit: miscellaneous. clothing items from the
person of another, or in his presence, against his will, by means of force or violence or fear of
injury, immediate or future, to his person or property and that such force was used to:

(1) Obtain or retain possession of the property;

(2) To prevént or overcome resistance 10 the taking of the property, or

(3)-To facilitate escape with the property
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INSTRUCTION NO.
Petit Jarceny is the intentional stealing, taking, carrying away or driving away personal
'goodsj with a value of less than $650, with the specific intent to permanently deprive the owner

ol said property.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

When a person is accused of comm_itt'in_g._.a__pan_icular erime and at-the same time and by

the same conduct may have committed another offense of lesser. grade or degree, the latter is

with respect to the former, a lesser included offense,

If you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is uilty of the
offetise charged, he may, however be found guilty of any lessér included offense, if the evidence
is sufficient to establish guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of the lesser included offense.

The offense of Robbery necessarily includes the lesser offense of petit larceny. You are

“inistructed that if you dre not convinced beyond a réasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty of

Robbery, you may- find the defendant guilty of Robbery, if you so find beyond a reasonable

doubt.

You are instructed that you may only mark oné box on the verdict form.

10
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_Electronically Filed
11/16/2016 09:55:07 AM

‘PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER (ﬁ@.i%«m—

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

JASMIN D. SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 11635

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Strget, Suitc 226

Las Végas, Nevada 89155

Telephore: (702) 455-4683

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112

‘CLERK OF THE COURT

Lillyjd@clarkcountyny.gov

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
v. % DEPT. NO. VIlI
ALFRED C. HARVEY,. %
Defendant, _ §

DEFENDANT'S PROPOSED JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND VERDICT FORM
COMES NOW, the Defendant, ALFRED C. HARVEY, by and through JASMIN
D. SPELLS, Deputy Public Defender and hereby submits his proposed juty instructions.
DATED this- 16™ day of November, 2016

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK: COUNTY PURLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin Spells
JASMIN D, SPELLS, #11635
Deputy Public Defender
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INSTRUCTION NO.

You are here to-detérmine whether the defendant is not guilty or guilty from the evidence
iri the-case. You are not called upon to returna verdict as to the guilt of any other person. So, if

the.evidence in the case convinces you beyond a reasonable doubt of the guilt of the Defendant,

-you should so find, even though you may believe one or more persons are also guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO.
In deciding the facts of this case you may Have to decide which witnessgs to betieve and
which witnesses not to believe. You may believe everything a witness says, only part of'it or
none ofit.

In considering the-weight or value of the testimony of-any witness-you may consider the

“appearance, atlitude and behavior of the witness when testifying and a munber of otlier fhings

including;

1. The witnesses ability to see or hear of know ‘of the things the witness testifies;

2. The quality of the witness’s. memory;

3. The inclination of the witness to speak truthfully;

4. ‘Whether or not the withess has-any interest.in the outcome of the case or any motive,

bias or prejudice;

5. ‘Whether the witness is contradicted by anything the witness said-or wrote before trial;

and

6. How reasonable is the witness’s testimony when considered with other evidence

which you believe.

In deciding whether or not to believe a witness, keep in mind people sometimes forget
things. You need to consider whether a contradiction is an innocett lapse of memory or an
intentional falsehood, and that may depend on whether it has to do with an important fact or with
only a small detail.

The weight or vatue of evidence does not necessarily depend on the number of witnesses
testifying for one side. You must consider all the evidence and you may decide the testimony of
a smalfer number of witnesses on one side has more weight or valug than that presented by the

larger number of witnesses on the other side.

1542




—

INSTRUCTION NO.
It is a constitutional right of a defendant in a criminal trial that he may not be compelled
to testify. Thus, the'decision as to whether he should testify is left to the defendant on the advice
and counsel of his attorney. You must not draw any inference of guilt from the fact that hie does

not testify, nor should this fact be discussed by you or enter into your (ic]ibe;‘at-io11's inany way.
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INSTRUCTION NO, .
Thie flight,.or absence of flight, of a person immediately after the alleged commission of a
crime' is not in itself sufficient to establish guilt or lack of guilt; it is bowever, a circumstance
which may be considered in reaching your verdict, The weight which should be placed on this

circumstance is left entirely to the jury.
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INSTRUCTION NO.
It is unnecessary to prove both violence and intimidation. if the fact be attended with

circumstances of terror, such threatening word or gesture as in.common experience is likely to

create an apprehension of danger and induce a man to.part with his property for the safety of his

person,-it is robbery. It is not necessary to prove actual fear, as the law will presume it in such
case.

In order to constitute robbery, the taking must be accomplished either by force or
intimidation, this element being the gist and distinguishing characteristic of the offense: but there

need not be force and intimidation, either being sufficient without the other.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. ________

Every person charged with the commission of a crime shall be presumed innocent unless
the contrary is :pr(')ved"'b y competent evidence beyond a 1‘cns_6nable__ doubt.

The burden is on the State to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant
committed an unlawful taking of personal property “specifically, miscellancous clothing items”
from the petson of another, or in his presence, against his will, by means of force or violence ot
fear of injury, immediate or future, to his person or property and that such force was used to:

(1) Obtain or retain possession of the propetty,

(2) To prevent or overcome resistance to the taking of the propeity, or

(3) To facilitate escape with the property,

you must find the defendant not guiity of Robbery.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

if’ you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant used @ deadly
weapon i1 the commission of an unlawful taking of personal property “specifically,
miscellaneous clothing items™ from the person of another, or in his presence, against his will, by
means of force or violence or fear of injury, immediate or fiitute, to.liis person or propeity and
that suchi force was used to:

(1) Obtain-or retain possession of the property,

(2) To prevent or overcome resistance 1o the taking of the property, or

(3) To facilitate escape with the property,

you must find the defendant not guilty of Robbery with use of a Deadly Weapori.
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INSTRUCTION NO.
Petit larceny is the intentiorial stealing, taking, carrying away ei-drjving away personal

goads with 4 valie of Less than.$650, withi the specific infent to permanently deprive the owner

I of said property.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. .

When.a person is accused of committing a particular crime and at the same time and by

the same conduct may have committed another offense of lesser grade or degree, the latter is
with respect to the former, a lesser included offense.

If you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty of the

offensc chargcd’,_ he may, however be: found _g_uil_t_-y-of. any lesser included offense, if the evidence-

is sufficient to-cstablish guilty-beyond areasonable doubt-of the lesser-included offense,

The offense of Robbery necessarily includes the lesser offense of petit larceny. You are
instiucted that if you are not convinced beyond a reasonable-doubt that the defendant is guiity off
Robbery, vou may find the defendant guilty of Robbery, if you so find beyond a reasonable
doubt,

You are instructed that you may enly mark one box on the verdict form.
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INSTRUCTIONNO.

Human memory is not fo’olpi’t}of.' Research has revealed that human memory is not like a

video recording that a witness neced only replay to remember what happened, Memoty is far
more complex. The process of 1'cmemberin_g consists of three stages; acquisition — the
peiception of the origihal evert; retention — the petiod of time that passes between the event and
the eventual recolicction of a piece of information; and retrieval —the stage during which a
person recalls stored information, At each.of these stages, memory can be affected by a variety

of factors.
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INSTRUCTION NO. |
If the evidence permits two reasonable interpretations, one of which peints to the

Defendant’s guilt and the' other to the Defendant being mot guilty, you must adopt the

interpretation that points to the Defendant being not guilty, and reject that interpretation: that

points to his guilt.

If, on the other hand,.one interpretation of this evidence appears to you to be reasonable-

_and the otheér interpretation 1o be unreasonable, you must accept the reasonable intérpretation and

reject the unreasonable.
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INSTRUCTION NO..

Before you may rely on circumstantial evidence to conclude. that fact necessary to find
the defendant guilty has been proved, you must be convinced that the State has proved each fact
essential to that conclusion beyond a reasonable doubt.

Also before you may rely on circumstantial evidence to find the defendant guilty, you
must be convinced that the only reasonable conclusion supperted by 1he circumstantial evidence
is that the defendant is guilty. If you can draw two or mere reasonable conclusions from the
circumstantial evidence and one of those reasonable conclusious points to inocence and another
to -guilt, you must accept the one ‘that points to innocehce. However, when considering
circumstantial evidence, you must accept only reasonable ¢onclusions and -rejéct arly that are

unreasonable.
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Case No; C-16-314260-1
ALFRED C. HARVEY, Dept Nox VilE
Defendant,

VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitied case, find the Defendant ALFRED C, HARVEY, as

follows:
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

™ Not Guilty

1 Guilty of Robbery with use of a deadly weapon
1 Guiity of Robbery
O

Guilty of Petit Larceny

DATED this. day of November, 2016

FOREPERSON
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'CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE
A copy of the above and foregoing DEFENDANT'S PURPOSED JURY
INSTRUCTIONS AND. VERDICT FORM was served via. electronic e-filing to. the District

A'ttomey"s Office at Motionsuclarkcountyda.com on this 16th.day of November, 2016,

By:./s/ Kristing Bvrd. _
Secretary, Clark County Public Defender
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Electronically Filed
4/17/2018 3:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson

) CLERK OF THE COU
OPPS C&Zm—a“ 'ﬁ;“"“‘"

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BRYAN SCHWARTZ

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013244

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-Vvs- , CASENO: C-16-314260-1

ALFRED C. HARVEY, .
#7013008 DEPT NO: | VIII

Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENRD]%g’(I)‘iQSDMOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE

DATE OF HEARING: APRIL 30, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through BRYAN SCHWARTZ, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to
Reconstruct the Record.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and ora] argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

I
//

N

/

W:\2016\2016F\050M\1 6F05049-OPPS-(HARVEY _ALFRED)-004.DOCX
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On April 1, 2016, the State filed a Criminal Complaint against Alfred C. Harvey

(hereinafter “Defendant™) charging him with Robbery with use of a Deadly Weapoh. On April
18, 2016, the preliminary hearing was held in justice court. At the conclusion, the justice court
held Defendant to answer the above charges in district court.

On April 20, 2016, Defendant was arraigned in District Court on the above count.
Defendant subsequently pled not 1gui1ty. On November 15, 2016, the jury trial began. On
November 18, 2016, the jury found Defendant guilty of Robbery. On March 8, 2017, the
Court sentenced Defendant to a minimum of 36 months and a maximum of 144 months in the
Nevada Department of Corrections. His Judgment of Conviction was subsequently filed on
March 17, 2018.

On April 10, 2018, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal. The case was subsequently
remanded for defense counsel to withdraw and the public defender was appointed.! On April
5, Defendant filed the instant Motion for New Trial. The State opposes as follows.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS
On March 30, 2016, Defendant entered T.J. Maxx with his two children, stole various

itemS, and left the store. Loss prevention officer Julian Munoz observed Defendant picking
up items and concealing them on his person; Defendant’s actions were also captured on video
by the T.J. Maxx surveillance system. Transcript of Proceedings, Jury Trial —Day 2, 11/16/16,
pg. 14-31 (attached as “Exhibit 1”). After Defendant and his two children exited the store
without paying for the items, Munoz approached Defendant, identified himself, and asked for
the merchandise back. Id. at 36. In response, Defendant stated that he put the merchandise
back in the store. Id. at 37. Munoz responded that he wanted the wallets out of his coat, which
Defendant handed over. Id. Munoz then asked Defendant to step back in the store with him.
Id. However, Defendant refuses. Id. Munoz again asks him to step inside the store. Id. at

39. Defendant then reached into his pocket and pulled out a knife, raised it above his head,

IThe public defender was trial counsel, however Defendant retained different counsel initially for his appeal.

2
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and stated, “We’re not doing anything today.” Id. Once Defendant pulled out the knife,

Munoz stopped, retreated back towards the store, and called the police. Id. at 41. Defendant
then got into a U-Haul with his children, and fled from the area. Id. at 41-43. Munoz was able
to maintain a visual on the U-Haul as Defendant backed out of the parking lot, and provided
the police with the Defendant’s license plate number. Id. at 43. As Defendant is fleeing,
Shaun Bramble, a fellow loss prevention officer, responded to assist Munoz. Id. at 42, Munoz
immediately told Shaun that Defendant has a knife. Id.

Errol Appel was in the same shopping center that day. Id. at 128. He observed Munoz
and Bramble outside the store, and further observed Defendant and his children running
toward a U-Haul van. Id. at 129-31. vAppel approached Munoz and Bramble in his vehicle
and asked what was going on. Id. at 130. Munoz told him that he had just been held up at
knife point, indicating toward the Defendant and the U-Haul van. Id. In response, Appel
followed the U-Haul van. Id. at 131. During the pursuit, Appel called the police and updated
them on his location and what was happening. Id. at 132. Appel described Defendant driving
“[v]ery recklessly and very disregard for a lot of people.” Id. at 133. Appel continued
following Defendant until he came to a stop, a few miles away, in front of a school.. 1d. at 137.
Appel observed the Defendant exit the vehicle, and run toward the school, however the front
doors were locked, so he ran back to the U-Haul. Id. at 137-38. At that point, the police had
arrived. Id. at 138.

At this point, officers arrived and arrested the Defendant. Id. at 174. Subsequently,
several items were recovered from the U-Haul van. Id. at 166-67. Many of the items were
merchandise that Munoz had observed Defendant steal from T.J. Maxx that day. Id.

Defendant’s wife subsequently testified and acknowledged that she, the Defendant, and |
her children had driven to T.J. Maxx in a U-Haul truck that day. Id. at 204. She testified that
she stayed in the van while Defendant and her children had gone inside. Id. at 205. She further
testified that she observed loss prevention officers running after Defendant as he entered the

van after leaving the store. Id. at 211.

W:\2016\2016F\050\dS\ 6F05049-OPPS-(TRVEY ALFRED)-004.DOCX
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ARGUMENT

L THIS COURT SHOULD DENY DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW
TRIAL

Defendant requests a new trial because of a jury question regarding the definition of
“Robbery.”

Pursuant to NRS 176.515(3), “a motion for new trial based on néwly discovered
evidence may bé_made within 2 years after the verdict or finding of guilty.” The Névada
Supreme Court set forth additional requirements for a new trial based on newly discovered
evidence: “the evidence must be (1) newly discovered, (2) material to Defendant’s defense,
(3) such that it could not with reasonable diligence have been discovered and produced for the
trial, (4) not cumulative, (5) such as to render a different result probable upon retrial, (6) that
it does not attempt only to contradict a former witness or impeach or discredit him, unless the
witness to be impeached is so important that a different result must follow, and (7) that these
facts be shown by the best evidence the case admits.” McLemore v. State, 94 Nev. 237, 239-
40, 577 P.2d 871, 872 (1978).

Defendant fails to demonstrate the above requirements as set forth by the Nevada
Supreme Court. Most importantly, Defendant fails to show that this newly discovered
“evidence” wciuld iender a different result probable upon retrial. Defendant merely claims
that it is probable that he would have been found not guilty because defense counsel would
have requested numerous additional instructions be given to the jury. To start, the court has
wide discretion in responding to questions from the jury and properly instructed the jury that
it “is not at liberty to supplement the evidence.” Defense Exhibit C. More importantly,
Defendant fails to show a probability of a different result at a retrial because there is no new
evidence to be presented to the jury. This new “evidence” has nothing to do with the actual
evidence presented at trial, including (1) the video surveillance showing Defendant stealing
merchandise inside T.J. Maxx, (2) the victim identifying Defendant as stealing property inside
the store, leaving without paying, then pulling out and raising a knife at him when he
approached the Defendant, (3) the witness who followed the Defendant as the Defendant ﬂed
in a U-Haul van, or (4) the officers who apprehended Defendant in the U-Haul van and

4
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recovered T.J. Maxx merchandise from inside. The mere fact that defense counsel would have

suggested instructions and definitions does not make a different result probable at trial.
CONCLUSION
Therefore, the State requests that the Court DENY Defendant’s Motion for New Trial

and Evidentiary Hearing.

DATED this day of April, 2018.
Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565
7

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion To Reconstruct
the Record, was made this ):MA day of April, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

Kelli DeVaney-Sauter, Deputy Public Defender
Kelli.DeVaney-Sauter@ClarkCountyNV.gov

e
%
Secretary for t istrict Attorney's Office
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CLERK OF THE COU
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BRYAN SCHWARTZ

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013244

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 8§9155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-VS- CASE NO: C-16-314260-1

ALFRED C. HARVEY, .
47013008 | DEPT NO: VIII

Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENRDﬁgg;QSDMOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE

DATE OF HEARING: APRIL 30, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through BRYAN SCHWARTZ, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Motion To'
Reconstruct The Record.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On April 1, 2016, the State filed a Criminal Complaint against Alfred C. Harvey

(hereinafter “Defendant™) charging him with Robbery with use of a Deadly Weapon. On April
18, 2016, the preliminary hearing was held in justice court. At the conclusion, the justiée court
held Defendant to answer the above charges in district court.

On April 20, 2016, Defendant was arraigned in District Court on the above count.
Defendant subsequently pled not guilty. On November 15, 2016, the jury trial began. On
November 18, 2016, the jury found Defendant guilty of Robbery. On March 8, 2017, the
Court sentenced Defendant to a minimum of 36 months and a maximum of 144 months in the
Nevada Department of Corrections. His Judgment of Conviction was subsequently filed on
March 17, 2018.

On April 10, 2018, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal. The case was subsequently_
remanded for defense counsel to withdraw and the public defender was appointed.! On April
5, Defendant filed the instant Motion to Reconstruct the Record. The State opposes as follows.

ARGUMENT

L THE COURT SHOULD DENY DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO
RECONSTRUCT THE RECORD

“The trial court record consists of the papers and exhibits filed in the district court, the
transcripts of the pr()_é:eedings, if any, the district court minutes, and the docket entries made
by the district court clerk.” Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure (NRAP) Rule 10(a). To be
appropriately included in the record on appeal “[a]ll documents ... shall bear the file-stamp of
the district court clerk, clearly showing the date the document was filed in the proceeding
below.” NRAP 30(c)(1). Further, appellate courts may not consider matters outside the
record. Carson Ready Mix, Inc. v. First National Bank of Nevada, 97 Nev. 474, 476, 635 P.2d
276, 277 (1981) (“We have no power to look outside of the record of a case. We have

consistently recognized this limitation.”) (quotation marks and internal citations omitted).

'The public defender was trial counsel, however Defendant retained different counsel initially for his appeal.
2 B
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The Nevada Supreme Court has previously addressed situations when it may be
appropriate to reconstruct or modify the record.? For instance, when the trial proceedings are
not preserved or recorded, reconstruction may be appropriate. Lopez v. State, 105 Nev. 68,

85, 769 P.2d 1276, 1287 (1989); Phillips v. State, 105 Nev. 631, 634, 782 P.2d 381, 383

(1989). Additionally, correcting and modifying a trial record may be necessary if it appears
that the record includes an inaccurate translations. Ouanbengboune v. State, 125 Nev. 763,

770-71,220 P.3d 1122, 1126-27 (2009).

Here, Defendant requests that this Court order a reconstruction of the record regarding
the jury instruction. However, this would be inappropriate because there was no hearing to
reconstruct. In féct, Defendant is asking this Court to create a record of something that did
not happen. The record is what if is — if something did not occur, then there is no record of 1t
As it stands now, thér'e is nothing inaccurate about the record that needs to be modified or
corrected.

CONCLUSION

Therefore, the State requests this Court DENY Defendant’s Motion to Reconstruct the

Record.

DATED this_ 8" day of May, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565 ,

2Defendant relies on this case law to suggest to this Court that reconstruction is appropriate in this case, however the
cited case law does not refer to a situation with similar facts to the present case.

3
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I hereby certify that
the Record, was made this

BS/mah/L1

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

servicg of State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Reconstruct
2 4(} day of May, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

Jasmin D. Spells, Deputy Public Defender
Lillyjd@clarkcountynv.gov

N0

M. HERNA
Secretary for istrict Attorney's Office
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4/23/2018 4:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
RPLY | Cﬁ.‘u—f‘ ,ﬁu
PHILIP J. KOHIN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

SHARON G. DICKINSON, CHIEF DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 3710

JASMIN D. SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 11635

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE
309 Seuth Third Street, Suite 226
Lag Vegas, Nevada 89155

Tele hone (] 02) 455-4588
Facsnnlle (702) 383-2849
Attorneys for Defendam‘

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. DEPT. NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, | -
_. DATE: 04/30/18
Defendant, TIME: 08:00 a.m.

DEFENDANT'S REPLY TO STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S
MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORD AND MOTION ASKING

TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE A DECISION IN THIS MATTER
COMES NOW, the Defendant, Alfred Harvey, by and through his
attorneys, JASMIN SPELLS and SHARON G. DICKINSON, Deputy Public
Defenders, and respectfulljhz files this Reply asking this Honorable court to d_ire&

this motion be heard by the trial judge, Judge Bixler, to reconstruct the record

regarding the jury note found in the District Court Evidence Vault and asks for an

Evidentiary Hearing; This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and
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pleadings on file herein, the attached Declarations.of Counsel, and oral argument at -

the time set for hearing this Motion.

DATED this 23 day of April, 2018.
PHILIP J. KOHN |
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharon G. Dickinson

SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

State contends there is no hearing, no record, nor something happening to

reconstruct.

However, State is incorrect because there is something to reconstruct: the
trial record contains no information on how Court Exhibitl became Court Exhibit
1. Alfred Harvey’s trial attorneys have no knowledge of the jury note or the
process undertaken that allowed the deliberating jury to receive the response typed
on the top. of the note. State appears also to have no knowledge of Court Exhibit 1.
Therefore, there is somsthing to reconstruct because Court Exhibit 1 did not
become part of the district court record miraculously — someone put it there and
something occurred for it to ecome Court Exhibit 1.

NRAP 10( c)’-provideé Ithat:

if any difference arises as to whether the -trial_ court
record truly discloses what occurred in the district
court, the difference shall be submitted to and setiled by

that court and the trial court record made to conform to
the truth. (Emphasis added)

In view of this, the district court has the authority to reconstruct the record to

explain how Court Exhibit 1 became part of the district court record.

- 1566




0 At the hearing on April 16, 2018, district court told the parties that he had-

spoken to the trial judge, Judge Bixler, and Judge Bixler did not remember
anything about Court Exhibit 1,

In light of Judge Bixler not remembering the jury note, Alfred Harvey
asks for an evidentiary hearing to determine how the jury note was made part
of the district court file.

Accordingly, Alfred asks the court to hold an evidentiary hearing and allow
testimony from court staffs present -du_ring time the j'ur_y ‘was d‘e.l-iberatin_g:

1. Court Marshall, Tom

2.. Court Clerk, Phyllis Irby

3. Court Clerk, Carol Donahoo

4. Court Recorder, Jill Jacoby

5. Any other person involved with the jury note
See Exhibit K: Court minutes for November 17 and November 18, 2016; Exhibit
L:"November 17, 2016, transcript; Exhibit M: November 18, 2016, transcript.

An evidentiary hearing is necessary for Alfred to proceed with his case in
the Nevada Supreme Court because how the bailiff and court staff interacted with
the deliberating jury may warrant a new trial and may be-an issue on appeal
warranting reversal. Lamb v. State, 127 Nev. 26, 43-46 (2011). In Lamb, when the

jury sent a note, the bailiff did not inform anyonme, taking it upon himself to
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Il respond by telling the jurors to read- the- jury “instructions. The bailiff’s actions~ -

were in direct violation of NRS 175.391 and NRS 175.451.

In Manning v. State, 348 P.3d 1015 (Nev. 2015), the Nevada Supreme Court
found constitutional error violating due process when a trial court failed to notify
and seek input from the parties after receiving a note from the jury that it was
deadlocked.

Because Alfred intends to argue that reversible error occurred by court
instructing the jury without giving his attorney’s input, he seeks an. evidentiary
hearing to reconstruct the trial record.

In view of the above, Alfred Harvey asks this court to grant his motion and
reconstruct the record of his trial so that he has a record as to what occurred with

the jury note.
DATED this 23" day of April, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharom G. Dickinson |
SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells |
JASMIN D.-SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender

5.
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~ CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE.
1 hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was.

served via electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at

motionsiielarkeountyda.com on this 23 day of April, 2018.

By: _ /s/Carrie M. Connolly
An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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C-16-314260-1

DISTRICT COURT
‘CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES November 17, 2016
(C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada
Vs

Alfred Harvey

November17,2016  10:00 AM Jury Trial

HEARD BY: Bixler, James COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11B
COURT CLERK: Carol Donahoo

RECORDER: Till Jacoby

REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Steve Rose, Dep DA, and Bryan Schwartz, Dep DA, present on behalf of the Stale; Jasmin Spells,
Dep PD, and Kelley Jones, Dep PD, present on behalf of Deft. Harvey, who is also present.

10:00 a.m.- OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF JURY: Jury Instructions and Verdict form settled on the

record,
JURY PRESENT: Court instructed the Jury. Closing arguments by Mr. Rose and Ms. Spells; rebutial
by Mt. Schwartz. At the hour of 12:42 p.m,, the Jury retired to deliberate; Court thanked and excused

the alternates,

For the recotd, Court noted that if the Jury has not reached a Verdict by 5: 00 p.m., the Court will ask
the Marshall te inquire as to whether the Jury is making progress or would preferto take a break and
return in the morning.

/17

PRINT DATE:  12/20/2016 Pagel of 2 Miriutes Date:  November 17, 2016
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¢-16-314260-1

5:00 p.m. The Jury elected to recess and return in the morning at9: 30 a.in. to continue their
deliberations. Therefore, COURT ORDERED, Jury Trial CONTINUED.

CUSTODY

CONTINUED TO: 11/18/16 9:30 AM

PRINT DATE:  12/20/2016 Page2 of 2 Mintiles Date:  November 17,

2016



C-16-314260-1

 DISTRICTCOURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES ~ Novemiber 18, 2016
C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada

V5 _

ALFRED HARVEY _
November 18,2016  9:30 AM Jury Trial

HEARD BY: Bixler; James COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11B
COURT CLERK: Phyllis Irby

RECORDER: Jill Jacoby

REPORTER:

PARTIES | |

PRESENT: HARVEY, ALFRED C Defendant
Jones, Kelley R. Attor_ney-fq_r'_the Deft
Rose, Robert E. Attorney for the State
Schwartz, Bryan A. Attorney for the State
Spells, Jasmin Attorney for the Deft
State of Nevada Plaintiff

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- JURY PRESENT. Verdict reached atthe hour of 11:10 am. The Court thanked and excused the jury:
OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY. The Defense requested te have Judge Bixler do the '
sentencing. The State will provide Powe'rPOint-"a_s- exhibit.

COURT ORDERED, DEFT HELD WITHOUT BAIL. SENTENCING SET,

CUSTODY

1-04-17 8:00 AM SENTENCING (DEPT. VIII)

PRINT DATE:  12/02/2016

Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date:  November 18; 2016
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Steven D. Grierson

"CLERK OF THE GOU
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

)
STATE OF NEVADA, ) o . -
} CASE NO. £314260
L ) |
VS, %
)
ALFRED HARVEY, )
Defendant. %

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JAMES M. BIXLER, SENIOR DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2016

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

JURY TRIAL - DAY 3
APPEARANCES:
For the State: BRYAN S. SCHWARTZ, ESQ.
STEVEN ROSE, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorneys
For the Defendant: JASMIN D. SPELLS, ESQ.

KELLEY R.-JONES, ESQ.
Deputy Public Defenders

RECORDED BY: JILL JACOBY, COURT RECORDER

-

Case Number; C-16-314260:1
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THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2016 AT 10:01 A M.

[Outside the presence of the jury panel]

THE COURT: We are on the record in the State of Nevada versus Alfred
Harvey.

All right. ' We're in the process of setlling instructions, defense has
some proposed instructions that they want inserted into the instruction package.

Do you want to start with number seven?

MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Number seven, proposed instruction, I mean page
seven, from the defense proposed instructions, every person charged with the.
commission of a crime shall be presumed innocent unjess the contrary is proved by
competent evidence beyond a reasonable doubt.

Doesn't the State -- don't we have almost the identical -

MR. ROSE: We have one that's very similar, Your Honor.

The State's issue with this one actually comes on line five. It says
that we have the burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant
‘committed an uniawful taking of personal property to wit. miscellaneous clothing
items, and it's reaily that portion of to wit: miscellaneous clothing items. Because
what this particular instruction is doing is defining the commission of the crime of
robbery, and | think that it should be constrained to the elements of the crime of
robbery. We already have in the charging document what personal property we
think has.been taken or we're alleging has been taken. | don't think that it's

‘appropriate to insert that as if it were an element of this particular offense given
2-
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that the offense itself is simply defined as the taking of personal property from
another person in their presenCe and so on and so forth.

MS. SPELLS: And, Your Honor, this is not a misstatement with regard to this.
lt's a negatively phrased jury instruction which we would presentto the Court that we
are entitled to under Crawford and it also goes to our theory of the case here. It's
what the State has alleged. We used theirexact language out of the information
that they wrote, to wit, and what followed from there so. We would submit to the
Court that' we should be entitled to this.

MR. ROSE: Your Honor, | think page eight is actually the negatively worded
one. If you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt, et cetera. Moreover, |
think, you know, under Crawford it says that, you know, you are not supposed fo
infer from the various instructions what the theory of defense is or what the
argument of defense is. But that if the rest of the instructions do-cover it, if it is
contained within the rest of the instructions, it is not required to give that it inverse,
whether the negatively worded portion of it.

And, again, 1 still think that with, especially with seven in particular, that.
by defining the offense and including a portion of the specific allegations as an
‘element of the offense it does misstate the law because the law itself is simply
personal property. So we think that the State's version, which just has the elements
of the offense in the definition of -- in the instruction which defines the offense as the
more appropriate version particularly given the fact that they are receiving the
information as stated in instruction two. or three, which then sets out the specific
factual allegations.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, the defense disagrees. What we're basically

telling the jury here is that the State does have the burden to prove the allegations
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that they have charged, which are alleged in the information of the case here,

THE COURT: Well, | don't know that it's -- | don't know that it's -~ | don't know
that this is-a necessary definitive on your theory of the case. It's not an inverse
instruction. I'd have to agree. | think that probably the proposed instruction on page
eight is more of an inverse instruction, if you are not convinced beyond a reasonable
doubt. | don't have any problem putting that instruction on page eight, inserting that.
in right after the State's reasonable doubt instruction.

MR. ROSE: And, Your Honor, our primary objection to eight is simply the fact
that it also still includes that language in the portion of this.-- the instruction, which is
defining the elements of the offense and because the elements-of the offense.is not
included in miscellaneous clothing items the element of the offense is personal
property. We think that that has the tendency to confuse the jury-as to that point
and it misstates the law as the law comes to the definition of the term itself.

THE COURT: Well, what's important is that the concept that crime and

bodies as an element, the taking of personal property, that's what the crime of

robbery is. It's not - it doesn't have anything to do with whether it's clothing items or
anything else. [t's just personal property, that's the way the statute defines it.

MR. ROSE: That's correct; Your Honor. And that's why we would prefer the |

State's version, which leaves it at personal property.

MS. SPELLS: And, Your Honor, we would submit all of our earlier arguments

with regard to this. Again, itis a negatively phrased inverse with regard to-our

theory of the defense and with regard to what the State has charged here and they

do have the burden of proof with regard to prover what they have charged. So we
didn't add any additional language, we didr't make up any additional language, we

simply put what they wrote in their information.

1578




10

11

12

13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MR. ROSE: And, Your Honor, we would have no objection to giving this:

instruction if it were to exclude the words, to wit: miscellaneous clothing items and

keep it as a, you know, reverse Crawford instruction or inverse instruction. It's just
our big issue with it is that, our fear is that it redefines the actual elements of the
crime itseif.

THE COURT: Well, | mean, it's kind of difficult to strike out the exact
language that's contained in‘the Information even though it's not definitive of the
crime. It's exactly the language that's in the Information.

MR. ROSE: And itis, Your Honor. Again, our concern is just that because of
the rest of the instruction as it is, is a definition:or is an inversed, | guess, including
the definition.

THE COURT: Well, you -

MR. SCHWARTZ: No other piece-of the allegation is.defined. The person,

Julian Munoz, is in the Information. He's not in this instruction. The only thing that

we're including is now this definition of personall propefty, which is in the information.

They're free to argue all day about it. That information is there. That's.the charging

document.

THE COURT: Here's what we're going to do. I'm not going to-insert it. I'm

going to — | will massage this on page eight, this adverse instruction regarding

reasonable doubt. | don't have any trouble putting that in. And you can argue
anything you want to argue in regards to the personal property aspect of the crime
and the niiscellaneous clothing items is certainly open for your version of your
defense.

MS. SPELLS: So the Court is not admitting it at eight at all?

THE COURT: No, eight I'm letting in.
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MS. SPELLS: Oh, okay.

THE COURT: I'm going to -- | don't have any problem with that. It's an
adverse, if you fail to -

MS. SPELLS: Okay.

THE COURT: -- be convinced beyond a reasonable doubt. And we'll put it
after five; that will become six, and then we'll just renumber the.rest of them:

MR. ROSE: So is it coming in as written, Your Honor or?

THE COURT. Yeah.

MR. SCHWARTZ: ! thought you had said you woulid strike the miscellaneous
clathing item portion because that was what they were going --

THE COURT: No, I'm striking the miscellaneous clothing. I'm not even -- I'm
not inserting -- their page seven, I'm not inserting at all.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And we're talking about page eight has that same
language.

MR. ROSE: Page eight has that same language.

THE COURT: Oh, it does?

MR. ROSE; Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: That was our issue.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. | see what you're talking about.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And we're fine with eight if we just strike that, to wit:
miscellaneous clothing items and keep it consistent with the law as stated.

THE COURT: Okay. | agree with it you completely.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay.

THE COURT: it's just going to be taking of personal property from the person

of another, strikethat part out, and then it's an adverse reasonable doubt instruction.
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because petty larceny as opposed to grand larceny involves the value of property

._:prices;‘ on his T.J. Maxx incident report. And the testimony that went forth was that --

the property that was taken because some of the items were taken by the Defendant]

to all of the items if they'd be less than $500, and 1 think he did answer affirmatively

|or grand larceny, is not a lessor included offense. There's actually a Court of

So somebody's going to have to fix that.

MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honof.

THE COURT: So what will be stricken out is the words, of an unlawful taking
of_-p_'ers_.onaJ property, and then we'll strike out, to wit: miscellaneous clothing items,
and so it will read personal property from the person of another. And that is going to
be instruction six.

Okay. Now, this petty larceny concept. | have heartburn over this

and nobody has even, with the exception of the price tags on a couple of those
items, nobody has ever even mentioned value.

MS. SPELLS: Your Horior, actually we did. | questicned Mr. Munoz on the
stand yesterday with regard to the total of all of the items taken. And | actually

approached the witness with his report and asked him whether or not he had listed
let's see. | wrote it down. But he said less than an amount. And | dor't know if we
went high and | asked him less than $500 or - but he did make a statement with
regard to value.

THE COURT: Well, if I remember his testimony, he only identified a portion of

allegedly after he had left the room with the screen and --

MR. ROSE: And, Your Honor, | think the testimony was asked, you know, as
to that it would be. However, the State's position is that larceny, be it petty larceny

Appeals case from July 27th of this year, that's Naylor v State, N-A-Y-L-O-R, v

7-
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State, Docket Number 69571. It's actually a relatively brief opinion. I'have multiple
copies of it with me. And in there the appellate court stated as follows: we conclude
the District Court did not abuse its discretion. Robbery is a general intent crime that

requires an element of force or intimidation in taking property from a person or

taking property in the presence of a person, whereas larceny is a spegcific intent

crime that does not require force or the presence of that person. Thus, as Naylor's
counsel acknowledged at trial larceny is not a lessor included offense of robbery.
Recause robbery is not a lessor included offense of robbery we would ask that this
not be given because this:along with the one after it, which involves the lessor
included offenses is simply an aggregate because it's not a lessor included offense.
Moreover, under Peck v State, W16 Nevada 840, a lessor related
offense need not be instructed. Moreover, we would object to the instruction on any

lessor related offenses, because the State has had no -- or has not wanted to nor

tried to nor attempted to prove any of these other lessor related offenses. We could |

have done so. We specifically choose ot to. And we would ask that because this
nota lessor included at best it's a lessor related that this instruction not be given. |
have copies of that case for both defense counsel and Your Honor.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, our position would be that it does conform with the
testimony. that has gone forth. It is something that we would be arguing in our
closing arguments. And with regard to the case the Court has the decigion to make
whether it's‘a lessor related or whether it's a lessor included the Court still has the
authority te allow for this jury instruction to go forth. 1f the State has an issue, and is-
indicating that they believe it to. be a lessor related, then we would withdraw jury.
instruction number ten. However, jury instruction number nine would still be on.

THE COURT: Page nine?
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MS. SPELLS: Yes, page nine, | apologize, versus jury instruction of defense
proposed page ten.

THE COURT: Okay. Here's what we're going to do. !'m not - | had
heartburn when | just read.it because it's a.completely different type of offense
between larceny and petty larceny and robbery: You can certainly argue that this is
nothing more than a petty larceny and but - and you can say, and if you find that it's
petty larceny and not anything else, then you just got to find.the Defendant not
guilty.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, the. --

THE COURT: If that's all the evidence indicates to the jury, that there was a

| theft of a'property but there was no force or intimidation utilized, it would amount to

a petty larceny. But he's not charged with petty larceny so you've got to find him

innocent.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, the issue with that is that the jury is not going to
know the definition of petty larceny. This particular jury instruction only gives them
the definition of petty larceny so we can't very well —

THE COURT: You can argue it.

MS. SPELLS: -- argue --

THE COURT: You can argue it all you want.

MS. SPELLS: -- without them knowing value.

THE COURT: You can argue it all you want. | mean, apparently everybody
acknowledges the only testimony in regarding value would make it a petty larceny
not even a grand larceny. And you can argue that but we're not going to confuse.
them by putting this in. It's not a lessor included. | guess, it's a iessor vaguely

related. I'm not putting it in.
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What about the -- when a person has.committed, under page ten.
You've got three other - no, two other pages.

MS. SPELLS: ‘Well, considering the Court's ruling with regard to our page
nine, we would have to just submit it to the Court.

THE COURT: Okay. And we don't use ten either then.

And your circumstantial one-on page 11, is there anything that it
seemed to me like we already have an instruction, don't we?

MR. ROSE: Your Honor, this one -- so this one the State would acknowledge
is an accurate statement of the' law under Supranovich. However, the Court has
made it clear that this is one that is discretionary on the Court. It is neither an abuse
of discretion to give it or to decline to give it. The State's preference would be that.
we not give it. The State's concern is that although it has been approved of in one
particular case that it still has a tendency to confuse the jury, in that it.can invite the.
jury fairly easily to look at any-one piece of evidence and decide does that one piece
of evidence have multiple inferences that be drawn from it, and then looking at that
piece of evidence in solo decide, oh, well, because one of those pieces of
evidence -- or ane of those inférences points towards acquittal and not towards guilt,

we'll assume that piece of evidence tends towards guilt although -- or, sorry, tends

towards acquittal eveh though when you look at all of the evidence together, which

is what they're supposed to do, it makes the multiple inferences that might be drawn
from one piece of evidence more or less reasonable. And that standing alone one
might have two, equally reasonable inferences. But the:in combination: with
everything else it makes ‘some of those inferences more or less reasonable. And we|
just think-that the instruction as written, although, again, an accurate statement of

the law and not an abuse of discretion to give is also not an abuse of discretion not |
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to give it. We would prefer that not be given due to the tendency to or the concern

to confuse the jury as to how they're to look at each piece of evidence both solo and
altogether.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, we --

THE COURT: I'm givenit. | don't think there's anything wrong with it. It's
accurate. We're going to put it.in after proposed seven, between seven and eight.
Seven is the ohe that, the evidence which you are you to consider consists of the

testimony blah, blah, biah, blah, blah. And it touches upon direct and circumstantial

evidence and it- would be appropriate to insert this instruction right after that.

So, now, we're goingto have go back and actually put ink on these
instructions.
MS. SPELLS® Your Honor, we did submiit a verdict form,
THE COURT: Your verdict?
MS. SPELLS: It's an inverse of what the State had. We also included the
guilty of petty larceny, but | do understand the Court's ruling with regards to that.
THE COURT: Okay. We went through it - do you have any objections to

their verdict form? Without the -- without the --

‘MR. ROSE: Your Honor, the State's position is we would prefer to use our

verdict form; really the only difference hetween the two is the ordering of it. And |

believe that given the fact that the State does. have that burden of proof, we do have

to prove all of the elements they will be instructed. And it will be argued to them

| repeatedly about that burden of proof that going from not guilty to guilty of robbery

with use then to guilty of robbery doesn't make as much sense as just following right
down the line with the burden of proaf.

THE COURT: Here's how we're going to do it. | don't have any -- here's how
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we're going to do it. I's going to say, count one, robbery with use of a deadly

weapon. The first choice is going to be not guilty, the second choice is going to be

guilty of robbery, the third choice is going to be guilty of rabbery with use of a deadly

weapon. It's just going to go right down from not guilty, in terms of seriousness, and
the third choice'is goingto-be robb'ery'wi_t_h use of a deadly weapon. So somebody's
going to have to redo those.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, if | may just briefly put on the record the few
things that we had prior fo going on the fecord,

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. SPELLS: And, | believe, that our proposed jury instructions were actuatly
filed so that they would become a part of the record should it -

THE COURT. They will be in just a second. When we - I'm going to go
through and we're going -- | don't even know how many there are. We're going to
make copies and we're going to put numbers on them. So it's one, two -- the sixth
insfruction somebody's going to have to redo and take that language out.

MR. ROSE: I'm working on that now, Your Honor. ['ll e-mail it to the Court in
just a mormient.

THE COURT: 25 instructions, well under my 39 limit, and then there's going
to be a revised verdict form. r
MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honor. I've made the alterations to instruction

number -- | think it's six and to the verdict form. ['ll be e-mailing that to the Court in

Just one moment.

THE COURT: Okay, excellent.
[Colicguy between District Attorney and Defense Counsel]

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, so just briefly a few things. We did speak with

~2-
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Mr. Harvey and he's fine with us adding the jury instruction that's already apart of
the packet indicating that whether or not he testifies is not an area for the jury to
comment on.

Before going on the record, we did discuss a few jury instructions. We
discussed defense proposed jury instruction, which was on page three of that
packet, it was an instruction with regard to credibility. We just submitted ours and
the State also submitted there’s and the Court preferred the shorter version, which is
going to be given in the packet.

Additionally, the defense proposed an alternative --orl apologize -- the
defense did not propose an alternative to the State's, in order to use the deadly
weapon there need not to be conduct which a_ctuall_y prodUc_es harm but only

conduct which produces a fear of harm or force by means or display of the deadly

weapon in aiding in the commission of the crime. Our position was that the Allen

case was hot good case law, that we believe this came out of head note two and

that we believe that that head note was actually overturned. We also indicated to

the Court that these cases were decided before the legislature enacted NRS

193.165, which defines the deadly weapon statute. We indicated to the Court that

we thought that this was duplicitous and not necessary given that we were having a

jury.instruction which did define the deadly weapon statute. And the Court heard

argument and decided to include that in the packet that's being given.

Additionally, the defense proposed an alternative to the State's flight

instruction. Our main coricern was with regard to the last paragraph. We made

largument to the Court that it was our position that that was instructing on kind of the

jury's province and that they had the, as being the trier of facts, it was their

| determination as to -- make a determination as to what they believed the reason of

-13-
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||the flight was, what weight to be given, and how it should be considered in light of

the other factors of the case. The Court heard argument on that.

We-also indicated that many of the cases that were cited by the State in
their proposed jury instruction, which is being given mirrored the language that we
had in ours and so we did prefer ours, which is being, | believe, made a part of the
record as a proposed but not admitted jury instruction.

THE COURT: Kind of going about that kind of half-ass backwards. I'm
supposed to ask you --let me get these numbered.

Are all our jurors here? Even -

THE MARSHAL: There's a note there for you.

THE COURT: Perfect. Our juror ini the number nine spot found a babysitter.
She did not bring her kids to court. So we dodged a bullet.

MR. SCHWARTZ: She didn't trust us with her kids, | guess.

THE COURT.: Apparently not.

MR. ROSE: And I've just sent the instructions to, | think it's the JEA maybe,
Ms. Walsh?

THE COURT GLERK: [indiscernible]

MR. ROSE: Okay. And alsoto defense counsel and to Mr. Schwartz as well,
that's only the two that were amended. It's not the whole packet.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROSE: | can do that if we need to.

And if it looks sketchie, that is a personal e-mail account.
MS. JONES: [t's okay you're not running for president.
MR. ROSE: No, not any time soon.

MS. SPELLS: And, Your Honor, while you're numbering, can we just put

-14-
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not appropriate to make hand gestures to either side. We just warited to put that on.

something on the record.

THE COURT: Ceriainly.

MS. SPELLS: The parties talked about this last night. At this pointwe don't
have a lot of information but we did just want a complete record of some of the
things that did occur. We were informed last night that Mr. Appel was approaching
other witnesses, giving out his business card, things of that nature.. Obvicusly the
admornishment from the Court is not to discuss yourtestimony. So at this point we
don't know the specific natures of those conversations. All we know is that business
cards were handed out. So we just want the record to show that we were informed
of that. We're not requesting that the Court do anything at this particular time.

And the other thing that I did just want to put on the record is that as the
jury was exiting the courtroom yesterday, and | don't believe Mr. Schwartz is still in
the building. | don't know if Mr. Rose was a part of that conversation but we did
discuss that one of the jurors was, in our opinion, waving to the attorneys at the

State's table. If the Court would just, you know, admonish the jurors again that it is

the record -

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SPELLS; --as faras --

MR. ROSE: And, Your Honor, just -- ‘

THE COURT: At this point | don't think there's anything that | can do about it.
| would love to be able to do something about it. But | think that's pretty offensive
and totally out of fine. |

MR. ROSE: And, Your Honor, | think Mr..Schwartz is coming back in right
now. | think he actually had the chance to talk to Mr. Appel briefly about trying to get

-15-
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sorne more information about what was happening. Because the information that
‘we had at the time was not clear as to when the discussion occurred if it was before
or after the testimony of any of the individual parties, et cetera, or what was
discussed. '

And, then, we did speak very briefly about the actions of that particular

juror. | believe, it was, you know, a general wave towards the parties. | don't know

|if it was directed at anybody in particular. [ don't think any parties responded to it,

nobody returned a wave, nobody really did anything else. It might be she just was
simply trying to.be friendly. None of us know her, none us have spoken with her.
So that's just kind of our point.of view on that one.

| don't knowif Mr. Schwartz had the chance to actually taik with Errol.
about his testimony or his -~ not testimony -- his discussions or interactions with any
other withesses before or after his testimony.

MR. SCHWARTZ: |did. l-called him this morning and | just mentioned that
he was not'to be talking about the case with anybody until the case was over, even
the other witnesses. -And he said specifically that he did talk with some of the other
witnesses outside and that he was simply just having chitchat with them about his
job and nothing at all related to case.

THE COURT. Okay:.

MR. ROSE: That's correct. | don't remember what -
MR. SCHWARTZ: It's Ms. Svejda.
[Colloquy between District Attorney and Defense Counsel]
THE COURT: All right. | have 25 instructions. Paula is going to take the

pencil marks off. I've got 25 instructions, plus the revised verdict form.

A6-.
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MR. SCHWARTZ: Are we still on the record, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, we are.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Just for the record, it was juror number ten, Melissa
Svedja.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you.

MR. ROSE: Just because nobody can pronounce her last name.

THE COURT: Okay. So do you want to wait until the copies are all made
before — | imiean, there's 25 instructions, you know which the ones the Court's

improving. Does the defense have any specific objections, other than what you've

already specified as to those 25 instructions?

MS. SPELLS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: | have in front of me instruction, on page three of your

proposed instruction, page nine, page ten, page seven, page eight, page nine of the,
defense proposed instructions that were not given. Do you have any other

proposed instructions that were not given?

MS. SPELLS: Can you go.over those numbers with me again, please.

THE COURT: Well, I'm using the page numbers.

MS. SPELLS: Sure.

THE COURT: Page three.

MS. SPELLS: Yes.

THE COURT: Page seven.

MS. SPELLS: Yes.

THE COURT: Page eight and page nine. Excuse me, seven, nine, and ten.
MS. SPELLS: That's correct.

THE COURT; Okay. Any otherinstructions, proposed instructions; that were:

-17-
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| offered and not given?
MS. SPELLS:
THE COURT: Okay. And have you seen the revised form of verdict, the one.

No, Your Honhaor.

that goes guilty — | mean, not guilty, guilty of robbery, guilty of robbery with use of a

deadly weapon?

MS. SPELLS:
THE COURT:
MS, SPELLS;
THE COURT:
MS. SPELLS:
THE COURT:

| have not seen it but we've discussed it, Your Honor,

‘Okay. So you're familiar with it?

Yes.
Do you have any objections to it?

No.

Okay, As far as the State's concerned, the 25 instructions, do

you have any objections to those 257
MR. SCHWARTZ: No, Your Honor.
MR. ROSE: No, Your Honor. -

THE COURT:

1 have an instruction that's not.on d page. it was originally

pencil marked as State's Proposed 14, prolonged physical pain necessarily

encompasses some physical suffering, that's the instrfuction that the State offered

that | declined to give, include. Do you have any other proposed instructions that

were offered and riot given?

MR. ROSE: | -- no, | believe any others that we had initially submitted were

then withdrawn by consent of the parties.

THE COURT:

Okay. And you're familiar with the form of verdict?

MR. ROSE: We are.

THE COURT:

Any objection o it?

MR. ROSE: None, othér than what was stated previously.

<18~
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THE COURT: Okay. All right. So consider the instructions and the form of

verdict settled.
Can we start this trial?

MR. ROSE: | think we're almost done.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Perhaps when Ms. Jones gets back we'll be ready to roil.

THE COURT: Okay. We have - all of your jurors are here; right?

[Colloguy between the Court and the Court Clerk]
[Brief pause in proceeding]

THE COURT: Are there going to be any additional defense witnesses?

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, we are not going to call any additional witnesses.

THE COURT: Okay. Paula is making the instructions; so in that case then
we're just going to go right into the instructions and closing.

MR. ROSE:. Yes, Your Honor.

Do we need to-have the defense reston the-record?

MS. SPELLS: Yes.

THE COURT: Is that correct, the defense rests?

MS. SPELLS: Yes, but | do think we would need to do that in the presence of
the jury.

THE COURT: We'll do it in front of the jury.

MR. ROSE: Thank you, Your Horor.

THE COURT: | will announce that the defense has annotinced that they have
rested, and I'll have you verify that.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right: And as soon as we get the copies done we're ready

to wrap this up.

-19-

1593




10

1

12

13

14

15 |

18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

[Recess taken at 10:40 a.m.}
[Trial resumed at 11,00 a.m.]

[In the presence of the jury panel]
THE MARSHAL: Allrise, please.
And be seated.
THE COURT: Will the parties stipulate to the presence of the jury.
MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
MS. JONES: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honhot.
THE COURT: All right. Good morning.
THE JURY PANEL: Good morning.
THE COURT: Sorry about that little delay. The defense has announced that
they are resting, that they've concluded their witnesses; is that correct?
MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay: So what we're going to-do now is wrap this up. I'm

going to read you the instructions on law and you each have a copy of these

instructions. [ urge you to follow along. It be nice to do it kind of informally but this
is real important and | need to read this to you word for word. All right. When'| get

done .goi'n_g_ through the instructions with you we're going to have closing arguments.

What to expect, the State goes first, they make the initial closing argument, followed
by the defense closirig argument, and lastly, because the State has the burden of
proof, they get the last portion of closing arguments, then you'll start the deliberation
process..

So, again, | think I've told you this several times. When they start going
20
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through their closing arguments, a good portion of the closing arguments are going
to refer to these iristructions. So do not hesitate to- make notes, if you feel it's a
necessity. Write on your copy of the instructions because you'll be able to take

those instructions back into the deliberation room with you, _okay.

All right. So here we go.
[Court reads. jury instructions]

THE COURT: All right. Counsel, ready tc go?
MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: ‘All right.
MR. ROSE: Judge, may | proceed?
THE COURT: Yes.
MR. ROSE: Thank you.

Can you guys see the TV okay? Would it be better if we moved that

over?

Tom, can we move that a little bit closer?
THE MARSHAL: Is that better?
MR. ROSE: Thank you.

CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE.STATE

MR. ROSE: Gagod morning ladies and gentlemen.
THE JURY: Good morning.
MR. ROSE: We're getting there, | promise. Yesterday Ms. Jones stood up

and gave you her opening statement, and there were a number of things in there
that were interesting, that kind of caught my ear. And one of those was the fact that
she said this case was a simple case. And to.a certain extent, | agree. There are

actually a number of facts in this case that aren't in serious dispute by the parties,

-.21-'
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the fact that the Defendant, Alfred Harvey, went to the T.J. Maxx on March 30th,

2016, he enters the store, selected a number of miscellaneous items, put some of

those in his jacket or'in his pockets, and he left the store without paying for those

items. He came into contact with Julian Munoz outside, he handed back two of the

wallets, and nothing élse, but there's some other interaction thiere, he then returns to

||the U-Haul and drove off. He ended up stopping that U-Haul a little while later, he

was contacted by the police, and in the U-Haul they found a number of other
miscellaneous items still with the T.J. Maxx stickers on them. Those facts aren’t
really in serious contention at this point.

So really: what we're looking at, the crux of this case, the heart of it,
comes down to the Defendant's actions and choices during his interaction with
Julian Munoz. 1 submit to you, ladies and gentlemen, that when we look at all of the
evidence, when we consider all the testimony, those actions and those choices and
what actually occurred there will become clear, that you will find that the appropriate
verdict is guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon.

Now, in every criminal case, from the simplest trespass o first degree
murder, there are two essential things that the State has to prove every time. The
first, the number of crimes that we've charged were actually committed, and,
second, that the Defendant is the person who actually committed those crimes. So'l
actually kind of want to touch oi the second onhe 6f those first, | think we can get that
out of the way, that the Defendant is the one who committed the crimes. Well, what
evidence do we have of that? The first thing we heard was from Julian Munoz, the

loss prevention officer, the Victim here. He testified that he interacted with the

Defendant. He was within arm's reach of him. He identified him here in court. He

gave a description at that point of the Defendant. And you'll have the video which
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you can go and compare the description to. ‘You also -heard from Shaun Bramble,

| people that Shaun was focused on, that that after Julian left that Shaun took over

-and pans and follows, he's the one now paying attention to the Defendant, then

1| person who got into the U-Haul, in the driver's'seat, was the same person that he

U-Hauls, kind of a distinctive vehicle, and he managed to foliow it from point A to

heard that when they got to the end of it there’s a U-Haul there and the plates

the other loss prevention officer, who, he told you when the Defendant was in the

store for the most part he wasn't really paying attention. He wasn't one of the
controlling the cameras and he was the oneg, you can watch as the camera zooms in

Shaun left and went outside and saw the rest of t_he' i’nteract_ion outside.

Now, _yo_u also heard from Errol Appel, I'm sure you all remember him,
and he told you that although he didn't see the incident itself, he was still in his car at
that point, he heard the immediate after effects of the incident, and he ended up

following the Defendant. He followed that U—Haul_ and he told you that the same.

saw get out of the U-Haul and get taken into custody by the police and that person
was the Defendant. The Defendant was-that person taken info'cust’od_y,_ you heard

that Julian —or that Errol followed that U-Haul the whole way, didn't see any other

point B.. You also heard about the license plates, you could hear ’t_h’at Julian gave
the license plate to the 9-1-<1 operator, at one point had to correct the 9-1-1 operator

as to, was it a' T or a G that was the second letter of that license plate. Andthen ycu

matched. And then after the Defendant was taken into custody at the scene, they
found the stolen items, the same things that you can see on the video, and |
encourage you to go back and watch the video, the same things that you can see
being taken on the video are the things that were taken and found in the W-Haui and

they still have-the T.J. Maxx stickers on them.
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Now, if that's not enough, you also heard from Tara Harvey, the
Defendant's wife, that she.identified for you that the person on that video, the person
that you see there, was the Defendant. She also testified that the Defendant was
the one driving the U-Haul. He was the only one driving. Then, lastly, if you don't
want to believe any of the people and what they said, you can go back and you can
look at the video yourself. You can compare the video to the testimony and use that
to ki'n'd_ of determine how much weight you want to give to the spoken testimony.
You can look for yourself, the Defendant is sitting right there, you can compare what
you see in the video to the Defendant to determine for yourself whethér or not that is
the same person.

And remember how | mentioried that we had the description of Julian,
what he said, | want you to listen:to the description that he gave and determine
whether or not you think he was-accurate.

[State’s Exhibit 39 played]

You can listen for yourself. Was he talking about the same person?

And you can also listen, because you'll have the 9-1-1 calls, and you can listen to

them however much you want to, you'll get to hear what Errol had to say. Was it the

same person that he saw that was being taken into custody?

Now, we'll go back. We had those two things that we needed to prove,
One, that the crimes were committed, and two, that the Defendant was the person
who committed the crimes. And | suggest to you, ladies and gentlemen, that we
have presented to you sufficient-evidence to find that the Defendant committed the
erimes.

So, we'll move on now -~ | have my checkmarks mixed up. We'll move

on now to whether or not the crimes themselves were committed. What is a,

24
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fear of force or violence; that's what the elements of a robbery are. And you can find

couple of different ways, you have an instruction on this as _we'l[,_ it's: part of that

actual fear because in that circumstance the law will presume it. So even superman

robbery? You've heard the term a lot, you've heard it on CSI or Law and Order, you
actually have an instruction, it's instruction number 14 in"your packets, it actually
defines the elements of robbery. It defines them this way, it's unlawfully takes

personal property from another, or in his presence, against his will, and with force or

those again, it's instruction 11. I urge you tolook at it. Just kind of walk through
these and kind of discuss a little bit more about some of them. Now, it has to

include the element of force or fear of force. With that, force can be used in a

instruction, you can either use the force to take or keep possessions of property, you
can use the force to overcome resistance to the taking of the property, or you use it
to help you get-away, to facilitate an escape.

Now, if you are ensuring that, if you're overcoming resistance tothe
property or to the taking of the property or if you're trying to_get away, the amount of
force that is used doesn't matter. Also keep in mind that the value of the items, that
doesn't matter either, it's not an element. So even though we're dealing here with a
couple of wa_lietjs, some moisturizer, some face cream, some perfume: it doesn't
matter, not an element of the crime.

Now, part of that fear, part of what happéns to a person, often
somebody ‘will actuaily be afraid, sometimes that person happens to be superman,
they're not afraid. Butthe law will also tell you, and you'll have the instruction in
there, that if the circumstances of the robbery are such that you would put an
ordinary person in fear for their safety, such that that person would give up their

property to ensure their own safety, it's still a robbery. You don't have to prove
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can be robbed as odd as that might sound.

So we go back to our elements. Unlawfully takes personal property
from-another, or in his presence, against his will, and with the use of force or fear of
force or violence. We're going to walk through these and through the various

elements and we can talk about what-evidence we have which proves up these

elements: So__, the first one, the unfawful taking of personal property, well, as you

see here, and you'll have this picture, you can take a look at if, we've discussed it

probably ad nauseam, you're probably getting sick of it, but the'items that we're

talking about here the wallet, the Chloe perfume or fragrance, the moisturizer, and

facial cream. Now, you heard that two of the wallets were given back but that the

fragrances, the cream, the moisturizer, and that other wallet eve‘ry.th'in_g you see in

that picture were all found at the scene. Now, you also heard testimony that, and

you saw the video where the Defendant was concealing these items in his pockets,

that he walked out without paying, that he kept those items, they were unlawfully

taken, from the person of another or in his presence. Well, this occurred just outside
of T.J. Maxx, and Julian was still within arm's reach, remember he had {o receive

those two wallets back, he's still within his presence and still on the curb within that

I perimeter. Remember Julian told you he's not allowed to try to make an arrest or try

to get the property back orce it breechés that parameter; which is the width of the

store and out to the edge of the curb, so all of this is still occurring in close proximity,

both to the T.J. Maxx and more specifically to Julian himself and-against his will,

Well, Jutian asked for the items back. He might not have known exactly what things
were still there but he asked for the rest of the'itemis. He even said, hey, let's go
inside. Let's not do this out here in‘front of everybody. He wanted those items:back.

The:Defendant refused.
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Now, you have the force or fear of force or violence, again, kind of the |
crux of the robbery portion of this, what distinguishes it from simply, you know, some
kind of theft. Well, you heard testimony that the Defendant pulled out a knife, you
heard Julian say that he could here that knife'blade click into place, you heard -- he
described it as approximately four inches long and looked kind of like a black blade.
He was able to give you size and color and you heard that it was a consistent
description between when he gave it then and when he gave it now.

Now, you also heard that Shaun came out and saw Julian shortly after
this happened, and although he couldn't r.e'atl__y describe it perfectly why he said
shocked, he said that Julian looked shocked. One -of'those'things.where you look at
the person their eyes are wide and they jook shocked. And then finally Julian called
9-1-1. You heard Julian testified he doesn't really like to wait around for two or three
hours before Metro will arrive on a theft like this, where it's only a couple of items;,
it's not a ton of money. He could walk back into the store and simply write up his
report and go about the rest of his day but this was something that was important
enough, that was significant enough to him that he called 9-1-1. You remember,
you'll have these 9-1-1 calls, you'll have both of them, you can play them and listen
to them if you want.

[State’s Exhibit 39 played]

First thing he says, went out to stop a shoplifter and he pulled a knife on
me: Now, you can also look at, when we're talking about the fear and the force or
violence, look at how they reacted. They reacted the way you would expect
somebody to réact if that person was placed with this threatening situation. Well,
you heard the 9-1-1 call, you'll get to hear the rest of it, listen to the tone of it, listén

to how he speaks. At one point he can't even remember the address of the store.
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| He gets it backwards. He has trouble remembering everything immediately because

the stand today; when he's not faced with a knife, and you can hear him in the 9-1-1

he's still in that excited ‘state. Listen to the tone of his voice, you could hear him.on

call. Ask you to compare the two of them in your own minds and determine is there

a change there, and if therg is a change in the tone, why? What would be the cause
of that? Is it perhaps the fact that he's not faced with a knife when he was testifying

in front of you yesterday?

Now, remember his initial reaction was to stop -- he told you _h'_e'stop_ped
dead in his tracks. He'd heen following the Defendant the wholetime. He'd been
walking along trying to reposition himself in front of him and then all of a sudden he's
going to stop dead in his tracks. Now, he could have gone after him to observe. He
can, you know, kind of go past that parameter to observe and maybe take downthe
license plate or do something else. But he doesn't, instead he stops his pursuit, he
gives up right then, stops dead in his tracks. Now, what's the first thing he says to
Shaun, when Shaun comes out, and he couldn't remember the exact words, but it
was something to the effect of, he just pulled a knife on me, that's the first reaction
he had. And consider the reaction to Errol, when he pulls up and he says, hey guys,
what's going on? The statement that one of the two of them made to him was
something to effect of, we just got held up at knife point or we just got robbed at
knife point. The reactions at every step of the way are consistent with somebody
who has just been put into a threatening situation, who fears for their own safety.

And you can also look at some of the Defendant's reactions, and you'l]
have the instruction here-about flight. Now, remember flight by itself is not
conclusive evidence of guilt. However, it's one of many circumstances that you can

consider when you're determining whether or not the person.is -- it has been proven
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{lguilty or not. It's up to you to determine how much weight you're going to do give to:

that.

Now, |'ve asked you to consider the Defendant's reactions, getting into
that U-Haul, actually being boxed in by Errol, as Mrs. Harvey testified to, getiing out
and around Errol, driving off, as Errol told you, kind of weaving through the streets,
getting into- the Desert Torah Academy, getting out.of the van, running to the school,
either getting in or just getting to the doors before heading back to the van. Are
those actions ---are thdse reactions consistent with somebody who thinks that
maybe they've done something wrong and they need to flee?

Now, we've also alleged-specifically that this robbery occurred with a

| deadly weapon, with the use of a deadly weapon. Although we might have different

personal opinions by what we mean by deadly weapon, the law actually gives us a
very specific definition, and this definition is also in your packet. It means one of two

things, it's eitherany instrument, which as it's normally designed is readily capable

| of causing death or substantial bodily harm, or it's any instrument which, even

though maybe the way it's designed to be used, might not be doing that in the

manner in which it's used or threatened to be used is readily capable of causing

cdeath or substantial bodily harm.

And forgive me, this might get a little tedious, we've got a lot of

definitions here, this is the law, but what do we must mean by substantial bodily

harm? That's something else that, again, could be used commonly but we have a
specific legal definition of it. It means several different things. That it creates a
substantial risk of death or setious permanent disfigurement or a protracted loss of
the use of part of your body or there's a whole separate portion of it, which is

prolonged physical pain. So what do we have at the end of it is any instrument

90
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where in the manner that you actually use it or that'you threaten to use it is readily
capable of causing prolonged physical pain. ‘And | submit to you, ladies and

gentlemen, that the knife that was used was a deadly weapon, that four inch blade

that snaps into place, sufficient to cause fear in Mr. Munoz, that is a deadly weapon,

that four inch blade, in a manner which it's either used or threatened to be used can

cause substantial bodily harm. It can cause serious injury or just prolonged physical
pain. And why do we say that? Because of the reactions to it, the descriptions, and
the reactions to it.

And |'ve already covered this. So I'm not going to take up anymore of
your time with that.

Now: we told you - | told you during opening statements that you're not
going to see the knife, the knife was never recovered, witnesses testified, officers
testified, they never recovered the knife. They looked around, they looked in the
van, they looked in the area, they never recovered the knife. Errol told you he never

saw a knife. He doesn't know what happened to it, you heard him on the 9-1-1 call,

you know, ah, 5o you don't know where the knife is? No, ma'am, we sure don't.

Mr. Munoz and Mr. Bramble they don't know where that knife went either. That the
law will also tell you that the State is not required to prove or to show that knife,
bring that knife to you, we still have to prove that it was there, that it was used, but
we don't have to actually show you the knife, we don't have to recover it. Why is
that? Well, you heard, from the officers, both of them, they weren't surprised that it
wasn't found. It didn't shock them, Why? Because there's substantial amount of
time and distance between where the incident occurred and the school where he
was aciuzally apprehended. That it was even brought up during cross and then

redirect of one of the, | believe it was Officer Humpherys, that even notes in the
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CAD, that it looks as if the Defendant may have discarded some property. It doesn't
say exactly what but may have discarded some property.

Now, we're asking you o listen to a whole number of people and
determine who to believe and what to believe and how much credibility you want to
give to each person. This is something that' we do in oui"e\feryday' lives. It's not
something that's-newto us. It's a law specifically points out a number of things that

you can use to kind of help you in determining how much weight you are going to

give to that individual in their testimony. Their manner on the stand, relatioriship to

the parties, motives and fears, feelings and interests, opportunity to observe the
matters, the reasonableness of what that person says, and then the strength or
weakness of their recollection.

Let's talk for a couple of minutes about who said what from these
various factors. We heard from Julian, you heard from him that he went outside, he
talked to the Defendant, he asked for the wallets back, he knew that he wanted
those wallets, he saw those wallets being taken, he asked for those back, and he
got two back. And he said, | can still see other things that were on in, and | asked
him for the rest of the merchandise, and | asked him, hey, let's step back inside.
That's when the knife got pulled, that's when he immediately stops what he was
doeing becatise he was shocked. Well, you got to see-him on the stand, you got te
see how heinteracted, how he responded to all of the questions.

Now, with the relationship to the parties, obviously, he's the victim here: |
He probably got a bit of an interest in it. What are his motivations and fears? s he
going 1o be required to pay you for those items? What -- does the ogutcome of this,
you know, matter to him? What are his motivations and how he testifies? Look at

how he testified yesterday compared to what he said in the 9-1-1 calland what he
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said throughout the time betwee'n'the_n.and then -- then and now, excuse me. Does.

|ine have a reason to try and blame somebody else for taking these items? Again, he

could have just gone in and written them off. He said, yeah, the guy broke

parameter. He couldn't grab him, couldn't arrest him. Why go to the extent of

claiming that the knife was pulled? What about his-opportunity to observe matters?
| Who could have possibly had a better view than he did? He was within arm’s reach |
at that point, nobody in between them. Was what he said reasonable? You have an

instruction in your packets on commonsense, that basically says when you come in

here we ask you just to look at the evidence from this case but the lens through
which you look at it includes your commonsense. You don't have to leave it outside
the courtroom. Using your common sense, were his statements reasonable? Were
his reactions reasonable? What he told you he did and fought and felt was that all
reasonable? And, finally, the strength of his recollection, was he somebody who
could barely remember bits and pieces. of it? He only remembered the parts that
really helped him and he forgot the rest of the parts or was he somebody who was
able to give you a fairly consistent and thorough testimony, understanding the fact
that this occurred at the end of March.

Now, and | go through this with every single withess, what he was:
seeing things with Mr. Bramble. What were his motives and interests here? What
are his relationships to the parties? None of them knew the Defendant, there's no.
indication he had a grudge against him. As the defense pointed out; Shaun and

Julian, they're not best friends, they're not hanging out after work every day, they'll

‘have an eight-hour shift or two together, but it's not as if they're, you know, close.

buddies. What about his statements? Were they reasonable? Did he remember

things appropriately?
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And Errol, what are his motives? | mean, maybe he wanted to be a
bit of & hero, you know, he seemed like he was excited to be part of this.

You also heard from the officer that in cases like this, and calls like this,
about 50 percent of the time you'll have a civilian or somebody else unrelated to the
scene who will follow and try and help out at least for a portion of the time. So'it's
not that Mr. Errol or that Mr. Appel was, you know, acting unusual. He was just
trying to help. Hedidn't know Julian. He didn't know Shaun. Doesn't know the
Defendant. He has no real retationship to them other than the fact he happened to
be outside of his wife's store that afternoon. What about his recollections? Did he
remember things well?

So we have all of that. We have all of how you look at'the people and
how you determine, based on what they've said, how much weight you want to give
their testimony. - But foriunately you don't have only the testimony itself, you have
other things which you can use to corroborate it, you have the 9-1-1 call and the

reaction to the events. Those first initial thoughts and feelings before they've had

time to think about it, before they've had time to come back into court and testify in

front of you, before they've had time to review their own reports, just their first, initial

thoughts.and feelings and reactions documented and you can listen to them.

There's a video from inside the store, does their testimony about what

happened match up with the video? That video doesn't lie. It has no motivation. 1t

has no feelings. It has no relationships to anybody else. Now, what does that video
show? That video clearly shows the Defendant taking miscellaneous items from

{around that store and putting them into his-jacket.

The Defendant's behavior, what does his behavior say about what the

téstir_non_y' you heard was? Does his behavior indicate to you that - does it match
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up with what they're saying he was doing and how he would be thinking at that poinjt'

in time. Then we have those items that were found in the U-Haul, those items still

had that T.J. Maxx sticker on them, did they match the items that you can see-and

you've heard testimony that he was taking?

Ladies and gentlemen, this was a robbery. Remember the value is not

an element of this. He's not charged with the theft itself. Remember that actual fear

doesn't need to be shown, the circumstance -- of what a normal circumstance is

‘would put a person in fear such as they would give up that property. Soeven

though Julian testified that he was afraid for his own safety, that he looked shocked,
if that doesn't convince you, if that has a kind of circumstance that would put an
ordinary person, not superman, in fear for their own safety, it's still a robbery.

We go back to our elenients, unlawfully takes personal property from

another or in his presence against his will, with force, or fear of force or violence. |

|| submit to you, ladies and gentiemen, that the evidence which you heard clearly

establishes each and every one of these elements.

At the -end of the day, this is-your verdict form, this is how you
determine the facts, you tell the Court how you’'ve determined those facts and
applied them to the law. You'll see that you have three options: not guiilty, guilty of
robbery, and guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon. [ submit to you, ladies
and gentlemen, that it's not, not guilty. Not guilty is not the appropriate response
because if you look at all of the evidence that'we've had, you consider all the
testimony, you weigh it, and you find all of the facts that you find, you'll find beyond a
reasonable doubt that the Défendant took personal property from another, or in his |
presence, against his will, with the use of force or fear of force or violence.

Remember that farce or fear of force-doesn't have to be actual touching. It doesn't
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have to be harm-actually 'mad'e-.- As long as it would cause a person to give up their

items. It can be used to overcome resistance to the taking of property, hey, let's go

back inside, give me the rest of the stuff or to facilitate escape, to get away.

So we're left with robbery and robbery with-a deadly weapon. | submit
to you that the appropriate verdict is also not guilty of robbery. You had that
testimony about that knife, that four inch blade, it's black, you heard it click into
place, and all of the reactions of every individual involved with this were consistent

with the use of a knife. You know, we don't have it, we can't put it in front of you,

can't take it back into the deliberation with you, but the law says that we don't have

|to, and the officers explained, it's not unconimon, not unusual.

So | suggest to you, ladies and gentlemen, that after you weigh all of

the evidence, you'll determine that the appropriate verdict is guilty of robbery with

use of a deadly weapon.

At the beginning of this case, when | first got up here, | told you this
case is about choices, the Defendant's choices. What I'm going to ask youto do
today is to find the facts as you do from the evidence, keeping these instructions in
mind, apply those facts to the law as provided to you by the judge, that you'll hold
the Defendant accountable for his choices. Every choice that we make in life has.
consequerices, and I'm asking you to hold him accountable for his actions. I'm
asking you to find him guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon.

Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Thank you, counsel.
Ready?
MS. SPELLS: Court's brief indulgence.
THE COURT: Just so the jurors are mentally prepared, when you start to
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deliberate, we ordered you guys some lunch about an hour ago. So you can have

some food.

CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE DEFENSE
MS. SPELLS: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen of the jury. 1want to
thank you for being attentive throughout this time; for bearing with us, and just

listening to all of the evidence. Now, is the time for our closing argument, after |

make argument, the State will have another opportunity to speak with you. During

that time period we just want to remind you that what you decide is the fact -- are the
facts in evidence in the case, that's your decisions.

So perception is not reality, everybody has different perception and our
perception is our point of view. Everyone has a point of view based on what their
story is, the way it happened according to you. Sometimes that is based on just
who you are as a person. Perception-and memory go hand in hand. The way you
perceive something is going to be the way that you tell the story and that is going to |
also come into play with your memory. | wantyou guys to remember when you are
thinking about all of the different witnesses and what they have said to you and all of
the different evidence that came from the stand, that memory is not a tape recorder,
you don't get to press pause, come back and resume like a movie. It's just not the
way it works. But our memory is definitely influenced 'by' perception.

| don't know if you guys recall this or if you saw it or if you are a big avid
Facebook users or what have you, but this is a just an iliustration as perception.
This is a picture of the exact same dress. Some: people saw this dress as being
gold and white, other people saw this dress as being blue and black. Again,
perception and what you see, what occurs, is going to be based on the person that

you are and then when you get to tell your side of the story what you saw, what you
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heard, that's going to be based upon your perception.

Let's talk about some of the things that affect your memory. Obviously,
we know this, this is just common experience, some of the things that would affect
your memory are stress, adrenaline, your emotions. Those are some of the things
that we have in this case, with the interactions of the different individuals. Now, you
heard from Julian Munoz, who got on the stand, and he told you that he's been
employed in loss prevention for approximately five years. But that each time he has
interaction with someone he still feels nervous. He still has some of that stress. So
that's going to be one of the factors that affect his memory, affect his perception of
what's going on.

Now, in my opinion this is a classic movie, it may not be a ¢lassic movie
for everyone, but 1 want to use this just as an illustration as perception and memory
and how things come and tie together. So you're looking at the case of Forrest
Gump, you have a lot of different players, and it's very important to note where does
the story start, who are the players, and what their story is. So, for instance, for
Forrest's mother, the story to her may be about Farrest breaking out of his braces
and learning how to.run and that's a very significant story. It talks about tenacity and
things that are going on there. For Jenny, however, the story is completely different.
For her, her story, her perception, her memory is going to be about a childhood
relationship, being in love with someone and that love growing into adulthood. Now,
if you take Lieutenant Dan, his story is about friendship, about actions that
happened in the war. And if these individuals were to come into court and to testify
about things that happened, they're going to recount their story in a different way.
Some of them may be able to tell the story in a very linear fashion. Forrest's mom

being able to tatk about tenacity and she can teli you the beginning to the end.
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Other people may be coming in at the middle, they don't necessarily see the entire

incident so they can't tell you a very linear story, their story starts at a different time,

ends at a different time. Jenny may be able to give you her highlights. Her favorite

experiences. She may not tell you the full story. And Lieutenant Dan, well, if he
was telling a story, maybe he would use flashback; maybe he would tell you what
was the most important thing in flashback to other things that he found important.
Each witness in this case their story starts at a different time period,
they have their own point of view, their memory is going to be different as well,
We've talked about this, factors that are at play in our case, the adrenaline, common
sense, stress; and also fraining because we had a number of individuals who came

and talked to you about some training that they had, how they write reports, how

they are quote/unguote experts in a certain aréa, they at least have g lot of

experience, they have accustom of doing things and they're been taught and trained
that that's the best way to do it, and they -- there are reasons that they conduct
certain actions.

Solet's talk about Julian Munoz. He is kind of the lead of this story. He

gives you a story about his employment with T.J. Maxx and he came and he told

you that he wouid consider T.J. Maxx a clothing store. He was an individual who in _'

telling you his story he wasn't very detail oriented. He said maybe two wallets,
maybe three wallets, at-one point, during questioning on the stand, he indicated that

possibly there were up to four watlets that Mr. Harvey either concealed or stolen or

took. But when we talked about that he brought up his report and kind of went back

and forth.

He does not speak to Mr. Bramble, this is his co-worker, and he says

that he left outside of the store and Mr. Bramble was doing video surveillance and
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mentioned some, like through a telephone call or what have you, that there were
additionial items concealed, possibly taken. But before he goes to write his report,
which he indicated that he would look at, it would go to his upper management in the,
store, it could possibly be used at a trial in a case, other people would be looking at
it. He didn't take the time to go speak to Mr. Bramble about other things that had
occurred, to finish dojcu’meh_ting, and to be as detailed oriented as possible in his
reporting. |

He talks to you about his boundaries and that's-important because
that's his company policy and that ties into a person’s motives and a person's
recollection of what they did; what they said, how they reacted.

Now, let's talk about the knife. And‘for Mr. Munoz it's unclear whether
we get the entire story for him. | would submit that to you. He came and he testified
and he said that he-stopped short and the State, just.in their closing argument, |
indicated, that, you know, he retreated. He didn't continue to follow him. But we
heard from Mr. Appel that there were -- there was more than one person taking
pictures. You also heard from Mr. Munoz that he told the 9-1-1 operator, and you
guys heard the 9-1-1 phone call for yourself, information .ab'out-_'the individual and
about the vehicle.

And 1 submit to you that you're not going o be able to see the vehicle
parked and the license plate of the vehicle parked in front.of a Dollar Tree store, if
you're retreating back to the T.J. Maxx. And we showed you the map on a number
of different occasions and just the difference between those two stores would have
required some further advancement.

In looking at and weighing his testimony, 'd ask you to consider his

perception and his memory, the fact that he was anxious, he told you that on the
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stand_'tha’t he was nervous, whetheror not he was compliant with his company
policy when he indicated that he was not supposed to pursue someone outside of
those boundaries, the width of T.J. Maxx and to the sidewalk, and his comments
about time and waiting. He doesn't necessarily like to wait for the police. It takes a
couple of hours unless it's something significant, something significant here like the
report of a knife being present.

Now, when considering the testimony of Mr. Bramble we get his story
and it's important to note that he didn't see anything. | mean, we've talked a lot
about his actions and some of the other people's actions, but what it boils down to
what you areall here to decide is whether or not Mr. Alfred Harvey is guilty of
robbery with use of a deadly weapon. ‘Mr. Bramble didn't see anything. With regard
to that interaction he wasn't able to tell you that he saw a weapon. In fact, he didn't
see-a weapon, He indicated that his.role was very limited. He didn't share his
knowledge or the fact that he was taking photographs with officers. He didn't show
those photographs to Mr. Munoz.

He said Julian looked shocked. He didn't tell you that Julian looked:
scared or frightful or in fear for his life. He said Julian looked shocked, like maybe
something had occurred that wasn't part of the ordinary. Now, { would submit to you
that there are a number of different reasons that a person looks shocked and we:

talked about this. We talked about this when we were discussing circumstantial

evidence during our jury selection where the State submitted to you that if you were
in your home late at night, you'd gone to the bed, and before you went to bed there
was no water on the ground, you come olitside and you see water on the ground,

il would you-conclude that it has been raining? And we talked about, okay, that may

be one conclusion, but there are a number of different conclusions:that you could
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come to. In fact, one of you indicated that maybe there was a movie set there and
they were filming a portion of the movie with rain and so they had water there fo
make it appear that it was raining but it had not actually rained.

S0 here there are a number of differerit things. What we do know is

that Mr. Munoz asked Mr. Harvey to come back into the store with him and he

refused, okay, that's- something that's a little different than the ordinary when he told.

you riormally, just come back, ! fill out some paperwork, that's it.

With regard to Mr. Bramble's perception, his memory, and we've

I discussed that he wasn't there. He didn't have much investment int this interaction, |

in this case, because he works for organized retail crime. So this wasn't something

that was really something he did on his day-to-day job. He was trying {o assist

Mr. Munoz to a certain degree but didn't have much investment. He told you that if's

not part of his job or company-policy, his job description to apprehend someone, so

it's not something that he was going to be doing here. His actions weren't going to

be with regard to that. And that's important to note-as well because you have the
in_teraction_ between Mr. Munoz and Mr. Bramble and Mr. Bramble coming outto
help Mr. Munoz and what are Mr. Munoz' thoughts and perceptions about his
actions and how Mr. Bramble may view those actions.

We heard from Mr. Appel. Now, | would agree with the State that
Mr. Appel indicated that he was happy to be a part of it. He was the Good
Samaritan. He wanted to be helpful. He was coming to the aid and to the rescue
and he follows the van. Now, when we're thinking about his perception and his
memory, | submit fo you, listen to the 9-1-1 phone call, what we gst from Mr. Appel
is that although he's trying to be helpful, he gives a lot of information that he really

has no ability to give. He says, oh, someone just pulled a knife out on these people.
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He wasn't there. He didn't'see it. He's inthe parking lot in his vehicle. We don't
Know where the knife is. Well, that's true he doesn't kniow where the knife is. But
the reality of the situation is that his story starts at the end of the story, that's
important as to whether or not a robbery with use of a deadly weapon occurred
because he's.coming in after that. He didn't see any of the interactions with

Mr. Munoz and Mr. Harvey.

And there's a very significant difference of hearing something versus
seeing something. You hear something from a person, you tell another person, they
hear it, and by the time they retell the story there's going to be some things that may
be a little bit different, may sound a littie bit different, somethings may be
emphasized, somethings may be de-emphasized. There is a huge difference when
you are viewing something firsthand .or where you're hearing something from
another individual. Andthe perception of Mr. Appel is that he knew everything about
the case, he was able to give all the information that he was asked of.

We heard from Officer Nelson and Officer Humpherys, their story is that
they're trained officers, they've been working for the Metropolitan Police Department
for quite some timne, they-did a thorough investigation here, they told you that there
was also air traffic patrol involved, and they told you that, you know, you didn't hear |
any stories of any issues. They conducted searches. Officers came and tell you
that Mr. Harvey consented to them going into his pockets, {6 doing the search, and
all of that. He was cooperative with that search. And upon finishing the search, not
only of Mr. Harvey, of his person, but also of this vehicle, they didn't find any knife.
What they did find was T.J. Maxx property. Their perception and their memory, they
indicaied that they were concerned about officer safety, safety of others because

there had been a phone call out that maybe a knife was involved. So they wanted to
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| make sure that other people weren't going to be harmed.

Now, we heard from Officer Humpherys and he told you clear as day;
without any type of hesitation, that sometimes witnesses are mistaken in what they
speak, they don't always get it right. He told you that. He said here there was not a
kritfe found.

Sowe briefly- heard from Mrs. Harvey. In considering her testimony,
you can consider the fact that she is married to Alfred Harvey. She wasthe
passenger in this vehicle and she told you that she was nervous. She was nervous
then, on that date, it was an unfamiliar situation for her, and she was nervous
coming here to testify to you guys. She indicates that she was the passenger in the
car, that there were two individuals taking photos. She saw two of them walk right
upto that vehicle and take photos with their cell phones, and that's not the same
story that we got from Mr. Munoz because he says he never took any photographs.
He didn't go up to that U-Haul vehicle.

She told you that Mr. Harvey is right-handed. We're going to.discuss.
that a littfe bit. She told you there was never a knife and that Mr. Harvey doesn't
generally carry a knife. Agailn, there was no knife found. She told you also that
when they were going to that school her daughter needed to use the restroom.
They were stopping at the school, this is not the situation where the cops are pulling
the individual over and stopped them at that school. They stopped at that school
and the cops then met them there.

Now, i submit to you, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, Mr, Harvey is
not guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon. The State -- it's Kind of like
spaghetti, they're trying to throw a whole bunch of stuff at you guys to make some

things stick. We had a lot of different information that came back that really is just a
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distraction as to what this case is about. There was a lot of different indications
about kids being present, where they were, what they were doing, different
merchandise in the car, driving, how an individual was. driving, how Mr. Harvey was

driving, they questioned. both Mr, Appel as well as Mrs. Harvey with about that, and

|we spent a lot of time about the path taken to get to this school, what happened at

the school, what side people were at the school, nothing but distractions. What
does that-have to do with the robbery with use of a deadly weapon?

So, let's look at the Information, you guys have that in your packet,
that's instruction number three, and it tells that you that an Information is but a
formal method of accusing a person of a crime. So this is what the State-has
charged Mr. Harvey with and they lay it out for you. And they say that -- we're not
going to read it through its entirety, we're going to skip down to line 13, it says,
Alfred C. Harvey did willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take personal property,
to-wit: miscellaneous clothing items, from the person of Julian Munoz, or in his
presence, by means of force or violence, or fear of injury'to, and without the consent
and against the will of Julian Munoz, with the use of a deadly weapon, to-wit. a
knife. They go on to say, Defendant using force or fear to obtain or retain

possession of the property, to prevent or overcome resistance to the taking of the

property, and/or to facilitate escape. That's what they've.charged Mr. Harvey with,

that's what's important in this case.

So, we know that there's absolutely no miscellaneous clothing items. It
can characterize T.J. Maxx as being a clothing store all they want to, the items in
this case have nothing to do with clothing.

We know that there's no knife, there's no weapon ever found. | submit

to you there was no fear, there's no violence. What really occurred here is that
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Alfred Harvey stole some items but theft is not robbery.
Mr. Munoz on the-stand said T.J. Maxx is a clothing store. When | went

back and said, well, don't they sell water and food and accessories and all these

other items. He s‘a_id, oh, yes, it's a department store. | agree with you.

The one piece of clothing item that was kind of thrown out there was

this blue shirt. So we see Mr. Harvey in the store, he's wearing, what | submit to

|| you is two different: bl'u_e- shirts, one light; one dark blue, very similar to the blue shirt

that was shown to you guys later as a piece of evidence. These are not clothing
items, these are the items that were taken, wallets, some type of hand or face
cream, and perfume.

S06 let's go-on to this knife. Absolutely no witness, outside of
Mr. Munoz, testifies that there was a knife here involved. Now, let's think about this,
Mr. Munhoz came on the stand and he told you that he was standing on Mr. Harvey's
right-hand side. He told you that Mr. Harvey reached into his left pocket with his
left-hand and pulled out-the knife and held it above his.head with the left-hand. We
know from the video surveillance, as well as Mr. Munoz' testimony, that what was in
the left pocket was the face cream or the hand cream, the cream that had been

taken from the store. We also know that there are wallets tucked into this left-hand

side. This is the surveillance video and the photographs that you were shown

yesterday with regard when the State was stating that the items were concealed, the

wallets were concealed in the jacket. And unfortunately we didn't get to see that

jacket, that biue shirt thing. We don't know necessarily what does it ook like? Are

‘we dealing with inside pockets here? Are we dealing with him concealing things

under the arm like this, into the arm of the shirt, just underneath here? What are we

dealing with? We don't know. But it is significant because the items are going into
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the left-hand side.

| want to talk to you guys about a timeline here, and you guys have the |
9-1-1 phone call, you can listen to the call.again, it gives you the date and the time
atthe beginning of the phone call. First-call comes in at 16:34, that would be 4:34.
p.m., that call is by Mr. Julian Munoz. At 16:38 we have Mr. Appel calling and he is
informing the 8-1-1 operators he's following the guys; already in mation, following
these individuals. And then just before three minutes into that phone call, you guys.
heard it, you listened to it, you can check my timeline if you like, he says, Appel
says, the suspects are in custody. So we're talking about a total of approximately
seven to eight minutes.

From all the testimony that we've heard we know that Mr. Munoz goes |
outside, he's talking to Mr. Harvey. Mr. Bramble told you that within approximately
30 seconds he's outside. He.said he had to get through some people, he arrived
outside approximately 30 seconds later, and saw both Mr. Harvey and Mr. Munoz
but he doasn't see a knife.

We know that at that point Mr. Bramble and Mr. Munoz are going

towards the vehicles. We know that because Mr. Munoz is ¢alling in the 9-1-1

phone call.
MR. SCHWARTZ: Your Honor, | hate to interrupt. Could we please

-approach?

THE COURT: Sure.
[Bench conference beging]
MR. SCHWARTZ: Sorry, | didn't-want to interrupt. 1 just have a concetn that
with the redacted version of the 9-1-1 call it might have a difference because the

CAD doesn't seem to indicate the three minutes from when Errol calls the
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Defendant's in custody. So if I-could just make that clear in'my closing, | mean,
rebuttal. | don't know how much more we're going into it.

THE COURT:; | don't see-any problem with that. Okay. If you want me to, !
can say there might be a slight discrepancy because | reviewed -- the Court had
redacted irrelevant material. So if there’s a discrepancy, it's understandable. Do
you think that's geing to be a big issue point?

MR. SCHWARTZ: If you can just move on at this point from this argument,
we could. It's not a big deal.

THE COURT: Well, because if there is going to be a discrepancy because of
the timeline because of the redaction then dor’t emphasize the discrepancy.

MS. SPELLS: !l just move on, | guess,

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. SPELLS: At least it would be appropriate for us to notate the redaction.
And looking at the CAD what is the difference, a minute?

THE COURT: Then avoid the issue but just don't --

MS. SPELLS: 1'li move on.

THE COURT: ~-don't bring up there's a discrepancy.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay. Thankyou..

MS. SPELLS: All right. Thank you.

[Bench conference concludes]

MS. SPELLS: So let's talk-about what we know, okay. We know that
Mr. Bramble teils you he's outside within approximately 30 seconds, from there
Mr, Munoz is calling 9-1-1, hie is approaching this vehicle; getting the license plate
information. We know that Mr. Appel is on scene before this U-Haul takes off, he

tries to block the U-Haul. We kriow that air unit traffic control is somewhere in here.
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‘We didn't get to hear from them but we know that they were out there; right? We

know that the cops are trained, they're trained to search for things, they're trained to

|look for things, not only did they search the car, they searched Mr. Harvey.

Now, we had an indication yesterday about well maybe the knife was
dumped. So we talked about what exactly was communicated and the specific line
that Officer Humpherys testified to, subject possibly just dumped property, and that's

coming at the school. Well, we know that these trained officers searched'these

locations, no knife ever found. Officer Humpherys testified to-you all that sometimes

withesses do misunderstand, they don't see what they thought they saw.

So let's talk about a few of Mr. Munoz" [indiscemnible]. And, again,
understand that he's nervous. He indicates with every stop he's nervous. So we
need to talk about his perception and his memory.. But he testifies that there were
two wallets, there were three wallets, there were four wallets; now there were three.
And then when | quéstioned him about his report, what did you write in your report?
He comes back, yeah, there were two wallets written in the report,

‘The license plate number, and the State went over this with you just
briefly, that he came back, had to clarify with regard to what the-actual license plate
number was. There was some misunderstanding about the streets, which directions
they went, where this car was traveling. There's no follow-up with his co-worker to
conduct his report. He says that he never took any photographs, but, again, we
have Mr. Appel and Mrs. Harvey testifying there were two people out there taking
photographs. Who else is out there? ‘We know it's only Munoz-and Mr. Bramble.
Mr. Bramble told you he took photos.

When the State carries the burden of proving to you beyond a

| reasonable doubt that this knife was used in the commission of the crime that being
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robbery with use of a deadly weapon.

| wanted to talk {o you all about credibility, and that's your instruction

number ten, and I'm not going to belaborthé point and read it all to you because the

State did a lot about credibility. So | think everyone clearly understands what
credibility is. 1'want to submit to you, however, that consistency is not necessarily
indicative of credibility especially in cases where people have written-reports
because yol're going to testify consistently with your reports, you're geing to review
them before you come .an'd testify. Additionally, when you make up a story about |
something, you tell the story, you're going ;o be consistentin that. So consistency
by itself is not necessarily indicative of honesty or credibility.

When you consider all of the factors and all of the things here what you
have is the fact that Mr. Harvey's vehicle never out of sight. Mr. Appel immediately
blocks it in, he's following the vehicle the entire time period, tells you he wanted to
know where it goes. We have the air traffic unit control there and then we have the
police immediately arriving, okay. As Mr. Harvey is walking to this vehicle we have

Mr. Bramble and Mr. Munoz going towards the vehicle, getting the information. We

heard yesterday that in Mr. Appel's statement he said three people were running

towards this car taking photographs. Where was the opportunity for Mr. Harvey to
ditch this alleged knife? if it's ditched on the way to the vehicle, then we have

Mr. Munoz and Mr, Bramble following him to the vehicle, they would have seen it on
the ground. If it's ditched on the way to the school, we have the air traffic control.
We have Mr. Appel following this.car the entire time period and he wanted to be
helpful. He was giving up all types. of information that he did not even have the
answer to. If he would have seen anything, if this knife would have been ditched

somewhere, we would have heard some indication of that but we didn't hear
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screaming at him. He's not pushing him. He's not throwing those wallets at him.

H body contact, there's no force or fear of violence in that interaction.. He says at that

threatening. At the end of the day, he's thief, hot a violent robber. I'm not saying he

anything because there was not a knife.
‘There was also no fear, no force, or nor violence, Kind of rewind, go
back to the interaction between Mr, Munoz and Mr. Harvey, and we héar that

Mr. Munoz asked Mr. Harvey for the wallets. He freely gave them back. He's not

He just gave him the wallets back. Mr. Munoz testified there's no yelling, therg's no

point Mr. Harvey refuses to turn back to the store.

So | submit to-you there's absolutely no knife, there's no knife found,
there's no indication that Mr. Munoz actually saw a knife. We have the officer saying
that people are mistaken a lot of times in what they see, what is actually occurring.
So at that point we have a hand-up, possibly some hand cream in this hand, coming
out of the left pocket. Is that force or violence? Does that put you in fear? Again,
perception is not reality.

Let's talk about the actions of Mr. Alfred Harvey. He stole merchandise
from T.J. Maxx. Mr. Munoz told you that it was less than $500. He didn't have a

weapon. He's not being forceful in giving back those wallets. He's not being

didn't do anything; yes, he absolutely went into that T.J. Maxx store, concealed
items, left the store with items that did not belong to him. He stole items from T.J.
Maxx. There's no option for that in your verdict form.

The State is the person who.charged him, you saw that.in the
Information, and they have the burden of proving to you beyond a reasonable doubt
the charge that they've submitted to you, robbery with use of a deadiy weapon.

| submit to you that snapshots, highlights don't work; and we see that
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with the story and the illustration with Forrest Gump, beécause if you just get one
person’s snapshot or one person’s highlight you don't know the full story.
Perception drives memory but your perception is not reality. What color

is that dress? We don't know. What are some of the things that influerices memory,

again, adrenaline, bias, emotions.

So you're the trier of facts and you have to put this story together using
credibility, commeon sense, analyzing the evidence with regard to perception and
memory.

So as | said, the State will get to speak to you again because they do
have the burden of proof here. So there were just a few final things | wanted to go
overwith you all.

Court's‘indulgence.

The State spoke to you a little bit at length about this knife and the fact

that they don't have to show you that it was recovered. | submit to you that's the

law, they don't have to-actually have the knife here for you today for you to find that

a knife was utilized. | submit to.you there ' was absolutely no knife. When we're

talking about memory and perception, it is.important to consider the fact that you

guys don't have the knife because there's no one else to tell you that they saw a

knife. There's the brief _tes'timon_y that it's four inches. We don't know any of that.
The facts instead show that there was not a weapon, that Mr. Munoz was. just
mistaken.

And, lastly, | want to draw‘yo_Ur attention to your jury instruction number
six. It says, if you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant
used a deadly weapon in the commission of an unlawful taking of personal property

fromthe person of another - again, here the State has charged miscellaneous
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clothing items -- or in his presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury,

{immediate or future, to his person or property and that such force was used to

obtain or retain possession of the property, prevent or-overcome resistance to the

taking of the property, or to facilitate escape with the property you must find the

Defendant not guil_ty' of robbery with use of a deadly weapon. And | submit to you
that here Mr. Harvey is not guilty of robbery with use of a deadly weapon but he's

also not guilty of robbery because he didn't use-force or violence here. He stole

items and refused to come back into the store. Mr. Harvey is also not guilty of
robbery. We'd ask that the appropriate verdict here and we're confident that once
you've analyzed all of the evidence you will find Mr. Harvey not guilty.
Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you, counsel.
How long do you think your last portion is going to take?
MR. SCHWARTZ: Ten, fiteen minutes.
THE COURT: You guys want to stay or you want to take a little break?
UNKNOWN JUROR: Stay.
THE COURT: You want to-get it.over with?
UNKNOWN JUROR: Yes.
MR. SCHWARTZ: If you could switch over back to our computer, please.
Is it okay if | move this, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Sure.
MR. SCHWARTZ: May | proceed, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes, please.
[REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE STATE]
MR. SCHWARTZ: The State's whole case is-a distraction; right? That's what |
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she said. We threw a bunch of spaghetti up for you guys to watch this whole week;
right? All a distractioni, huh? When she gets up here, the defense, and they talk
about miscellaneous clothing items, they're talking about the fact that there's a
Facebook dress, you can look at one way or another, talking about Forrest Gump.
Let's talk about the case. Let's talk about the facts: Let's talk about the law that you
guys have right there, okay._. | want to be ¢clear, ladies and gentiemen, | didn't ask
you to sit here all week for this trial so you could go back and talk about clothing:
items, Forrest Gump, and dresses, okay. You have the law, | want you to look at
the law and apply the facts. In jury selection you guys talked about, you look at the
facts, right? You look at the facts and how it applies to the law and the law in this

case has to do with robbery; taking of personal property from another with force or

threat of force. If's that simple, that's the law, that's what the State’s proven and

that's why he's guilty.

Now, in particular Ms. Spells did address this Information that we talked

|about. it's the charging document, it Has the robbery, what he's charged with, it's

instruction number three, the first line, this is it hot evidence of anything, this is not

| evidence of anything, this is just a piece of paper that says he's charged with
robbery with a deadly weapon, okay, that's all it is. And the personal property, this
miscellangous jfams that we've alleged, the wallet, the cream, the lotion, whatever,

from a clothing store, that's what it is, personal property that was stolen, okay. And

they admitted he stole it, right? She said he's a thief. You saw the surveillance, yc";.u'
heard what she said, she admitted, okay, there's no -- that's notin dispute that he
took those items.

The Defendant -- the defense has led you around with this -- the only

thing | can think of is this distractions; right? We're going off in Forrest Gump land
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but let's focus, okay, focus on the law, it's right in frant of you, and the facts, okay,
that's all we need to talk about.

Now, the defense made this huge, huge deal about perception and
memory and, you know, everyone is just wrong, | guess, everyone is just wrong. It
wasn't a knife it was the lotion that he was threatening him with. We're not doing
this today, with the lotion. Come on now. Mr. Munoz got up on the stand and he
told you-he'was.in fear for his life. He saw the four inch blade. He heard the snap.
Last time | checked lotion doesn't shap when you take it out of your pocket, fair? He
wasn't mistaken about the knife, okay. He described it for you as-a black, four inch
blade, raised above your head. Why is the Defendant going to raise lotion over his
head? And why is Mr. Munoz going to step back scared? No, it was the knife.. It all
makes sense. It all adds up, okay. .

And now we got Mr. Bramble, he didn't see anything; right? Well, he
saw something pretty important. He saw the reaction on Mr. Munoz' face right after |
this incident happened. He said he was shocked. Mr. Munoz has dealt with
numerous shoplifters. It doesn't matter to him if they run, if he gets the property
back, he's going to go out, he's going to try to get them {o come back'in, and if they
don't, he's going to go back inside and write his report. But when someone pulls a
knife on you that changes things, that's what he said; right? This was something
different this was not a normal interaction.

And some more distractions from the defense, we're talking about.

Mr. Munoz said three to four wallets, he didn't know -- he mistaken north for south,
east for west. He said that there was a G instead of a T in the license plate. What
does that have to do with the fact that this was a robbery? Nothing. He was -- you

heard the 9-1-1 call, he was scared. He corrected himself on all of those things.

-54-
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You didn't hear his voice falter at all though when he said he was robbed with a
knife; right? That's the first thing he told Julian - or Shaun when he arrived. He
didn't say anything else about all these other confusing distractions. He said that he
got robbed that's what happened.

And | don't know what else we want from Mr. Appel, right, this guy is
just visiting his wife at Ross, he happens to see a situation, he offers to help, he-
calis.~he does everything right. He does everything right. And he told you up front,
yeah, | didn't see it, all | did was follow him, so | know exactly where this man drove
and exactly where he stopped, that's all we asked him to say.

So when the defense gets up and says, well, you can't trust any of
these people's memories, right, because they're seeing something different than
what they're-saying. There's no evidence of that. Never.once did Mr.. Bramble,

Mr. Munoz, Mr. Appel say that the stress of the situation was so much that they're

not sure what happened; right? They just told you exactly what happened, that's all

they did, that's ali we ever asked them to do.

And, now, Ms. Harvey, you know, she came and she said what she
said. She said two people were taking photos or maybe only one was. Well, we
know Julian was on the phone because you have the 9-1-1 call, okay, so here's one
person, that's what he's doing. And the other person said he was taking photos,
okay. Atthe end of the day, who cares, fair? Who cares?

And the whole reason for stopping at the school for the daughter to go
to the restroom, okay, you saw the surveillance video, Mr. Harvey goes into the
hathroom with the children. He went to the restroom. We watched the surveillance
video, there was a couple of minutes white we didn't see anything happen because

they were in the restroom.

-85~
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And -

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, that misstates the testimony.

THE COURT: I'm sorry?

MS. SPELLS: That misstates the testimony.

THE COURT: Let me just make a comment real quick. When there's a
dispute as to how somebody remembers what the testimony is, that the State may
have one -- out of what they think the testimony is, the defense may haveit -~ it
doesn't really make any difference if they disagree on what the testimony is because
it's your recollection of what you believe the testimony to be is the only thing that |
counts, okay.

Go ahead.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

You can watch the surveillance video for yourself, that's all I'm talking
about.

Ms. Spells aiso said that the State hasn't proven that Mr. Munoz was in
fear. He told you he was in fear, there's that. Mr. Rose told you that it doesn't even
matter what he says, would a reasonable person be in fear. Would a reasonable
person be in fear when a knife's above their head, we're not doing this today, click,
shap, knife.

Use your common sense, ladies and gentlemen, please, andthere's an
instruction on common sense, it's number 19, and it tells you you can use your
everyday common senhse, you don't have to chieck it at the door so to speak, you
can use your common uSé_ and you can figure out what 'happe_n'_ed.

And, lastly, defense said, there's no knife because we didn't find a knife.)

We told you from the beginning we didn't find a knife; right? Mr. Rose got up and he

-58-
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Defendants going to take the knife that he just threatened Mr. Munoz with. He's

| Ms, Harvey said she knew was following them. Of course he's going to get rid of the|

judgment. "You can figure out what happened based on your common sense.

said there was no-Knife found. But think about this, ladies and gentlemen, the

going to take it with him in his car. He's going to drive erratically throughout the
streets, although according to Ms. Harvey it was 30 miles an hour, drive erratically
through the streets, and then he's going to hang on to the knife. What do you
expect? You expect him to putitin a little Ziploc baggie and give it to the police
officers? No, he's going to ditch the knife, you heard the officer. | mean, the only
thing the defense remembered the officer said was that sometimas witnesses are
ristaken. But Fe said, they often times ditch the weapon. He knows. He'sina fot
more trouble if there's a weapon; right? He ditched it while he was driving from point

A to paint B erratically trying to lose Errol, trying to lose the heficopter that

knife. No-surprise that we didn't find a knife here. That doesn't mean that a knife
didn'texist. We've got Munoz who saw the knife with his own eyes, Bramble saw
the reaction consistent with a knife being pulled.on someoneg, and their reactions to
call 9-1-1 immediately, yell out for help, all consistent with a knife being put into play,
niot a lotion being put into play.

Elements of the crime, ladies and gentlemen, that's what we've got to
prove, that's what - that's what we've got to prove as the State and that's what
we've proven to you t'o_da_y-.

As | said, common sense, please use it, every day common sense and

Think of the idea of flight. If he didn't have a knife, if all he did was take
some items, why does he ne_éd to drive like a maniac away from the scene? Why?

He didn't want to give back the rest of the items, | guess. But the idea of flight it
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lembodies the idea of deliberately going away with consciousness of guilt. He knew

what he did. ‘He knew what he did was wrong. He made a choice to pull a knife on
Mr. Munoz and he tried to [indiscernible].

REasonable;doubt,_ you have-an instruction, | encourage you to look at
the instruction, you do not need to rely on my power point here, instruction number
five, not mere possibility or speculation must be actual doubt.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, the Defendant made a choice, he made a |
choice to change this from a simple theft that they just admitted he did, to-change
this to a robbery with a deadly weapon. When he pulled the knife on Mr. Muhoz and
threatened him, we're not doing this today.

Ladies and gentlemen, today you're going to do it. You're going to find
him guilty, please, of robbery with a deadly weapon.

Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, counsel.
Ladies and gentlemen, you're about {o begin the process of
deliberation. In order to accomplish deliberate - a jury deliberating, you have to be
under the charge of somebody to ensure that nobody interferes with the process
and that thing -- Tom is -- the marshal is going to take charge of the jury during their
deliberations, and in order to accomplish that he has-to be sworn in to promise to _d__t_:':.
justthat. Sothe very first thing we're going to do right now is swear Tom.in as -
MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, can we have the monitors taken off?
THE COURT: I'm sorry?
MS. SPELLS: Can we havethe monitors taken off, please?

i

i
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[The Court Clerk swore in the Court Marshal to take charge of the jury during
deliberations]
THE COURT: Very good, all right.
We've got all the exhibits, and you guys are going - are we using the
deliberation room down --
THE MARSHAL: No, down here, they just finished.
THE COURT: Allright. So we've got a deliberation room right here. So you

guys go with Tom, everybody except the two alternates, Marlene and Danielle, you

guys stay right there, everybody else go with Tom. | have special instructions for
the two of you.
UNKNOWN JUROR: Us?
THE MARSHAL: Yes, you two are going to stay here and you're eventually
going to.go with Paula and I'll meet you in a.few minutes.
The rest of you bring everything with you, personal property, your. note
books, everything, let's go back this way.
THE JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT: Tom, the jury room this way is
open.
THE MARSHAL: Yeah.
THE COURT: Yeah, he knows.
And the lunch is here?
THE JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT: Itis.
THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Mecall, your initial perception as‘to who was.going
to be the alternates was accurate --
JUROR NUMBER 13: | was hoping.
THE COURT.: -- butyou were -

~5G-
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JUROR NUMBER 13: l've done this.before. It's okay.

THE COURT: - you were very accurate but we don't announce that just
because we like to keep everybody on the same level of alertness during the course
of the trial.

So here's what happens at this point, you guys are still ‘on this jury,
because if something was to happen to anybody, you guys would be called into
replace them and substitute in place if something happens o somebody. So, you
need to stay in contact and you need to also be careful'and be aware that the
admonishmerit about not discussing the case still applies until you've been actually
released. off of your jury duty. So one of two-things is_g_o'ing to happen, Paula is
going to ¢all you and say somebody is off the jury, we need you to come down and
replace them, or-she's going to call you and say the jury reached a verdict and
you're off jury duty. If you guys are still - you don't have to stay here, you don't
have to:stay in t‘he'building, don't leave town, so be someplace where you can get
back. And if you're still in the area, Paula will call you if the jury deliberation reaches
a verdict, she'll cail you and tell you that-and you're certainly invited to come back
and sit in your chzirs while the verdict is read. Soit's up to you. The main thing'is
just untit you are either serving with the jurors as they deliberate or discharged off
your jury duty, don't talk about the case. [t's the same admonishments that you've
been given you the whole time that you've been here, okay? | can't thank you
enough. We can't do this without you. | hope you don't feel like you got cheated
because you were the alternates. But | can't thank you enough for your jury service |
and Paula will take you and get your jury badges and get --

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE COURT: - exchange of information. | think Tom knows how to get
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ahold of you but Paula will get some --

THE MARSHAL: I've got all their numbers.

THE COURT: Okay, good.

All right. Thank you again very much, appreciate it.

Can they get a bite of food before -- they're going to.get cheated out of
having lunch too.

THE MARSHAL: We'll handle it out here. I'm not sure how much we've got.

THE COURT: All right. We know how to get ahold of everybody?

MS. SPELLS: We will provide that information.

MS. JONES: | think we did.

THE COURT: The only person | know how to get-ahold of is Mr. Harvey.

All right. We'll see. As they afternoon progresses, we'll all kind of
monitor the jurors’ progress, if they haven't reached a verdict say by 5 o'clock; Il
have Tom ask them if they're making progress. And if - | would think, you know; if it
goes on to like 6, we'll'start maybe suggesting that they take a break and come back
tormorrow and deliberate but we'll see. But we'll keep you informed.

‘MR. ROSE: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor. Appreciate it.

THE DEFENDANT: | just want to say thank you to everybody too.. | can see
that everybody has a job to do, and | understand it a little miore than -- it's my first
time ever really having to go through this so | do see that it's not just a
it
"

i

H
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THE COURT: Did you learn something?

‘THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, saying thank you.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Best of luck, Mr. Harvey, with whatever happens.
THE COURT: ‘All right, guys. Go relax. We'll see what happens here.

[The jury retired to deliberate at 12:47 p.m.]

ATTEST. 1 hereby certify that I have truly and correctly"transcribed the audio/visual

recording inthe above-entitled case to the best of my ability.
)} }&mg w80kt

Gina Villani
Court Recorder
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right?

FRIDAY; NOVEMBER 18, 2016 AT 11:07 A.M.

[Outside the presence of the jury panel]

THE COURT: We're outside the presence of the jury. We're on the record;

Anything we need to address before the jury comes in?
MR. SCHWARTZ: Not from the State, Your Honor.
MS. SPELLS: No.
THE COURT: You guys good?
MS. SPELLS: Yes.
MR. SCWARTZ: Yes.
THE COURT: Qkay.

[In the presence of the jury panel}

THE MARSHAL: All rise for the jury, please.

And be seated.
THE COURT: Wil the parties stipulate to the presence of the jury.
MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
MS. JONES:; Yes, Your Honor.
MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. ROSE:. Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Very good.

Good morning.
THE JURY: Good morning.
THE COURT: So has the jury selected a foreperson?
THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

2-
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THE COURT: Please stand and identify yourself for the record.
THE FOREPERSON: Michelie Moline.

THE COURT: And Ms. Moline, has the jury reached a verdict?
THE FOREPERSON: Yes, we have.

THE COURT: Will you hand that jury verdict form to the marshal, please.

Will the Defendant please rise. I'm going to have the clerk read into the

record the verdict.

THE CLERK: District Court, Clark County Nevada, the State of Nevada,

Plaintiff; Alfred C. Harvey, Defendant. In Case Number C-16-314260, in
Department ViiL.

‘We, the jury, in the above entitied case find the Defendant, Alfred C.

Harvey as follows: guilty of robbery.
Dated the 18" day of November, 2016.
Ladies and gentlemen of the'jury, is this your verdict as read?
THE JURY: Yes.
THE CLERK: So say you.one so say you all?:
THE JURY: Yes.
THE COURT: Would anybody like thé jury polled?
MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE CLERK: Juror number 1, is this yourverdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 1: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 2, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 2. Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 3, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 3: Yes.
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THE CLERK: Juror number 4, is this your-verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 4: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 5, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 5: Yes:.
THE CLERK; Juror number 6, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 6: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 7, is this yourverdict as read?
JURCR NUMBER 7; Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number:8, is this your verdict as:read?
JUROR NUMBER 8: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 9, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 9: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 10, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 10: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 11, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 11: Yes.
THE CLERK: Juror number 12, is this your verdict as read?
JUROR NUMBER 12: Yes.
THE COURT: Thank you very much.

Thank you-all very much. I'm-about to discharge you from your duties

and obligations as jurors in this matter. A couple of things that | said before we

started, | think probably approved to be pretty much true, one of which it was no

matter how straightforward something would appear on'the outside, what you guys

just went through is not an easy task and it's never easy. So it-looks like you guys

have done everything that we've asked you to do. You paid close attention, you
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‘obviously deliberated full steam, it took a lot of effort for you guys to become

unanimous.oh a verdict, and you've done what we ask a jury to do. Every time we
go through this it restores my faith and why we do what we do. We are the only
country in the world that goes through this because we can trust you guys to pay
attention and to follow the instructions to make a genuine, sincere effort to reach a

just verdict. So | eannot tell you how much | appreciate your jury service and all the

effort you've-put into this.

My admenishment about not talking about the case, no longer ap'p_lies,_
you're free to talk about the case to whatever extent you fell necessary. You're also

free _nof'to talk aboult it, if you choose not to. So if somebody bugs you about telling

'you abeut your jury service and you don't want to talk to them, you call over here.
{land 'l handle it. All right. So at this point -- now, when | say that, one of the best

things that can help these guys over here know how they did what they did and why

and how it affected you guys is they might want to ask you a few questions. You
don't have to talk to them, but if you do, it's certainly appears to help them out.
understanding how jurors perceive certain things. So if you want to talk to them, feell
free to. You're going to go out now; if they're going to talk to you, they’ll probably
come down to the third floor Jury Commissioner’'s Office because Tom's going to
take you -- get your jury badges and everything and you go down fo the third floor
Jury Commissioner's Office, and | think that they pay you all the big bucks that you

guys get for being here.

Do they get the checks right now?
THE MARSHAL.: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay, good. Al right. ‘So, you guys, thank you very much, go

ahead and go with Tom.
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[Outside the presence of the jury panel]
THE COURT: We're outside the presence of the jury. Relax.
Anything we need to put on the record?
MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, the defense would like to request that since you

were the judge that heard the trial, | don’t know if you would be able to sit for the

sentencing.

THE COURT: You know, it's gone both ways. Sometimes | -- relax you guys,

you don't have to stand up. I've just-- I've done it both ways. 1t's kind of up to

Judge Smith. But| will make sure that he khows that that was the request and |

have absolutely no problem whatsoever. We're going - the Defendant’s going'to be

| held without bail pending sentencing or a motion for bail and we need a sentencing

date.
THE CLERK: Yes, Your Honor.
That will be March -- excuse me, January 4" at 8 a.m,
MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you.
THE COURT: Okay. And if we're.going to have an issue about bail, you file

an appropriate motion, let the State respond, and --if you want me to handle that, I'li

handle that too, okay, so.

MR. ROSE: Your Honot, | dof’t know if we need to actually have it officially

jreferred for a PS1 ornot. | don't know if that's part of it.

THE COURT: Yes, we - | don't know — well, | mean it is referred for PSI;
right?

THE CLERK: Yes.

MR. SCHWARTZ: ‘We’ll send -

THE COURT: That just happens automatically. Just so you're aware,
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Mr. Harvey, a Presentence Investigative Report will be prepared, the folks from P&P
will be over to the jail or -

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: --1don’t know if they come in person or if they do it by
telephonic interview.

THE CLERK: They come in person.

THE COURT: But ! think they do, too. | think it would be in person.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay:

THE COURT: So, expect to have a call in some form or fashion in the --

THE DEFENDANT: Thankwyou, sir.

THE COURT: -- fairly near future, probably within the next 30 days for-an
interview; okay?

THE DEFENDANT: All right. Thank you, sir.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, we'd also like to request, and the defense will do.
this as well, any PowerPoints that were part of evidence we should be given the
Court a hard copy so-that it goes up with the file.

MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honor, we'll provide printouts of the State’s
summation and rebuttal PowerPoints. We did not use one for opening.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, ROSE: But we will provide the prinfouts of both of those to the Court.

THE COURT: Hardeopy?

MR. ROSE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MS. SPELLS: And we'll do the same.

THE COURT: s that it?
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MS, SPELLS! [ believe that's it, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
MS. SPELLS: Thank you:

THE COURT: Folks, it's been a pleasure working with professional, like you

guys, you guys have done an excellent job, you did a wonderful presentation, you'vel

been conipletely and totally professional about your preseritations and I'm
impressed.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you.

MS. JONES: Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, sir.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. ROSE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Have a good thanksgiving.

MR. ROSE: Arethe jurors headed down to the third floor?

THE COURT: | think they are.

MR. ROSE: Okay. .

THE.COURT: | think they're collecting the badges and whatever --

MR. ROSE: ‘Okay. Thank you.

[Trial concluded at 11:17.a:m.]

ATTEST: I hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the audio/visual
recording in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

Gina Villani
Court Recorder
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, 3y CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. ) DEPT. NO. VIII

ALFRED C. HARVEY,
DATE: 04/30/18
Defendant, TIME: 08:00 a.m.

SUPPLEMENT TO DEFENDANT'S REPLY TO STATE’S OPPOSITION TO

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORD AND
MOTION ASKING TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE A DECISION IN THIS
MATTER

COMES NOW, the Defendant, Alfred Harvey, by and through his
attorneys, JASMIN. SPELLS and SHARON G. DICKINSON, Deputy Public
Defenders, and respectfully files this Supplement to the Reply asking this
Honorable court to direct this motion be heard by the trial judge, Judge Bixler, to,

reconstrict the record regarding the jury note found in the District Court Bvidence

1646

Case Number: C-16-314260-1



S S o S O N VS T

fe

10
11

12

13

14
15
16
17

18

19
20

21

22

23
24

25

26

28

Vault and asks for an Evidentiary Hearing. This Supplement is made and based

upon all the papers and pleadings ‘on file herein, the attached Declarations of

Counsel, and oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.

DATED this 27 day of April, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharon G. Dickinson

SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Since the filing of the Reply Motions.to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s.
Motion for a New Trial and Motion to Reconstruct the Record, Defense learned
that at the beginning of deliberations in this case, the Court Marshall gave his cell
phone number to the jurors. One juror indicated someone told her the foreperson

called the Court Marshall the first day of deliberations regarding a procedural

issue. On the second day, “the Court Marshall came into the jury room, closed the
door, and stated if someone with a procedural issue would like to speak to the.

Judge, the Judge would like to speak with that person.” Exhkibit N. However no

one left the room to speak to the Judge. The jury foreperson also contacted the

Couit Marshall during the second day of deliberations. See Exhibits N, and O.

The jury foreperson rememjsered giving the note to the Court Marshall on

the second day of deliberations and the Coutt Marshall returning within an hour.
‘The ‘Court Marshall told the jury they could not elaborate and that this was asked

-and answered. Shortly after recciving the answer, the jury reached a verdict. See

Exhibit P.

A bailiff’s oral ex parte communications with @ jury, beyond what NRS
175.391 allows, “is a species of jury misconduct.” Lamb v. State, 251 P.3d 700,
711-12 (2011). Statements from a judge to a j_ury-or. from a bailiff are subject to

scrutiny since “the ‘official character of the bailiff — as an officer of the court as




well as of the State — beyond question carries great weight with a jury.”” Lamb at”
712 citing Parker v. Gladden, 385 U.S. 363, 365 (1966). Therefore all
communications between the court or bailiff and the jury must be in writing or

conducted orally in the courtroom so that there is a record of the exact

-admonishment given to the jury for appellate review. Daniel v. State, 119 Nev.

498, 511 (2003). Failing to notify counsel about a communication with the jury
and failing to make a record of such communication can result in reversible error.
Daniel at 511. Accordingly, an evidentiary hearing is needed to determine what
the Court Marshall said to the deliberating jurors.

The exact wotding of what was said to the jury is important to determine if
there was a coercive nature to the ex parte communications. In Redeford v. State,

93 Nev. 649 (1977), without approval of the parties, the judge orally informed the

-deadlocked jury that if the case had to be tried over again,_ that they would not

accomplish anything by not reaching a verdict and asked them to “put your
collective minds together, and reach a verdict in this case.”™ Id. at 651. The
Nevada Supreme Court found the court’s comments coercive when less than two
hours later the jury convicted the appellant of one charge and acquitted him of the

other.
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Here, the jury deliberated over two days and came back with a verdict
quickly after receiving an answer to the question. on the note. Thus, query into the
cominents made by the Court Marshall is needed.

Not only is an inquiry into what the Court Marshall said to the jury
important, inquiry into what the Court Marshall said to others is needed. The
Defense believes information regarding jury deliberations in this case may have
been given to others because Mr. Harvey was aware that there was a holdout juror
before Ieaming the verdict. Thus, an evidentiary hearing is needed to determine
how such information was leaked. Exhibit Q.

CONCLUSION

In view of the above, an evidentiary hearing is needed.,
DATED this 27 day of April, 2018.

PHILIE J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Sharon G Dickinson
SHARON G. D.IC-K-INSON_, #3710
Chief Deputy Public Defender

PHILIP J. KOHN B
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_/s/ Jasmin D. Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was

served via electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at

motignsiclarkeouniyda.com on this 27 day of April, 2018.

By: __/s/Carrie M. Connolly

An employee of the

Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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DRECL

PHILIP I, KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 05356

JTASMIN D. SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BARNO, 11635

PUBLIC DEFENDERS QFFICE

309 South Third Siveet, Suite 226:

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 '

‘Telephene: {702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702)455-5112
Lilly Jdcharkcoumynv gov
Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, 3 CASENO. C-16-314260-]
3. 3 DEPT.NO. VI
ALFREDC, HARVEY, %
D’efen'da;}t,_.. %

DECLARATION

SUSIE CHANG makes the followihg declaration:

I, Iam more than.18 years of age and am competent to testify as 1o the
matters stated herein, I also havepersonal knowledge of the facts stated herein or I have been
informed of these facts'and believe them ta be trie.

2. To.my best recollection I reémember the following events pecurring during
jury deliberations.in'the above entitled case.

3. Twas ajufor.in State v, Harvey. ‘We:deliberated for two days.

4, At the beginning of jury deliberations, the' Court Marchall gave'gach juror his

gellular telephone mumber, During the. ﬁrs‘c day-of deliberations; [ hear I}ﬁ:? Tﬁﬁ%re})em
telephoned the Court Marshall reparding a procedural issue. We'did not reach a verdict the first

day.
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e =5, On the second day of deliberations, the Court Marshall eame Tato the jury
5 | toom, closed the door and stated if the person with a procedural issue would iii;e to-spedk with
3 | the: Judge, the Judge would like to speak-with that person. At.that time no one- spoke with the
4 Fudge, ~mQLQ;>
5 | I’%&M Sign. oweme

6 1 Wy,ght the: forgperson. may have: contacted the Court Marshall during the
'6.
second day of delibérations.
’_}' .

g 7. I remember-a question being dsked regarding a definition, 1 do not remerber
o if the question was asked in writien form. However, there wasan answer within. 5-10 mimitas.
16 8. The disCus’s’ibns during delibe,ra’ﬁ'(ms focused on whettier a. person could be

oW fearfill and we discussed the circumstances of the ncident,

! I declare under’ penalty of perjury that the foregoing istrug-and correct. (NRS

I3 | |

- $3.045).

14 ' -

vs EXECUTED this < ] dayof Aprit, 2018,

6
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DECL

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

JASMIN D: SPELLS; DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BARNO, 11 635 .

PURLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 Southi Third Strect, Suite 226

Las Vepas, Nevada 89155
Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112

L 1llyjd@clarkcomﬁynv 20V
Arfm neysfor Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASENO. C-16-314260<1
V. % DEPT.NO. VIII.
ALFRED C. HARVEY, 3
Defendant.. i
DECLARATION

LEE ANN WORTHAM-THOMAS rmiakes the following declaration:

1. I am more thai 1§ yeurs of age and ani competent. to _tcs’iii'-y" as to the

matters stated herein, I also have personal knowledge-6f the facts stated herein or 1 have been

iriformed of these fadts and believe them to be tnie.

2. To my best recollection I témembes the following events occurring during

jury deliberations iri the above entitled case,

3. Twasa jutor in State v: Harvey, We deliberated for two days.

4. At the beginning of jury deliberdtions,. the :Court, Matstiall gave each-juror his

 cellular télephone number i case of enicrgency.

5. To the best of my recollection; a note Was given tb the Court Marshall on day

Iwo:

1656




1=J

Lat

~ e

6. During delibetations, jurors discussed being scared of 4 knile and thie
diflerence between a robbery and a shoplifting.

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correet. (NRS
53.045).

EXECUTED this 26th day of April, 2018.

JZJ_CL_, /Z g z’uf

9
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DECL

- PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDLR

NEVADA BARNO 0556

JTASMIN B, SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BARNO.1 1633 _

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Strest, Suite 226

L.as Vegas, Nevada 89135

Te]ephone (702) 455-4685

Fagsimile: (702) 455-3112.

Lillyjd@clarkcountynv.gov

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY; NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 5)
Plaintiff, % CASENO. C-16-314260-1
v, % DEPT. NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY; %
Deferidant,. §

DPECLARATION

MICHARLLE MOLINE makes the following declaration:

1. 1 am more than 18 years of agé and atm competent: to. testify as to the
matters stated herein. 1 also have personal knowledge of the facts stated heréin or T have béen
informed-of these facts dnd believe them to be true.

2,  To.niy best vecolleetion 1 r:emcm;bcr the: fdllowmg-'_éi{gnis occiirring during

Jjury deliberations in the above erititléd case.

3. T was tlie jury foreperson in State v. Harvey, We-deliberated for two days:

4, At the beginnitig of jury’ deliberations, the Court Marshall gave each juror his
cellular telephohe number. We did not teach a verdict the first day.

5. Onthe secend day. of'deﬂib_eratiuns,. 1 authored anote:which I gavée to the Court

Marshall. ‘Within an hour of giving Him the noie, ho feturned {o the jury xoom and said they
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“could not elaborale and that this-was asked and answersd. The note was given towards the end
‘of jury deliberations and shortly after recéiving the answer we reached a verdict,

6. The jury note attached 1o this declaration is.the note  wrote. [never reeeived

‘the note -back and therefore do not have any knowledge as lo the typed statement.on top of the

note or the sticker on the bottom,

7. The only person I had contaet with during jury deliberations was the. Court
Marshall.

8. The discussions during deliberations focused on whether a person could be
fearful and what could be considerad a threat. We discussed the circumstances of the incident.

! declare’ under penalty of perjury that the forcgoing is true and correcl, (NRS

L
b
=
o
L]
St

EXECUTED this R l day of April, 2018.

e

2]
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The Courtis not at liberty to supplement the -
evidence.
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DECL _

PHILIP. J, KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 0556 _ o
JASMIN D, SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NQ, 11635 ‘
 PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Stiect, Suife 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

* ‘Pelephone: (702) 455-4683

Fagsimile: (702)455-5112
Lillyjd@clarkcountyny.gov

Attorneys for Defendanl

PISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
v, 3 DEPT, NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, %
Defendant, §

DECLARATION

DOUGLAS HENKE makes the following declaration:

1. . I-am more thah 18 years of -apge-and am competent 1o testify as to the
matters stated herein. [-also have personal knowledge of the facts stated herein or ['have been
informed of these facts. and believe them to be trae.

2. To my best '1'c¢ollgcti6n T remember the following events oecurting during
my investigation regarding the above entitled case.

3, ] ain currently employed with the Office of the Public Defender.

4, 1 am the investigator for the Public Defender in State v. Harvey.
5. During the jury deliberations, 1 was requested to investigate possible jury

fampering and for inappropriate communications with the jurors and due (0 Alfred Harvey

 knowing there was-a holdout juror before learning of the verdict.




13

6. During my investigation; 1 contacted and alteinpted to contact sevoral

10

5 | jurors regacding ony tampering and/or inappropriate ‘communications with the jurors.  All
3 | contacted jurors denied any inappropriate b'ehavio1'lco1mnunicat_ion3;

4 7. In April of 2018, Attorney Jasmin Spells informed .me that Attorney
> Sharon Dickinson discovered ajury note.

é 8. 1 was requested to contact the jurors regarding the note.

: 9, During my second investigation, several jurors stated the Court Marshall
9

provided his cellular felephone to the jury and possible telephone calls were made from a juror to

10§ the Court Marshall.

11 10.  Upon information and belief from my second investigation, conversations
12 between the jurors, Court Marshall and Clark County Detention Transportation Officers were
1 ‘made during and after the jury deliberaiions.

15 11, Based on the new information obtained, an ongoing investigation is being

16 1 conducted regarding the abovementioned events.
17
18 || 1 declare nnder pendilty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS 53.045).
19
20
21
22
23
24

EXECUTED this 2.3 _day of April, 2018.

25
26
27
28
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Electronically Filed
5/4/2018 12:57 PM
Steven D. Grierson
1! ORDR CLERK OF THE Cougg
Judge Douglas E. Smith &;&—A ol
2|l Eighth Judicial District Court
3 Department VIII
Regional Justice Center
41| 200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
5|| (702)671-4338
6 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7
8|| THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9 Plaintiff,
10 Ve CASE NO: C-16-314260-1
ALFRED HARVEY, : VIII
11 47013008 DEPT NO:
12 Defendant.
13
14 ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL AND
DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORD
15 DATE OF HEARING: April 30, 2018
16 TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 A.M.
17 THIS MATTER, having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
g
18 30* day of April, 2018, the Defendant not being present, represented by JASMIN SPELLS
19|/ and SHARON DICKINSON, Deputy Public Defenders, the Plaintiff being represented by
20| STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through BRYAN SCHWARTZ, Deputy District
21|| Attorney, and the Court having heard the arguments of counsel and good cause appearing
22| therefor,
23 THIS COURT FOUND the allegations presented by Defendant did not constitute new
24| “evidence,” the Court having found that J udge Bixler does not recall the jury question.
25 THIS COURT HAVING FURTHER FOUND that in response to the discovered jury
26| question, Judge Bixler did not remember whether or not the question was presented to
27 attorneys.
2811 ///
DOUGLAS E. SMITH
DISTRICT JUDGE
DSEPAER(;'MgNT EIGHT
LAS VEGAS NV 89155
1666
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THIS COURT HAVING FURTHER FOUND that even if the question was presented
to the attorneys, the question held the notation “The Court is not at liberty to supplement the
evidence” would have been the proper and legal response to respond to the jury inquiry,
attached as Exhibit A.

THIS COURT HAVING FURTHER FOUND that the Defendant failed to show that a
different outcome would have been probable;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant’s Motion for New Trial shall be and it
is Denied.

THIS COURT HAVING FOUND that the Defendant failed to show that it was
necessary to reconstruct the record, and that it would be unfair to allow the Defendant to
reconstruct the record using the juror affidavits;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant’s Motion to Reconstruct the Record

2L

{DOUGKAS E.SMITH
DISTRICTCOURT JUDGE

shall be and it is Denied.

DATED this 4" day of May 20138,

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 4™ day of May 2018, a copy of this Order was
electronically served to all registered parties in the Eighth Judicial District Court
Electronic Filing Program and/or placed in the attorney’s folder maintained by the
Clerk of the Court and/or transmitted via facsimile and/or mailed, postage prepaid,
by United States mail to the proper parties or per the attached list as follows:

Bryan Schwartz, bryan.schwartz@clarkcountyda.com
DA motions, Motions@clarkcountyda.com

Jasmin Spells, lillyid@clarkcountynv.gov

Sharon Dickinson, dickinsg@clarkcountynv.gov

_ p 5 2
Jill Jacoby, Judicial Executive Assistant
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Electronically Filed
4/23/2018 8:57 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
EXPR C&“_A ;ﬁ-w-——*

PHILIP-J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

JASMIN D. SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER.
NEVADA BAR NO. 11635
PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Telephone: (702) 455-4685
Facsimile: (702) 384-1969
Lillyjd@clarkcountynv.gov

Atforneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA.,, )
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. 3 DEPT. NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, %
Defendant; %

EX PARTE ORDER FOR TRANSCRIPT

Upon the ex parte application of the dbove-named Defendant, ALERED' C.
HARVEY, by and through, JASMIN D. SPELLS, Deputy Public Defender. and good cause
appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the couit recorder Gina Villani, prepate at State
expense, an expedited transeript of the proceedings.for case C-16-314260-1 heard on April 18,
2018 in District Court, Dept. 8.

DATED this 18th day of April, 2018.

DISTRI(:T“COUM’D'G%-
sSubmitted. by:. ;-
PHILIP J. KOHN

CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By__/s/Jasmin D. Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Deputy Publi¢c Defender
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Electronically Filed

~ 5/7/2018 2:53 PM

Steven D. Grierson

' ) CLERK OF THE COU
PHILIP |. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556 N
JASMIN D. SPELLS, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BARNO. 11635 _

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 384-1969

Lillyjd@clarkcountynv.gov

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASENO. C-16-314260-1
v. ; DEPT. NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, % |
Defendant. ;

)

EX PARTE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED TRANSCRIPT

Upon the ex parte ap_p_ﬁeation- of the above-named Defendant, ALFRED C.
HARVEY, by and through, JASMIN D. SPELLS, Deputy Publi¢- Défender, and good cause
appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the court recorder Gina Villani, prepare at State
expense, an expedited transcript of the proceedings for case C-16-314260-1 heard on April 30,
2018 in District Court, Dept. 8.

DATED this 30day of April, 2018.

%

DISTRICT COURA TUDGEQz-
Submitted by: U

PHILIP-J. KON -
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER.

By_ ./sttasmin.D_Spells
JASMIN D. SPELLS, #11635
Deputy Public Defénder
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Electronically Filed
5/16/2018 12:49 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
NOAS W' ﬁuﬂnﬂ

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR No. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4685

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. 3 DEPT. NO. VIII
ALFRED C. HARVEY, %
Defendant. %
) NOTICE OF APPEAL

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA and DEPARTMENT NO. VIII OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF CLARK.

NOTICE is hereby given that Defendant, Alfred C. Harvey,
presently incarcerated in the Nevada State Prison, appeals to the
Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from the judgment entered
against said Defendant on the 4 day of May, 2018, whereby the
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for New Trial and Defendant’s
Motion to Reconstruct the Record was entered.

DATED this 16 day of May, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: _ /s/ Sharon G. Dickinson
SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION OF MAILING

Carrie Connolly, an employee with the Clark County
Public Defender’s Office, hereby declares that she 1i1s, and was
when the herein described mailing took place, a citizen of the
United States, over 21 years of age, and not a party to, nor
interested in, the within action; that on the 16 day of May, 2018,
declarant deposited iIn the United States mail at Las Vegas,
Nevada, a copy of the Notice of Appeal in the case of the State of
Nevada v. Alfred C. Harvey, Case No. C-16-314260-1, enclosed iIn a
sealed envelope upon which Ffirst class postage was fully prepaid,
addressed to Alfred C. Harvey, c/o High Desert State Prison, P.O.
Box 650, Indian Springs, NV 89070. That there 1i1s a regular
communication by mail between the place of mailing and the place
so addressed.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct.

EXECUTED on the 16 day of May, 2018.

_/s/ Carrie M. Connolly
An employee of the Clark County
Public Defender’s Office
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing

was made this 16 day of May, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

District Attorneys Office
E-Mail Address:

PDMotions@clarkcountyda.com

Jennifer._Garcia@clarkcountyda.com

Eileen._Davis@clarkcountyda.com

/s/ Carrie M. Connolly
Secretary for the
Public Defender’s Office
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Electronically Filed
5/16/2018 12:52 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUE :I
CAS CZQa*“'

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR No. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4685

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, CASE NO. C-16-314260-1
V. DEPT. NO. VIII

ALFRED C. HARVEY,
Defendant.

o o\ o\

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Appellant Tfiling this case appeal statement:
Alfred C. Harvey.

2. Judge 1issuing the decision, judgment, or order
appealed from: Douglas E. Smith.

3. All parties to the proceedings i1n the district
court (the use of et al. To denote parties is prohibited): The
State of Nevada, Plaintiff; Alfred C. Harvey, Defendant.

4. All parties involved iIn this appeal (the use of
et. al. to denote parties is prohibited): Alfred C. Harvey,

Appellant; The State of Nevada, Respondent.
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5. Name, law firm, address, and telephone number of

all counsel on appeal and party or parties whom they represent:

PHILIP J. KOHN STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County Public Defender Clark County District Attorney
309 South Third Street, #226 200 Lewis Avenue, 3" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Attorney for Appellant ADAM LAXALT

Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
(702) 687-3538

Counsel for Respondent

6. Whether appellant was represented by appointed or
retained counsel In the district court: Appointed.

7. Whether appellant i1s represented by appointed or
retained counsel on appeal: Appointed.

8. Whether appellant was granted leave to proceed in
forma pauperis, and the date of entry of the district court
order granting such leave: N/A.

9. Date proceedings commenced in the district court
(e.g., date complaint, indictment, information, or petition was
filed): Information filed 04/19/16.

DATED this 16 day of May, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: _/s/ Sharon G. Dickinson
SHARON G. DICKINSON, #3710
Deputy Public Defender
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foregoing

Filing to:

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and

was made this 16 day of May, 2018, by Electronic

District Attorneys Office
E-Mail Address:
PDMotions@ccdanv.com

Jennifer.Garcia@ccdanv.com

Eileen.Davis@ccdanv.com

/s/ Carrie M. Connolly

Secretary for the
Public Defender’s Office

1676



mailto:PDMotions@ccdanv.com
mailto:Jennifer.Garcia@ccdanv.com
mailto:Eileen.Davis@ccdanv.com

C-16-314260-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES February 07, 2018
C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Alfred Harvey
February 07, 2018 8:00 AM Status Check:  Supreme Court Order Granting Motion
to Withdraw and Remanding to Secure
Counsel
HEARD BY: Smith, Douglas E. COURTROOM: R]JC Courtroom 11B

COURT CLERK: Carol Donahoo
RECORDER: Gina Villani

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Jonathan Cooper, Chf Dep DA, present on behalf of the State and Kelli DeVaney-Sauter, Dep PD,
present on behalf of Deft. Harvey, who is not present. Detft. is incarcerated in the Nevada Department
of Corrections (NDC).

This is the time set for the Status Check regarding the Supreme Court Order Granting Motion to
Withdraw and Remanding to Secure Counsel. Court noted that Timothy Treffinger, Esq., was
appellate counsel for the Deft.; however, he has withdrawn as counsel of record so the Supreme
Court has remanded the appeal for the limited purpose of securing new counsel for appellate. This
Court's staff contacted the Office of Appointed Counsel and was told that the Public Defender could
be appointed as counsel for the Deft. Therefore, COURT ORDERED, matter set for status check: the
Public Defender's office is to perform a conflict check and confirm, if possible, next date.

NDC

02/14/18 8:00 AM STATUS CHECK: CONFIRMATION OF PUBLIC DEFENDER AS APPELLATE
COUNSEL
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C-16-314260-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES February 14, 2018
C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Alfred Harvey
February 14, 2018 8:00 AM Status Check:  Confirmation of Public Defender as
Appellate Counsel
HEARD BY: Smith, Douglas E. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11B

COURT CLERK: Carol Donahoo
RECORDER: Gina Villani
REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES
- Vivian Luong, Dep DA, present on behalf of the State and Kelli DeVaney-Sauter, Dep PD, present
on behalf of Deft. Harvey, who is not present. Deft. is incarcerated in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC).
This is the time set for the Status Check on Confirmation of Public Defender as Appellate Counsel.
Ms. DeVaney-Sauter advised that the Public Defender's office performed a conflict check and it
appears there are none; therefore, they can CONFIRM as Appellate Counsel at this time. COURT SO
NOTED.

NDC

PRINT DATE:  02/15/2018 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  February 14, 2018
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C-16-314260-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES April 16, 2018
C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Alfred Harvey
April 16, 2018 8:00 AM All Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Smith, Douglas E. COURTROOM: R]JC Courtroom 11B

COURT CLERK: Carol Donahoo
RECORDER: Gina Villani
REPORTER:

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- DEFT.'S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRS 176.515 BASED ON GROUNDS OF
NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE AND MOTION FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND
DECISION BY TRIAL JUDGE . .. DEFT.'S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORDS AND
MOTION ASKING TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE A DECISION IN THIS MATTER

Brian Schwartz, Dep DA, present on behalf of the State; Sharon Dickinson, Chf Dep PD, and Jasmin
Spell, Dep PD, present on behalf of Deft. Harvey, who is not present. Deft. is incarcerated in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC). Ms. Spells requested that the Deft.'s presence be
WAIVED.

This is the time set for hearing on the above-named motions; Mr. Schwartz advised that the State has
not had an opportunity to respond to the motions but will get their Oppositions filed today. With
regard to the trial judge hearing the motions, the State submits.

Ms. Spells advised that the Defense is requesting that this Court set this matter at a time when Judge

Bixler would be available to hear it; she understands that Judge Bixler is a Senior Judge but he is the

Judge who presided over the trial. This case was heavily litigated; the matter was originally assigned
PRINT DATE: 04/24/2018 Page 1 of 2 Minutes Date:  April 16, 2018
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C-16-314260-1

to Judge Miley, who heard and decided most of the motions. The matter was then sent to Overflow,
picked up by this Department, and heard by Judge Bixler. The issue that the parties are dealing with
occurred during the trial and that is why they believe Judge Bixler should be the one to decide it
because he is the one who is most familiar with the facts and circumstances of the underlying issue.

Court noted that the newly discovered evidence is the note from the Jury, which reads as follows:
"Can we have elaboration on the definition, by means of force or violence or fear of injury." To which
the Court responded, "The Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence." Defense claims that
they never saw the question and were not consulted on a possible answer to the question.

Colloquy as to whether or not the Court is at liberty to supplement the Jury Instructions; Ms. Spells
believes there are numerous arguments she could make in support of the Jury's question but she
would like an opportunity to see the State's Oppositions and respond before this Court makes a final
determination. COURT ORDERED, Motions CONTINUED.

NDC

CONTINUED TO: 04/30/18 8:00 AM

PRINT DATE: 04/24/2018 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date:  April 16, 2018
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C-16-314260-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES April 30, 2018
C-16-314260-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Alfred Harvey
April 30, 2018 8:00 AM All Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Smith, Douglas E. COURTROOM: R]JC Courtroom 11B

COURT CLERK: Carol Donahoo
RECORDER: Gina Villani

PARTIES
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- DEFT.'S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRS 176.515 BASED ON GROUNDS OF
NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE AND MOTION FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND
DECISION BY TRIAL JUDGE . .. DEFT.'S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORDS AND
MOTION ASKING TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE A DECISION IN THIS MATTER

Brian Schwartz, Dep DA, present on behalf of the State; Sharon Dickinson, Chf Dep PD, and Jasmin
Spells, Dep PD, present on behalf of Deft. Harvey, who is not present. Deft. is incarcerated in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC).

This is the time set for hearing on Deft.'s Motion for New Trial and Motion to Reconstruct the Record.
Upon Court's inquiry, Ms. Spells advised that the newly the newly discovered evidence is the note
from the Jury that was marked as an exhibit. Counsel found the note during the appellate process
and the parties were not notified at the time the Jury was deliberating that there was a question. The
noted said, "Can we have elaboration on the definition, by means of force or violence or fear of
injury," which is one of the elements of a robbery charge. At the top of the note the Court's response
was as follows: "The Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence."

Ms. Dickinson advised that in the note, the Jury was asking for a legal definition but the response had
to do with evidence so that is not what they were asking for. Ms. Dickinson believes the Court should
have brought the trial attorneys back into court to look at the instruction, formulate an answer, and

PRINT DATE:  05/10/2018 Page 1 of 2 Minutes Date:  April 30, 2018
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C-16-314260-1

decide what to do; she discussed NRS 175.451, Gonzales v. State, and Jeffries v. State. When the
parties were last present, the Court indicated that Judge Bixler did not remember this case so Defense
Counsel spoke with a few of the Jurors; Supplemental Points and Authorities were submitted. The
Jurors remember giving the note and one of the Jurors made comments about the response given by
the Court's Marshal, which brings up further concern because the trial attorneys were not made
aware of any of this because none if it is a part of the record. Therefore, Ms. Dickinson believes an
Evidentiary Hearing is necessary to ascertain why the procedures were not correctly followed and
what happened with the note.

Colloquy; the Court believes that "The Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence" is the
appropriate response to the question and that it is not new evidence; the appropriate evidence and
arguments were presented at the time of trial, there is no new evidence. Although a mistake may
have occurred, what difference would it have made because if the trial attorneys would have been
brought back into court, the response the Court gave would have been the response of the trial
attorneys.

Ms. Spells advised that the note is not evidence but a clarification on what the law is. The Jury is the
trier of fact and the Court informs the Jury on what the law is. Ms. Spells believes that the Jury was
confused as to what the law was. If Defense counsel would have had the opportunity, they would
have objected to the Court's response to the note, directed the Jurors to the appropriate Jury
Instruction, or proffered new ones. Court noted that the Jury Instructions cannot be supplemented
once the Jury begins their deliberations. COURT ORDERED, the Motion is DENIED.

Ms. Spells advised that there is an additional argument; Defense counsel believes there was possible
misconduct because the Deft. was aware that there was a holdout Juror prior to the Jury coming back
with a verdict. Additionally, in speaking with the some of the Jurors, they indicated that there were
additional conversations between the Jurors and the Court's Marshal about procedural aspects and he
may have provided them with his cell phone number. Defense Counsel was not made aware of the
conversations; they should have been done in writing or placed on the record, neither occurred and
the cell phone issue also needs to be explored. Therefore, Ms. Spells is requesting that the Court set
an Evidentiary Hearing. COURT FURTHER ORDERED, the prior ruling STANDS, the Motion is
DENIED. State to prepare Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law consistent with their Opposition.

With regard to the Motion to Reconstruct the Records, Ms. Dickinson advised that Defense Counsel
needs to have the record reconstructed to determine how the note ended up in the District Court's
evidence vault; there is nothing in the record which explains that; colloquy. COURT ORDERED, Ms.
Dickinson is free to file a reconstruction; however, her request to use the Declarations from the Jurors
is DENIED. State to prepare the Order.

NDC

PRINT DATE:  05/10/2018 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date:  April 30, 2018

1682



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Electronically Filed
4/25/2018 12:50 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE C?ﬁ‘
RTRAN C&wf prssson

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE#: C-16-314260-1

Plaintiff, DEPT. VI
VS.
ALFRED HARVEY,

Defendant.

N e e e e e e A A N

BEFORE THE HONORABLE DOUGLAS E. SMITH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
MONDAY, APRIL 16, 2018

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS:
DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRS
176.515 BASED ON GROUNDS OF NEWLY DISCOVERED
EVIDENCE AND MOTION FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING AND
DECISION BY TRIAL JUDGE
DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO RECONSTRUCT THE RECORDS AND
MOTION ASKING TRIAL JUDGE TO MAKE A DECISION IN THIS

MATTER
APPEARANCES:
For the State: BRYAN S. SCHWARTZ, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney
For the Defendant: SHARON G. DICKINSON, ESQ.

JASMIN D. SPELLS, ESQ.
Deputy Public Defenders

RECORDED BY: GINA VILLANI, COURT RECORDER
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Monday, April 16, 2018

[Hearing began at 8:02 a.m.]

THE COURT: C314260, Alfred Harvey.

MS. DICKINSON: Good morning, Your Honor, Sharon
Dickinson from the Public Defender’s Office. I'm waiting for Jasmine
Spells. She was the trial attorney.

THE COURT: Who?

MS. DICKINSON: Jasmine Spells. She was the trial attorney.

THE COURT: Allright. Okay.

MS. DICKINSON: If we could wait until she gets here.

[Hearing trailed at 8:03 a.m.]
[Hearing recalled at 8:32 a.m.]

THE COURT: C314260, Alfred Harvey.

MS. SPELLS: Good morning, Your Honor, Jasmine Spells
and Sharon Dickinson on behalf of Mr. Harvey, who is not present but in
custody in NDOC, we’d ask that his presence be waived.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SCHWARTZ: And, Your Honor, | hadn’t had a chance to
respond to their motion. I'll get it filed today. | know that they were
going to request that the trial judge actually hear the motion. The State’s
position on that is --

THE COURT: He’s a senior judge now; he’s not the trial
judge.

MR. SCHWARTZ: So the State’s position is we’ll submit it to
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you on the --

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SPELLS: And, Your Honor, we are asking that the Court
set this at a time that Judge Bixler can hear -- we do understand that
Judge Bixler is a senior judge at this time. This case was heavily
litigated, we were originally in front of Judge Miley, who heard most of
the motions, decided most of the motions, and made those records. But
the issue that we're dealing with now is very pertinent to exactly what
occurred during the trial and we were sent here from overflow, Your
Honor --

THE COURT: What the question to the jury, is that what you
wanted -- you want that issue of, is that what you're talking about?

MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor, as well as perfecting the
record. Because Judge Bixler was the one who would have been most
intimately familiar with the facts and circumstances of that because he
would have been the judge proceeding over the trial.

THE COURT: | talked to Judge Bixler about this and Bixler
doesn’t remember. If the question -- the question was something to the
effect that the jury asked a question about the definition of --

MR. SCHWARTZ: Robbery.

THE COURT: -- the robbery; is that correct?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes.

MS. SPELLS: Yes, force or violence. Specifically --

THE COURT: Force or violence.

MS. SPELLS: Force or violence.

Page 3 1685
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THE COURT: And then -- and there is a notation at the top of

the paper that says, the Court is not at liberty to supplement the

evidence.

MS. DICKINSON: Correct.

MS. SPELLS: Yes.

THE COURT: And your position is that you didn’t discuss this
at all?

MS. SPELLS: Our position is that we never seen the
guestion, we were unaware of it, and --

THE COURT: Had you been in trial right now and that
guestion came up, what would the response likely be?

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, we would have had a number of
responses, which is what we detailed in our motion. Specifically, we
would have asked that certain jury instructions be presented, additionally
we would have asked to --

THE COURT: Now, the jury is deliberating when they came
up with this -- this -- is the Court at liberty to supplement the jury
instructions? No.

MS. SPELLS: Yes, Your Honor, the Court is at liberty given
the --

THE COURT: No, they're not.

MS. SPELLS: Respectfully, Your Honor, | disagree given the
jury instructions that were given to the jury specifically which are
enumerated in our motion. Additionally, we are at liberty to answer

certain questions. We can at least refer them to jury instructions that
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were already given and that was one of the things that we argued in our
motion.

So there are a lot of different arguments, Your Honor. We
would like an opportunity to review the State’s response and then again
respond additionally before the Court makes any ruling.

But our concern is that --

THE COURT: Well, they submitted it. And my position is
this --

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, they're asking for time to file --

THE COURT: Do you want to respond?

MR. SCHWARTZ: Well, what | was saying, Your Honor, is we
submitted who was going to hear the motion, that’s what | was saying,
Your Honor.

I'll -- I'd be happy to orally argue it right now, if you --

THE COURT: No, if you want to -- if you want to file --

MR. SCHWARTZ: | can --

THE COURT: -- something written.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yeah.

THE COURT: At this point | am not inclined to grant it,
because if you had come -- if we were in trial and that question came up,
then what happens is, normally, the judge calls the attorneys and both
attorneys agree that the Court is not at liberty to supplement the jury
instructions and would send the jury back that letter.

That's exactly what is on that paper. I've reviewed this with a

few other judges and they all agree that this should be denied. But | will
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let the State respond.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. SPELLS: And we’d like an opportunity to file a response
to their opposition, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That's fine.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Your Honor, I'll have my response filed
today.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, I'll probably need till Friday or
Monday to file --

THE COURT: Two weeks.

THE CLERK: April 30™.

THE COURT: Make sure all your papers -- and send copies
to the Court for courtesy.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you.

[Hearing concluded at 8:37 a.m.]

*k k k k%

ATTEST: Ido hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

R

Gina Villani
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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Electronically Filed
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE#: C-16-314260-1

Plaintiff, DEPT. VI
VS.
ALFRED HARVEY,

Defendant.

N e e e e e e A A N

BEFORE THE HONORABLE DOUGLAS E. SMITH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS:
DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRS
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DECISION BY TRIAL JUDGE
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MATTER
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Monday, April 30, 2018

[Hearing began at 8:31 a.m.]

THE COURT: C314260, Alfred Harvey.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor --

THE COURT: All right. Defense motion.

MS. DICKINSON: -- Sharon Dickinson on behalf of
Mr. Harvey. I'm his appellate attorney. Ms. Jamine is his trial attorney.

THE COURT: You filed a motion saying there’s newly
discovered evidence. What’s the newly discovered evidence?

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, the newly discovered evidence is
the note that was an exhibit. We found that during the appellate
process. The parties weren’t previously notified that there was a note
that the jury asked of the Court.

THE COURT: What note -- what did the note say?

MS. SPELLS: The note asked specifically for a clear
definition -- or for more definition to use of force or injury, which is one of
the elements of the robbery charges.

THE COURT: And what was typed on the top?

MS. SPELLS: What was typed on the top, Your Honor, was
that the Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence.

THE COURT: Isn’t that exactly what would happen in a trial?
We went back -- we've talked about this before. But when a jury is out,
the Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence. The evidence is

what it is. So this isn’t newly discovered evidence.
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MS. DICKINSON: But, Your Honor, if | could say something.
In the note they were asking for a definition, legal definition.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. DICKINSON: The response had to do with evidence. It
doesn’t -- it isn’t what they were asking for, they weren’t asking for
evidence.

And there are four reasons why the Court should have brought
the defense back into court to look at this instruction and seek their
input. The firstis NRS 175.451, which is a statute that directs the trial
Court to do this.

The second is jury instruction number 23. The jury was given
instructions from this trial Court, not you but the judge who was presiding
at the time, that if the jury had a question about the law or if they were
confused, they were to give a note to the court marshal and they would
be -- they would receive more instruction.

Fourth, we have the Gonzalez versus State case from 2015,
where the Nevada Supreme Court said, where a jury’s question during
deliberations suggest confusion or lack of understanding of a significant
element of the applicable law, the Court has a duty to give additional
instructions on the law to clarify the jury’s doubt or confusion.

And number four, we have a more recent case, Jeffries versus
State, it's from 2017, and in that case the Supreme Court again said to
the trial judge that you are allowed to give additional instructions. And
they did this by saying the defense is required to proffer additional jury

instructions, if such a note comes during deliberations.
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So there are four reasons why the trial Court should have
brought everybody back into court to look at this note and decide what to
do.

Now, when we were in here last time | know the Court said
that Judge Bixler doesn’t remember anything about it. We did, since
then, go ahead and speak to a few of the jurors. And we did submit
some supplemental points and authorities where the jurors have talked
about this note, they remember giving the note, they -- one jurors made
comments about what was said.

I’m curious, did the Court receive copies of these?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. DICKINSON: Because we filed them late on Friday.

In fact, one of the jurors made comments as to what the court
marshal -- the court’s marshal said to them at the time, which brings up
further concern because the trial attorneys were not privy to any of this,
none of this is in the record either.

So, basically, I'm just summarizing why the procedures were
not correct -- correctly done by this trial -- by this trial judge. And we
don’t know what happened to the note. We don’t know if it was given to
him because he doesn’t remember it. We don’t know if it was given to
some other judge.

THE COURT: But -- but you've tried cases and I've tried
cases. If the jury had asked that question, the Court is not at liberty to
supplement the evidence would have been the response that was

appropriate. That is marked on top of that question.
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Now, that doesn’t mean that’s new evidence. It's my belief
that you argued at the -- at the -- that there wasn’t enough there for
robbery and you argued that issue. That -- this isn’t new evidence.

Is it a mistake? It could have been a mistake. But even if the
mistake was made, it wouldn’t have changed because that is exactly
what the answer would have been had he brought everybody in and said
this question was asked. Everybody would have said -- defense and
prosecution -- Judge, you’re not at liberty to supplement the evidence.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, could the trial attorney
respond as to what she would have said if she was brought into court?

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you, Your Honor.

Our position is that this is not evidence, but this is a
clarification on what the law is. And the jury is the trier of facts; however,
the Court is the one who informs the jury what the law is. And so our
position, and the case law supports this, is that if the jury has confusion
as to what the law is, what law applies here, here a particular element of
the crime robbery, that we would have been able to give additional jury
instructions.

And we’ve laid out in our motion, as well as our response, |
would have specifically objected to the typed portion that is on the top of
this note that says the Court is not at liberty to supplement the evidence.

Our position is that at a minimum the jury should have been
directed to some of the jury instructions that were already given but we

could have proffered new ones and we lay out which new ones that we
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would have --

THE COURT: You can’t proffer new jury instructions. Once
they’re back deliberating, that’s the sanctity of the jury. You can’t
supplement that. They have the jury instructions.

So | understand your argument --

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, we disagree, and | think that --

THE COURT: --1--and it's a good argument but it's not -- it
doesn’t follow the law and your motion --

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, can we address --

THE COURT: --for a new trial pursuant to 176.515 based on
newly discovered evidence is denied. The State will prepare findings of
fact, conclusions of law consistent with their opposition.

Thank you.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor --

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, can | say one more thing?

THE COURT: No. You're going to -- you're going to appeal --
they’re going -- you're going to appeal this to the Supreme Court, tell the
Supremes.

MS. SPELLS: We would just like to address the misconduct
portion of our motion. We didn’t get to argue that portion, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What misconduct?

MS. SPELLS: In our reply, and as well as our supplemental,
we indicated that there was another road, even if it didn’t fall under the
seven factors of Lenmore that we were --

THE COURT: Put it on the record.
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MS. SPELLS: -- indicated that there was possible
misconduct.

| didn’t hear you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Put it on the record.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you, Your Honor.

Your Honor, here we are also indicating that misconduct had
to occur because, one, Mr. Harvey, the Defendant in the case, was
aware that there was a hold-out juror prior to the verdict coming in.
Additionally, which we’ve laid out in some of our exhibits in speaking
with the jurors, they indicate that there was additional conversation with
the marshal about a procedural aspect and if there was an individual
who had a question about procedure, they needed to come in and speak
with the judge. We were not notified of that, that was never put on the
record.

And so we are asking -- we're asking for an evidentiary
hearing based on the newly discovered evidence, as well as the fact that
there was mis --

THE COURT: You say it's newly discovered evidence. ltis
not evidence.

MS. SPELLS: | understand the Court’s ruling.

We were also basing on an evidentiary -- asking for an
evidentiary hearing based on the fact that there was misconduct
because none of those communications between the jurors and the
marshal or court staff were put on the record. And there is case law that

specifically indicates that, as an arm of the court, those communications
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need to either be in writing at all times --

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SPELLS: -- or be done in the courtroom where they can
be put on the record so that we know what happens with regards to an
appeal. And it indicates that the Court needs to make sure that those
statements are not coercive.

Additionally, which we laid out in our reply and our
supplemental briefs, is that we understand that the marshal gave his cell
phone number. There was one juror, | believe Ms. Susie Chang,
indicated that she was informed or she thought someone told her that
one of the jurors had actually contacted the marshal via cell phone. And
so that issue needs to be explored as well because that would be
communication from the Court to the jurors that was not put on the
record, Your Honor.

And so --

THE COURT: We all get their cell numbers. Tom gets the
cell numbers on every juror. So that if a juror doesn’t show up, he can
call them. That doesn’t mean he’s calling them during deliberations.

MS. SPELLS: Your Honor, I'm not indicating that the court
marshal called anyone. | am stating that we were informed that it is
possible that one of the jurors called the court marshal after the first day
of deliberations.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. SPELLS: This would not be in the morning to be late to

court but after deliberating period.
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Your motions denied.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, the Court --

THE COURT: And you’ll -- and the State will prepare a
findings of fact, conclusions of law and a higher court is going to have to
decide this because | don’t see it as problematic. Because we are not at
liberty to supplement the evidence or the testimony or the jury
instructions once given. Because | am sure you went through the jury
instructions. | am sure the judge said, are you familiar with jury
instructions 1 through 45, or whatever it was, and you -- I'll bet anything
that you said yes, I'm familiar with them. No, | don’t have any others
with the oppositions that we sent.

It's already been appealed or if it hasn’t been appealed, it's
going to be. So thank you.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, the Court -- we have a second
motion, the motion to reconstruct the record and that was filed because
we need to have a reconstruction of the record to determine how this
note ended up in the district court evidence vault. We have nothing in
the record that explains that. I'm asking the Court to reconstruct it. |
believe the jurors at least say approximately when they gave it to the
marshal, which was the second day of deliberations. The jurors also say
that shortly after that they made a decision when they were told
something by the court marshal to the effect that this has already been
asked and answered.

So we would like to reconstruct the record to show what
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occurred.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

I’m not going to bring Judge Bixler in to reconstruct the record.
He doesn’t remember. It's been so long. And if you want to file a
reconstruction, you can.

MS. DICKINSON: Your Honor, so would the Court be willing
to allow us to use the affi -- the declarations we have from the jurors that
explain what they did with the note so we could as least use that in the
appeal, reconstruct it in that manner?

THE COURT: No, because | don’t think that’s fair to go back
and say this happened and ask for specific times and stuff. | just don’t
think that’s fair to either -- to justice.

Should that question have been asked? Yeah, it should have.

Did some telephone -- cell numbers be given? Yes, I'm sure
that happened because all of the marshals have to get their telephone
numbers to call jurors in case they don’t show up.

| don’t see a need to reconstruct it and that motions denied.
Thank you.

MS. SPELLS: Thank you.

MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Your Honor.

I
I
I
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THE COURT: State, prepare that order.
MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes, Your Honor.

[Hearing concluded at 8:44 a.m.]
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ATTEST: 1 do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

R

Gina Villani
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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